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Investment Property

2]
£
e
(&)
el
=
&
=
=]
=
ol
-«
&
B
L]
o= B B
(=]
w g S £
E 28 g
225853
M®w T =
PR ER
R AR

£53
PEHTEE
R=d-R-0=ks
TE8E2 35S
MB®Hmo =T
P RN R
B oA L

g
& = 5 2 =
= a < 2 o0 g S
3 = =._ <€ £< 2
2 - = K= N = =] S
m k s S 5 & o & ) ]
\ FVRS 2 = < & = o E S
Pz = ot L E- < = =
2 # SSas5TaX % 2 ©
<<< . e IR L = =
W & v ' g = =
<<<<<<L< = 2 S E
<<<<LLLLLLL g i # S o= H
<<<LLLLLLL <& ~ EN
22222222224 .
<<<LLLLLLLLL
<<LLLLLLLLLL
<<LLLLLLLLLL < <<f<<
<<LLLLLLLLLLLL << <<<< <$<<<d
<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLL R < A AAA <<<<<<E< <<
<<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLL <€ <<< 222222222 2222222225
<<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLL <<« A <<<LLLLELLLLLLELLLLL
<<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLYLLLLLLLL <<<< 222222 2222222222224
<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLYLLLLLLLLL  <<<<K< AAAAAAAAA <<<LLLELLLLLL
<<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLL LKL <<<LLLELLLLLLELLLLLL
<<LLL <LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLELLLLLLKLLLLL<LHY
K<L <LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLILLLLLLLLLLLLELLLLL L << < €€

<KL <<LLLLLLLLLLLLLL L LKL L L L L LKL KL <LLLLLLLLLLLLKLL
<<L<L<LLLLLLLLLLLLL LK KL LLLLLLLLLL L L L L L LKL
<LK <LK LKL LLLLL LK KL LKL LKL L L LKL L LKL L LKL

o0

=

Mm S = .m.m%hw
..mgoe.mgWZ [=]
o S S m = g o ns.l.m
EENSE528S5§38%5
ZOUahKEO=ET=ZA
HAET TH KT Y
w4 e W % AR e K

<< <<<<L<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLL KL<
<<<<<LLL <KL LLLLLLLLLLLLLL LKL LLLLL LKL LLLKKLKLKKLKLL KL<
<<<<L<L<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLL LKL LKL <<
<<L<L<LLLLLLLLL L LKL LKL LKL L L L LKL L L L LKL
<<<<<LLLL LKL LLLL LKL LL LKL
<LK <KL LKL L LKL L L L L L LKL L L L LKL
<LLLLLLL LKL LKL LK €€k«
<<<<L<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLL L L L LKL
<<<<L<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLL L L L LKL
<<<L<LLLLLLLLLLLLL LK€< <L
<<<L<L<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLL LKL LLL LKL LKL
<<<L<L<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLL LKL L LKL LLKL
<<<<L<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLKLLL LKL LL LKL
<<<<L<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLKLL L LKL L L LKL
<<<<L<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLL LKL LLL KL LKL KL
<<<<L<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLL LKL L LKL LL LKL
<<<<L<LLLLLLLLLLLL LKL L L LKL L L LKL LLLEKLKL
<<<<L<LLLLLLLLLLLLL LKL L LK LLLL K< <<
<<<<L<LLL L LLLLL LKL LLLLL L L KLLLL KL
<<<L<L<LLLLLLLLLLLL LKL KL<
<<<<L<LLLLLLLLLLLL L L L KLLL
<<<<L<LLLLLLLLLLLL LKL LKL LKL
<< << KL<
<<L<L<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLL L LKL L L L LKL L L K LLLL
<<L<L<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLL L LKL L L L LKL LKL L KLLLL KL
<<L<L<LLLLLLLLLLLLLL L LKL LLLLLLL LKL L L L L L KLLLL KL
<<L<L<LLLLLLLLLLLLLL L LKL LKL L L L L L L L L KLLLL
<<L<L<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLL L L L L L L L L L LKL
<<L<L<LLLLLLLLLLL L LKL LKL LKL L LLL KKK
<<L<L<LLLLLLLLLLL L LKL LKL L L L L L L L L LKL
<<L<L<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLL L L L L L L L L L KLLLKL
<<LL<LLLLLLLLLLL L LKL LKL L L L L L L L LKL
<<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLL L L L L LKL L KL<
< <<LLLLLLLLLL L LKL L L L L LKL
<<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLLL LKL L L L L L K<L
<<LLLLLLLLLLLLLL L LKL
<<LLLLLLLLLLLLL L L LKL
<<LLLLLLLLLLLLL L L LKL
<LLLLLLLLLLLLLLL LKL
<LLLLLLLLLLKL <<
<LLLLLLLLL
<KL
<<

#  Chongging

4 B Mianyang

Ak Chengdu

REEFEFR
Annual Report 2007

2|



T EMEHRE

Schedule of Principal Properties

FIM R AR E W HE AR
BUERARBRADE JEAEE A A R
Properties held for Attributable Beneficial Interest of Approximate Total Gross Epil AE IR
Investment or Own Use China Resources Land Limited Floor Area (m?) Type Lease Term
kT EMXA 100% 65,222 #0 A
China Resources Building Medium Term
o ROR B 2B POk K #r83% Lease
No. 8 Jianguomen North Avenue,
Dongcheng District, Beijing
LEERE S 100% 97,139 B4
China Resources Times Square Medium Term
7 4 Mall 51,190 7 C Lease
g 54 Office 36,843 # 0
b R R 955005
No. 500 Zhangyang Road, Pudong, Shanghai
RIS — 100% 229,938 A
City Crossing Phase 1 Medium Term
¥ %% The MIXc 133,281 #C Lease
73 %M X i China Resources Building 40,990 # 0
1% % 3% Car Park 55,667 4% CP
R BB IR R%500158 & F 44 %18813%
No. 5001 Shennan East Road and
No. 1881 Baoan South Road,
Luohu District, Shenzhen
FEIES P 100% 13,789 B A
Hua Rui Building Medium Term
EINBHE T %H%100157% Lease
No. 1001 Baoan South Road,
Luohu District, Shenzhen
B 17—t =g E -z
C — Commercial CP - car Park O — Office R — Residential
=)
|
=
=t
frie= B
prE————
EwERRA LR FEES LI

China Resources Building

China Resources Times Square

City Crossing Phase I

—EREFESR
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FMERA A 49 Sk S AR
HERERARADE JEAEE A A Tk
Properties held for Attributable Beneficial Interest of Approximate Total Gross 48 7 AE IR
Investment or Own Use China Resources Land Limited Floor Area (m?) Type Lease Term
% F ALK 3y 95.62% 36,184 B C A
Xidan Cultural Centre Medium Term
bEH BB F b kA Lease
Xidan Avenue, Xicheng District, Beijing
FRK 47.81% 54,214 /% B E
Huawei Building R/C Medium Term
I IR E 5 $ b K A Lease
Xidan Avenue, Xicheng District, Beijing
Fg R 15.29% 70,058 W/ # B E
Huanan Building C/0 Medium Term
I IR B % $ b K A Lease
Xidan Avenue, Xicheng District, Beijing
FERA 95.62% 7,243 /1% e LN
Hua Yuan Building 0/CP Medium Term
Jb T W IR B A 94363% Lease
No. 36, Nanlishi Road, Xicheng District, Beijing
B b2 E 95.62% 16,787 B C A
Grand Constellation Shopping Mall Medium Term
IR T IR B B R Lease
Piku Alley, Xicheng District, Beijing
12X 0 7 5 95.62% 10,685 #C v RALE
U-Space Shopping Mall Medium Term
LT AR B AR Lease
No. 1 Shuangjing, Chaoyang District, Beijing
i 4 95.62% 17,952 #C B4
Jing Tong Shops Medium Term
T AR B A Lease
Chao Yang Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing

iE: S E LA PR E) i 8 B R PR 8] M B s OB B A PR 3] 9 3 A 3y K 13.08% %4.2.31% 49 4 3.
Note: China Resources Land Limited has 13.08% and 2.31% interests in Huanan Building through Strong Foundation Developments Ltd. and China
Resources Land (Beijing) Company Ltd., respectively.

S 1 — 1423 HE— g £~z
C — Commercial CP — car Park O — Office R — Residential
4 —REEEEER

Annual Report 2007



T EYEME

Schedule of Principal Properties

FMERA A 49 Sk S AR
HERERARADE JEAEE A A R
Properties held for Attributable Beneficial Interest of Approximate Total Gross 48 7 AE IR
Investment or Own Use China Resources Land Limited Floor Area (m?) Type Lease Term
KA B 95.62% 18,069 /1 AL
Guan Hua Building and Affiliated 0/CP Medium Term
Facilities Lease
R & AP R A 1189k
No. 118 Xizhimennei Avenue, Xicheng District,
Beijing
& 243 95.62% 7,815 #C AR
Majestic Garden Club Medium Term
L T H B Lease
Jian Xiang Qiao, Chaoyang District, Beijing
kR 225 AE 95.62% 4,155 /7 AR
Building 22, Guanyingyuan R/C Medium Term
Jb TR W IR B A A A Lease
Xinjiekou South Avenue, Xicheng District,
Beijing
& 95.62% 3,926 e AR
Jin Hui Garden Medium Term
LERTRER Lease
Daxing District, Beijing
R £ B 95.62% 13,210 #C AR
Phoenix City Commercial Street Medium Term
T H B = A Lease

San Yuan Qiao, Chaoyang District, Beijing

iE:

Note: Not including Shenzhen City Crossing Phase 2 (191,039 square metres); The MIXc in Hangzhou (463,477 square metres); Beijing Oak Bay
(160,000 square metres); Beijing Phoenix Plaza (176,386 square metres), all of which are under construction.

H—mx 15— =g £ -z

C — Commercial CP - car Park O — Office R — Residential

# R S QRIS Z8191,039F F A AL B FIMA63,4TTF 7 A LT AREHE A 3£160,000°F 7 K~ b FURR K b K #5176,386°F 7 Ko

—EREFESR
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T EYEME

Schedule of Principal Properties

T4
EMER W EERHE
HRAE  dbdath FAR &3t
JEAE F iR Tk Approximate H B A
BRETHE Attributable Beneficial ~ Approximate Unsold Estimated i
Properties under Interest of China Total Site Gross Floor E b Date of State of
Development Resources Land Limited Area (m?) Area (m?) Type  Completion Completion
R 95.62% 106,461 665  04%12A EEL
La Firenze Phase 1 R Dec/04 Completed
LT HREE KA
Daxing District, Beijing
HREH = 95.62% 270,700 20,191 & 04%7A EEL
La Firenze Phase 2 R Jul/04 Completed
LFE T REE KA
Daxing District, Beijing
WA G (K245 M) 95.62% 115,158 33,007 1E 0756 A XL
Fortune Island( Daxing Plot 24) R Jun/07 Completed
LFE T REE KA
Daxing District, Beijing
JER R = HA 95.62% 47,900 63,433 1E 05%7A XL
Phoenix City Phase 2 R Jul/05 Completed
LFE ARG EZ A
San Yuan Qiao, Chaoyang District, Beijing
JB R = A% 235 95.62% na 16,641 1% 0547 A ExL
Phoenix City Phase 2 Car Park CP Jul/05 Completed
LFE ARG EZ A
San Yuan Qiao, Chaoyang District, Beijing
RS A A =g e

C — Commercial CP — car Park

B el

3R
La Firenze

—EREFESR
Annual Report 2007

O - Office

R — Residential

FLRR =

Phoenix City Phase 2

Jb T BRI
BJ Phoenix City
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Schedule of Principal Properties

JREHEH
Phoenix City Phase 3

JAE 3 %
Phoenix Plaza

A
£ME N A EEEAR
HRAE  dbdath FAR &3t
JEAE F iR Tk Approximate A8

BRETHE Attributable Beneficial ~ Approximate Unsold Estimated i
Properties under Interest of China Total Site Gross Floor E b Date of State of
Development Resources Land Limited Area (m?) Area (m?) Type  Completion Completion
JER = 95.62% 58,900 74,690 e 075124 LxL
Phoenix City Phase 3 R Dec/07 Completed
KT ARG E =M

San Yuan Qiao, Chaoyang District, Beijing

BB =812 505 95.62% n/a 7,397 % 0T#12A EE5aE
Phoenix City Phase 3 Car Park CP Dec/07 Completed
KT ARG EZTH

San Yuan Qiao, Chaoyang District, Beijing

BREN R (BE) 95.62% 45,781 71,639 #t/H 094124 Rp
Phoenix Plaza (West area) 0/C Dec/09  Construction
LFE ARG EZ A in Progress
San Yuan Qiao, Chaoyang District, Beijing

Wk 3 & 95.62% 10,668 13,985 #,/f£  04%10A ExL
Top Box O/R Oct/04 Completed
LW H B

Jian Xiang Qiao, Chaoyang District, Beijing

RS A A =g e
C — Commercial CP - car park O — office R — Residential

—EREFESR
Annual Report 2007
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Schedule of Principal Properties

Annual Report 2007

A
£ME N A EEEAR
HRAE  dbdath FAR &3t
JEAE F iR Tk Approximate A8
BRETHE Attributable Beneficial ~ Approximate Unsold Estimated i
Properties under Interest of China Total Site Gross Floor E b Date of State of
Development Resources Land Limited Area (m?) Area (m?) Type  Completion Completion
ik 2 245 R 0 95.62% n/a 4,349 #0410 EET
Top Box Car Park CP Oct/04 Completed
LT AR B A G
Jian Xiang Qiao, Chaoyang District, Beijing
EREF 95.62% 18,085 92,000 #t/#  10%12A ¢
Majestic Garden Phase 3 0/C Dec/10 Planning
T AR B A G in Progress
Jian Xiang Qiao, Chaoyang District, Beijing
1+ H 95.62% 10,740 23,396 #/1E 0456 A eXL
U-Space O/R Jun/04 Completed
LE TG B RS
No. 1 Shuangjing, Chaoyang District, Beijing
B A1E 235 95.62% n/a 6,605 1% 0456 A ExL
U-Space Car Park CP Jun/04 Completed
LE TG BRI —HR
No. 1 Shuangjing, Chaoyang District, Beijing
) TR 95.62% 66,212 280,385 1%,/ % 09512 A B
Guanganmen Project R/C Dec/09  Construction
T T EKXE K %15 K 430558 in Progress
No.305 Guanganmen Wai Aveune,
Xuanwu District, Beijing
RS A A= d e
C — Commercial CP - car pPark O — office R — Residential
SEEEEREHR



T EYEME

Schedule of Principal Properties

RS
FMEL 4 R @A
HRAE  dbdath FAR &3t
JEAE F iR Tk Approximate A8
BRETHE Attributable Beneficial ~ Approximate Unsold Estimated i
Properties under Interest of China Total Site Gross Floor E b Date of State of
Development Resources Land Limited Area (m?) Area (m?) Type  Completion Completion
BHEER LY 95.62% n/a 4,255 % 05%1A exL
Grand Constellation Car Park CP Jan/05 Completed
TG RE KB R
Piku Alley, Xicheng District, Beijing
MBI AL T 97.77% 281,284 726,037 1 0912 A B
Oak Bay R Dec/09  Construction
bR AR E T in Progress
Qinghe, Haiding District, Beijing
K EL15#0 95.62% 121,276 153,956 1E 0912 A 3t
Daxing Plot 15 R Dec/09 Planning
AFEHTREE in Progress
Daxing District, Beijing

RS A A= d e
C — Commercial CP - car Park O - Office R — Residential

L TARHEL L TARHME2
Beijing Oak Bay 1 Beijing Oak Bay 2

—EREFESR
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T EYEME

Schedule of Principal Properties

RS
B AHE
FMEL 4 R @A
HRAE  dbdath FAR &3t
JEAE F iR Tk Approximate A8
BRETHE Attributable Beneficial ~ Approximate Unsold Estimated i
Properties under Interest of China Total Site Gross Floor E b Date of State of
Development Resources Land Limited Area (m?) Area (m?) Type  Completion Completion
Lk B — 100% 26,569 29919 /% 08F12A By
The Bund Side Phase 1 R/C Dec/08  Construction
EETHBEHE in Progress
Huangpu District, Puxi, Shanghai
LR R 25 100% n/a 13,542 % 08%12A ik
The Bund Side Phase 1 Car Park CP Dec/08  Construction
EETHBEHE in Progress
Huangpu District, Puxi, Shanghai
LRI E = 100% 32,935 116,168 4,/%  09%12A 43 b
The Bund Side Phase 2 R/C Dec/09 Planning
EETHBEHE in Progress
Huangpu District, Puxi, Shanghai
LEBLR =B 2y 100% n/a 17,472 % 094%12A Sk
The Bund Side Phase 2 Car Park CP Dec/09 Planning
EETHBEHE in Progress
Huangpu District, Puxi, Shanghai
L ERBE 100% 144,247 303,963 &/ % 08412 A B
Shanghai Oak Bay R/C Dec/08  Construction
i B A2 2510889% in Progress
No.1088, Zhenghe Road, Shanghai
B 1F— 5 A — g 1~z

C — Commercial CP - car Park O - Office R — Residential

WA TN < A

> 2|
The Bund Side

EHEARBH
Shanghai Oak Bay

10 —EREFESR
Annual Report 2007



T EYEME

Schedule of Principal Properties

A
£ME N A EEEAR
HRAE  dbdath FH R &3t
JEAE F iR Tk Approximate A8
BRETHE Attributable Beneficial ~ Approximate Unsold Estimated i
Properties under Interest of China Total Site Gross Floor E b Date of State of
Development Resources Land Limited Area (m?) Area (m?) Type  Completion Completion
BHE S _HELR 100% 14,265 111,039 i 0947A £S5 2i
City Crossing Phase 2 Residential R Jul/09  Construction
RINT K %@% in Progress
Baoan South Road, Shenzhen
RARF B — 100% 72,063 8936 4£/H 054125 BT
Chengdu Jade City Phase 1 R/C Dec/05 Completed
RART A B
Jinjiang District, Chengdu
RAR S B — e 25 100% n/a 9,643 % 05%12A BT
Chengdu Jade City Phase 1 Car Park CP Dec/05 Completed
RART A B
Jinjiang District, Chengdu
RARF B = 100% 80,015 10,023 4£/% 0746 BT
Chengdu Jade City Phase 2 R/C Jun/07 Completed
AR 4 B
Jinjiang District, Chengdu
ARG R R 25 100% n/a 8,609 # 0746 A EEL
Chengdu Jade City Phase 2 Car Park CP Jun/07 Completed
RART A B
Jinjiang District, Chengdu
PRAR 35 2R = 4 100% 73,913 18,470 &,/ 0846 A B
Chengdu Jade City Phase 3 R/C Jun/08  Construction
RART IR in Progress
Jinjiang District, Chengdu
PRAR DS IR = d4e g 100% n/a 23,227 % 0846 A B
Chengdu Jade City Phase 3 Car Park CP Jun/08  Construction
AR AT B in Progress
Jinjiang District, Chengdu
PRAR 35 2 4% v 2 100% 75,553 272,180 4&/H 08F12A By
Chengdu Jade City Phase 4 R/C Dec/08  Construction
AR AT B in Progress
Jinjiang District, Chengdu
AR D BN R4 2 g 100% n/a 67,144 % 08%12A P
Chengdu Jade City Phase 4 Car Park CP Dec/08  Construction
AR AT B in Progress
Jinjiang District, Chengdu

RS A A =g e
C — Commercial CP - car Park O - Office R — Residential

—EREFESR 11
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T EYEME

Schedule of Principal Properties

A
£ME N A EEEAR
HRAE  dbdath FAR &3t
JEAE F iR Tk Approximate A8
BRETHE Attributable Beneficial ~ Approximate Unsold Estimated i
Properties under Interest of China Total Site Gross Floor % 57) Date of State of
Development Resources Land Limited Area (m?) Area (m?) Type  Completion Completion
AR 3 B A 100% 106,515 233,167 /% 0945127 ik
Chengdu Jade City Later Phases R/C Dec/09 Planning
RAET LR in Progress
Jinjiang District, Chengdu
RAR S BRI 2 55 100% n/a 60,000 % 09%12A 3+
Chengdu Jade City Later Phases Car Park CP Dec/09 Planning
AT 4L B in Progress
Jinjiang District, Chengdu
AR AR BRI 100% 157,176 787,216 1£ 085127 B
Chengdu Phoenix City R Dec/08  Construction
RARZF B in Progress
South Third Ring Road, Chengdu
JRAR 243 100% 559,880 2,452,520 1£ 09476 A B
Chengdu Twenty-Four City R Jun/09  Construction
RAR IR in Progress
East Second Ring Road, Chengdu
AR 100% 132,039 528,156 £ 09%12A 43 b
Chengdu Oak Bay R Dec/09 Planning
RART IR AR in Progress
Pi County, Chengdu
BIE R 100% 292,611 861,916 1£ 10512 A 3t
Mianyang Project R Dec/10 Planning
Hi T AHE R B in Progress
Kechuangyuan District, Mianyang

= 1 — s =g 1E— 2
C — Commercial CP - car Park O - Office R — Residential

LR AR v R
Chengdu Jade City Chengdu Twenty-Four City

—EREFESR
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T EYEME

Schedule of Principal Properties

A
FMEL 4 R @A
HRAE  dbdath FAR &3t
JEAE F iR Tk Approximate A8
BRETHE Attributable Beneficial ~ Approximate Unsold Estimated i
Properties under Interest of China Total Site Gross Floor E b Date of State of
Development Resources Land Limited Area (m?) Area (m?) Type  Completion Completion
g BRI 100% 63,563 38,775 £/ H 075F12A XL
Wuhan Phoenix City R/C Dec/07 Completed
KET KB EH 2
Ji Yu Qiao, Wuchang District, Wuhan
KL B B35 100% n/a 13,317 % 074124 ExL
Wuhan Phoenix City Car Park CP Dec/07 Completed
KET KB EH 2
Ji Yu Qiao, Wuchang District, Wuhan
KER EH%ER 100% 13,744 61228 4£/H  09%12A st
Wuhan Minzhulu Project R/C Dec/09  Construction
KETRIBR IR in Progress
Minzhu Road, Wuchang District, Wuhan

Bz 17—y Af — sz 1tz
C — Commercial CP — car Park O — Office R — Residential
|

K iE R
Wuhan Phoenix City

—EREFESR 13
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T EYEME

Schedule of Principal Properties

—EREFESR
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A
FMEL 4 R @A
HRNE ke FAR &3t
JEAE F iR Tk Approximate A8
BRETHE Attributable Beneficial ~ Approximate Unsold Estimated i
Properties under Interest of China Total Site Gross Floor E b Date of State of
Development Resources Land Limited Area (m?) Area (m?) Type  Completion Completion
AN E AR 100% 144,265 74390 4/ % 0846 A By
Hefei French Annecy R/C Jun/08  Construction
AR BB H in Progress
Shu Shan, Gaoxin District, Hefei
bR A R 35 100% n/a 22,935 1% 0846 A st
Hefei French Annecy Car Park CP Jun/08  Construction
AR BB H in Progress
Shu Shan, Gaoxin District, Hefei
SleEi AR 100% 110,570 373,664 1&/ 7 10412 A i
Hefei Parklane Project R/C Dec/10 Planning
AR 2 i g AR ey L e in Progress
Crossing of Wangjiang West Road and
Hezuohua South Road, Hefei
AL B 60% 23,556 147,900 1 095F12A By
Hangzhou MIXc Residence R Dec/09  Construction
M T B g AT in Progress
No. 737, Fuchun Road, Jianggan District, Hangzhou
Ao B FRIR A X B 60% n/a 201,603  09%12A gtk
Hangzhou MIXc Service Apartment R Dec/09  Construction
MM T B g AT in Progress
No. 737, Fuchun Road, Jianggan District, Hangzhou
RS A A= d e
C — Commercial CP — car Park O — Office R — Residential
EALEE el —
Hefei French Annecy |
A R
Hangzhou MIXc




T EYEME

Schedule of Principal Properties

A
£ME N A EEEAR
HRAE  dbdath FAR &3t
JEAE F iR Tk Approximate A8

BRETHE Attributable Beneficial ~ Approximate Unsold Estimated i
Properties under Interest of China Total Site Gross Floor E b Date of State of
Development Resources Land Limited Area (m?) Area (m?) Type  Completion Completion
£HKNBBARE—H 60% 132,555 139,285 e 086 A By
Wuxi Taihu International Community R June/08  Construction
Phase 1 in Progress
84T A5 88K

No. 88, Jinshi Road, Wuxi

£HKNBEBARE 5 60% 102,530 227,922 e 08F12A By
Wuxi Taihu International Community R Dec/08  Construction
Phase 2 in Progress
B4 T4 5 88K

No. 88, Jinshi Road, Wuxi

EHKHBEBRARE =N 60% 102,183 146,850 1£ 085127 B
Wuxi Taihu International Community R Dec/08  Construction
Phase 3 in Progress
B8 £ o 3885

No. 88, Jinshi Road, Wuxi

28 KB AR %A 60% 778,417 1,253,190 £ 09%12A g ki
Wuxi Taihu International Community R Dec/09 Planning
Later Phases in Progress
B4 T4 5 %88

No. 88, Jinshi Road, Wuxi

S 1 — 1423 HE— g £~z
C — Commercial CP — car Park O — Office R — Residential

£ KHBBLE
Wusxi Taihu International Community

—EREFESR 15
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T EYEME

Schedule of Principal Properties

T4
LE =R
FMEL 4 R @A
A P8 A& A ok &3t
JEASF M A 7 K Approximate H B A
BREYHE Attributable Beneficial ~ Approximate Unsold Estimated i
Properties under Interest of China Total Site Gross Floor E b Date of State of
Development Resources Land Limited Area (m?) Area (m?) Type  Completion Completion
Kiz it B — 100% 74,418 244,332 B 094124 LS L
Dalian China Sea Phase 1 R Dec/09  Construction
Kt BEEREHE in Progress
Binhai New District, Development Zone, Dalian
Kt P B = 100% 59,410 223,983 £ 114128 3%
Dalian China Sea Phase 2 R Dec/11 Planning
Rz 4B A EHE in Progress
Binhai New District, Development Zone, Dalian
Kk i B % 100% 323,729 1,032,835 £ 12%12A oy
Dalian China Sea Later Phases R Dec/12 Planning
Kk ARG B in Progress
Binhai New District, Development Zone, Dalian
ERF O 100% 317,155 189,952 # 09467 sk
Ningbo Tuscany Lake Valley R Jun/09  Construction
ERRBHE in Progress
Donggianhu District, Ningbo
FREEAR 100% 178,282 367,610 1E 09512 A 3t P
Ningbo Cixi Project R Dec/09 Planning
TR A& RS in Progress
Kandun Street, Cixi, Ningbo

H—mx G A=z & — g
C — Commercial CP — car Park O — Office R — Residential

Kik b H FRFHHS
Dalian China Sea Ningbo Tuscany Lake Valley

= FFLFRFR
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Schedule of Principal Properties

A
DR
£ME N A EEEAR
HRAE  dbdath FAR &3t
JEAE F iR Tk Approximate A8
BRETHE Attributable Beneficial ~ Approximate Unsold Estimated i
Properties under Interest of China Total Site Gross Floor E b Date of State of
Development Resources Land Limited Area (m?) Area (m?) Type  Completion Completion
T P 100% 96,564 128,093 PE 095124 B
Suzhou Pingmenfu R Dec/09  Construction
FM TR in Progress
Pingjiang District, Suzhou
kU ZYAR 100% 401,777 1623471 = 094127 it
Xing Sha Project R Dec/09 Planning
Ry R % in Progress
Changsha Town, Changsha
& BRI 100% 153,860 540,000 £ 10%12A 3+
Changsha Phoenix City R Dec/10 Planning
F I R e B LA AT AT in Progress
Hanpu Town, Wangcheng County, Changsha
E R R AR R 100% 171,580 572,306 i3 114525 P
Chongging Electric Instrument R Feb/11 Planning
Factory Project in Progress
FEA B KA A
Dashiba Street, Jiangbei District, Chongging
JEL P AR A 100% 94,623 380,771 PE 105124 3t P
Xiamen Oak Bay R Dec/10 Planning
MW REES LS in Progress
Xingbei Road, Jimei District, Xiamen
REEEFRER 100% 105,840 152,200 £ 09%12A P
Tianjin Shuanggang Project R Dec/09 Planning
RET &b B RRA in Progress
Jiulong Street, Shunggang Town,
Jinnan District, Tianjin

= 17—t g5 A — g 1tz
C — Commercial CP — car Park O — Office R — Residential

Y ESY:
Suzhou Pingmenfu

K RYIAR
Xing Sha Project

—EREFESR
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Schedule of Principal Properties

B Al E
#E MR
EMER FF R
b A Approximate
HUAEEHE JeAE T AR Unsold
Properties held for Attributable Beneficial Interest of Gross Floor 8 7 AR SE R
Resettlement/Sales China Resources Land Limited Area (m?) Type Lease Term
TEERE 95.62% 9,644 % TALE
JingTong Car Park CP Medium Term
T AR E AR Lease
Chao Yang Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing
TRES 95.62% 8,297 fE TR
JingTong Residential R Medium Term
T AR E AR Lease
Chao Yang Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing
iy 47.81% 17,000 # AL
Woodland Villa R Medium Term
3L I & Bk Lease
Mapo Village, Shunyi County, Beijing
HRERDE 95.62% 7,971 &,/ # T AR
Xi Luo Yuan R/C Medium Term
LXTYEE Lease
Fengtai District, Beijing
RAERTG R 95.62% 6,409 # LE N
Dongguanying Western Area R Medium Term
I O R R AT A Lease
Xinjiekou South Avenue,Xicheng District,Beijing
] 95.62% 9,772 &/ % v AT
Huilongguan R/C Medium Term
EXTEFE Lease
Changping District, Beijing
R B2 95.62% 7,587 &,/ AR
Dong Sheng Yuan Phase 2 R/C Medium Term
Bl 3 13 Lease
Haidian District, Beijing
REfEE 95.62% 6,945 1 v AR
Daxing Residential R Medium Term
AFHTREE Lease
Daxing District, Beijing
(7 EH 95.62% 8,447 &/ H iR
Majestic Garden Phase 1 R/C Medium Term
LT AR B A G Lease

Jian Xiang Qiao, Chaoyang District, Beijing

18 —EREFESR
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Schedule of Principal Properties

AR O
#EaM
EMER TR
b A Approximate
HUAEEHE s K s Unsold
Properties held for Attributable Beneficial Interest of Gross Floor 8 7 AR SE R
Resettlement/Sales China Resources Land Limited Area (m?) Type Lease Term
#hHE 95.62% 3,111 1E TALE
Jian Gong Xi Li R Medium Term
AFRTEXE Lease
Xuanwu District, Beijing
& B 95.62% 748 # AL
Lu Gu New Town R Medium Term
LEFEFL Lease
Shijingshan District, Beijing
A Y 95.62% 2,288 = AL
Wan Ming Si R Medium Term
Ev R Lease
Fuchengmen, Xicheng District, Beijing
4R b AT 95.62% 946 1 AL G
Hong Lian North Village R Medium Term
ECa 8 Lease
Xicheng District, Beijing
Y0 § 95.62% 2,093 &,/ # o A
Hua Heng Building R/C Medium Term
AT HHRE A ZHR Lease
Lixue Alley, Xicheng District, Beijing
BN ¥ 95.62% 3911 & T HAE
Other Residentials in Beijing R Medium Term
Lease
ERUL Y2 95.62% 35,469 # TR
Other Car Parks in Beijing CP Medium Term
Lease
RS A A =2 d e
C — Commercial CP - car park O — office R — Residential
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The Group experienced another year of rapid growth in 2007. Fuelled
by China’s prosperous economy and real estate industry, the Group
achieved satisfactory performances in both residential development
and property leasing. Furthermore, the Group acquired the
construction and decoration businesses from its major shareholder
China Resources (Holdings) Limited (“CR Holdings”), during the
year, aiming to further explore its potential, in integrating related
segments along the full value chain of the property business and
strengthen the Group’s competitive edge in differentiation, while
providing more value-added services to our customers. This strategic
move has further solidified our foundation for the Group’s
sustainable, healthy and rapid growth well into the future.

Annual Results and Dividend Distribution

This year, the Group realized consolidated turnover of HK$5,681
million and profit attributable to shareholders of HK$1,431 million,
representing an increase of 44.3% and 66.7% respectively when
compared with the year of 2006. Driven by year-on-year increase in
completion areas and rising selling prices, turnover from residential
development business raised to HK$4,334 million, representing an
annual increase of 38.9%. Turnover from property leasing and
management amounted to HK$986 million, a 20.9% increase over
2006. In 2007, the Group sustained its margin improvement, with
its gross and net profit margin surged to 36.7% and 25.2%
respectively from 32.4% and 21.8% for the corresponding period in
2006. Gross profit margin of residential development business surged
from 23.8% in 2006 to 32.5% in 2007. Gross profit margin of
property leasing and management increased from 65.2% in 2006 to
66.4% in 2007, while that of value-added services in 2007 was 6.0%.
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A final dividend of HK7.4 cents per share was recommended.
Together with interim dividend of HK2.4 cents per share, this makes
a total dividend of HK9.8 cents per share for the full year,
representing a year-on-year increase of 38.0% when compared with
a total dividend of HK7.1 cents for the full year in 2006.

Land Bank

The Group accelerated its efforts in replenishing its land bank in a
well-planned, differentiated and strategy-guided manner. In
consistency with and in support to the Group’s overall strategy to
foster a nation-wide geographical presence, the Group’s land
replenishment is implemented under and guided by the following
strategic principles: first, resources are geared more towards
medium-sized land and towards first-tier, relatively more developed
and economically prosperous cities; second, geographically
penetrating into second and third-tier cities with prudent strategic
guidances and differentiated plans. As of the end of 2007, including
acquisition of Wuxi, Hangzhou and Dalian projects from our major
shareholder CR Holdings, we replenished 14 parcels of land sites,
raising our land bank by 8.15 million square metres to 17.79 million
square metres. Along with the rapid increase in the total size of
our land bank, we maintained an optimal ratio between the land
bank for residential development and that for investment property.
During the year, we entered into 7 new cities namely Chongqing,
Xiamen, Tianjin, Mianyang, Hangzhou, Wuxi and Dalian, expanding
our geographic reach from 9 cities to 16, complementary to our
well-formulated nation-wide expansion strategy. As a result, the
Group has by now established its strong footholds in major cities
that are important to China’s real estate market, and our land bank
is now sizeable enough to meet the needs of rapid growth for the
coming years. In cities already entered, we would spade husbandry
to enhance and strengthen the sustainable development of those

city companies.
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Strategy

In the past year, the Group continued to adhere to our mission “to
provide quality and innovative property products and services to
improve people’s life; to be socially responsible in this era of rapid
social and economic evolution; and to maximize the value for its
shareholders and employees”. We are committed to provide quality
property products and services in Mainland China to persistently
enhance productivity along the full value chain of all property
segments by way of differentiation in our product design and
integration of our service, to cater for the increasing demand for
residential properties from middle to high income consumers, the
demand for rental premises from brand retailers and that for office
space from high-end corporate clients, and by doing so, to raise
growing awareness of our brand both at the group and project
levels. Ultimately, the Group aims to become a competitive and
leading integrated provider of quality property products and services
in the real estate market in Mainland China, and to become an

industry leader both in terms of business scale and financial returns.

To satisfy our needs of providing differentiated and customized
products and services, the Group acquired the construction and
decoration operations from our major shareholder, CR Holdings, at
a consideration of HK$170 million during the year. This strategic
move has further allowed the Group to successfully transform its
business model from “residential development + investment
property” to “residential development + investment property + value-
added customer services”, and, in turn, further strengthened the
Group’s competitive edge in differentiation, thus paved the way to

enhance the Group’s future profitability.
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Prospects

Further to the austerity measures implemented in 2005 and 2006,
this year, the central government adopted certain new measures in
relation to land supply, monetary and fiscal policies, industry
regulation and market entry, aiming to further dampen speculative
and investment demands, stabilize property prices and regulate
residential property transactions. They also aim to cool down
escalated property prices and excessive investment in property
market in certain cities, so as to maintain a stable, rational and
sustainable development for the real estate industry.

We believe that the government policy mainly targeted to curtail
speculative investment activities, enhance residential security for
low-income population and encourage end user demand. The Group’s
land bank is primarily located in city centers. In addition, we only
have a minimal exposure in our land bank in “Pearl River Delta”
area, where property prices surged the most in recent years and
thus under imminent downside pressure. Further, the Group’s
products are generally targeted to meet end-user demands.
Therefore, the impact of austerity measures on us is relatively small.
Besides, the Group owns a large number of commercial properties
which are less affected by austerity measures. In the long run,
factors supporting the long-term growth of real estate property
market (including sustainable economic growth, urbanization and
demand for better living conditions) still exist and the potential
market demand remains huge. We expect the real estate industry in
China to regain its stable development, after a short period of
transitional adjustments and we remain bullish on the long term
prospects of the industry.

Looking into the future on a basis of our outstanding performance
achieved in 2007, the Board of Directors is full of confidence about
our promising future. Driven by factors such as the significant
increase in residential completion area, profit margin and rental
income, the Group is capable of sustaining its rapid growth rate
while creating greater value to its shareholders and employees.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, I would like to express
my sincere appreciation to shareholders for their support to the
Group’s development, and to all the employees, for their
contribution to the Group’s satisfactory results in the past year.

Song Lin
Chairman
28 March 2008, Hong Kong
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The group /oersis/e(/ n 1fs ([r]}feren/ia/e(/ business model This
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Review on Residential Property Business in
2007

In 2007, residential property development business achieved
impressive results. During the period, sales volume of residential
properties rose significantly and the average selling prices of all
projects increased, by varying degrees, over those of 2006. Phase 3
of the Phoenix City in Beijing, Oak Bay in Beijing, the Bund Side in
Shanghai, and Phase 2 of the Phoenix City in Wuhan all recorded
rises in average selling prices of more than 30% over the previous
year, with Beijing Oak Bay being particularly strong, up 75% over
2006.

The comparatively satisfactory sales volume and selling prices have
not only led to a substantial rise in profit from the property
development business in 2007, but also set a strong foundation for
the Group’s profitability in 2008. By the end of December 2007,
contracted value of our property sales in 2007 increased by
approximately 42% year-on-year to RMB5,623 million, while the
area sold grew by 32% year-on-year to approximately 580,778 square

metres.
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Detailed sales breakdown for 2007 by cities are set out as follows:

ARA2# 55 @AR
Contracted Value Area Sold
A K #7000 % ok %
RMB’000 % Sqm %

b3 Beijing 1,952,181 34.7 113,359 19.5
L Shanghai 717,839 12.8 26,175 4.5
ARAR Chengdu 2,383,362 42.4 336,546 58.0
K% Wuhan 224,747 4.0 30,429 5.2
& e Hefei 345,013 6.1 74,269 12.8
&3t Total 5,623,142 100.0 580,778 100.0

ZRBLF ORTHERRAE R E K
EBRRAHZTZNHERR MLEZYH A
#43.3608 LAR - B8 @A A44.99 % T
TR A EREREFRYBERELD
A TT1%F2T77.5% o % =R E L F 544
B E R P E R = BRI = A
T F AR R ER L F
BRI R P AL E R RARA =+
V93K =B IE B o

=

BT R EBARMEB2E B3R AEE 64K
FAEBABENNTAY 2FELEHA
KB AMMEL -2 FHEMEHARY
15,0007C,F 7 K 5 =~ R R X FAI R 44 2
FAR 38 K 75%  BUEIR = 1A A K4 S48
EEER ERGHE RN EL 1ETF
Ko BFIRFEHRAANRNES.881E T o B
BUR = F) A AE £ RS IRAT T BT A 4K
CEEE AEFYBARFEI2EA LY
R B RS0 B R R BURIR =
R E IS OE E @S DT E @A
#996% o

In 2007, Beijing and Chengdu were the most important income
sources of the Group. Contracted value from the two cities amounted
to RMB4,336 million, and contracted area was 449,905 square
metres, accounting for approximately 77.1% and 77.5% of the
Group’s total respectively. The three major sales contributors in
Beijing in 2007 were Phase 2 and 3 of Phoenix City and Oak Bay
projects, while those of Chengdu in 2007 included Jade City, Phoenix
City and Twenty-Four City.

In Beijing, the sales volume and prices of the Group’s residential
properties in Zone B2 and B3 of Oak Bay both exceeded our
expectations. While contracted value totalled RMB844 million, the
annual average selling price reached RMB15,000 per square metre,
representing an increase of 75% over that for Zone Al in 2006.
Timely grasping the uprising trend of high-end residential properties
during the year, Phase 3 of Phoenix City was able to make good use
of the trend in rising prices for high-end residential properties
during the year and achieved sales area of 41,154 square metres
and annual contracted value of RMB888 million. The sales result of
the remaining residential properties of Phase 2 of Phoenix City was
also satisfactory in the year and the contract value secured amounted
to RMB120 million with an increase of 8% in its average selling
price. As at the end of the year, the aggregate area sold accounted
for 96% of the total saleable area of the residential properties in
Phase 2 of the Phoenix City.
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In Shanghai, due to the successful sales of the block from the
second batch of Phase I of The Bund Side launched in the previous
year, another block with 77 units was launched at the end of March
2007. A total of 38 sales contracts were secured on the launching
day, while over two-third of the units were sold within a month
after launching. In September 2007, the Group launched the block
of Phase 1 of The Bund Side named “12 Aristocratic Family”, and 6
units were sold within that month, representing a sales ratio of
50%.

In Chengdu, after three years of successful sales, the Jade City
brought to the market its Phase 3 and 4 in 2007. A total of 183,260
square metres were sold during the year with an aggregate
contracted value of approximately RMB1,332 million. Together with
the strong sales of the Jade City, the Group’s other two projects in
Chengdu, Phase 1 of Phoenix City and Phase 1 of Twenty-Four City,
were put on sale in September and November respectively. In two
to three months since launching, these two projects had secured
contracted values of RMB440 million and RMB490 million
respectively. In particular, the Phoenix City Project received
overwhelming responses and sold 92% of the 347 units on the

launching day.

In Wuhan, sale results were also encouraging. Taking advantage of
amicable market conditions, our Phoenix City in Wuhan achieved
satisfactory results in maximising premium in selling prices, while
recorded a strong growth in overall sales volume. The average selling
price during the year increased 41% over the previous year with

contracted value amounted to RMB225 million.

Sales efforts for the French Annecy Project were primarily focused
on Zone B of Phase 1 and Zone D/E of Phase 2. The project had

secured contracted value of RMB345 million during the year.
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iy The following table shows the sales details
in 2007:

L3R 3 23
+2Az+-8
FAetat
R RS AR Accumulated
Expected EEE § aEEan area sold as at
Completion Date Project Type Total GFA 31 December 2007
(FA£) (FA£)
(Sqm) (Sqm)

of the Group by projects

ARk ZREk4
HEEH FHER
AreaSold  Average Selling

in 2007 Price in 2007
(F7k) (ARE/FF5K)
(Sqm) (RMB/Sqm)

AR Phoenix City Phase 2
] Phoenix City Phase 3
REREE Oak Bay Residential
B2 Other Residential
2 Car Park
LE%EEA—4  The Bund Side Phase 1
RAHER=H  Chengdu Jade City Phase 2
RAFERZH  Chengdu Jade City Phase 3
ARG RERSH  Chengdu Jade City Phase 4
RAZ+mH—#  Chengdu Twenty-Four

City Phase 1
ARABEM—4  Chengdu Phoenix City Phase 1
EEE Other Residential
2 Car Park
K R Wuhan Phoenix City
LR S French Annecy Project

ES
Beijing
L7
Beijing
£
Beijing
L7
Beijing
L7
Beijing
L
Shanghai
R
Chengdu
R
Chengdu
R
Chengdu
AR
Chengdu
R
Chengdu
AR
Chengdu
A
Chengdu

R
Wuhan

A
Hefei

gxL BEERE 185,030 121,597
Completed High Density Residential
gxL AERRE 171,583 96,893
Completed High Density Residential
ZRENFTZA BEREE 867,500 141,463
December 2008 High Density Residential
exL NA NA
Completed
exL NA NA
Completed
ZEENE+ZR BEREE 94,222 64,303
December 2008 High Density Residential
[ PREREE 178,668 168,645
Completed Middle-Low Density Residential
ZEEANETZR PREREE 189,409 170,939
December 2008 Middle-Low Density Residential
ZEENETZA PREREE 333,426 61,246
December 2008  Middle-Low Density Residence
ZEENENA BEREE 362,764 66,938
June 2009 High Density Residential
ZEENETZA BEREE 394,255 64,271
December 2008 High Density Residential
[ NA NA
Completed
exL NA NA
Completed
gxL AEREE 157,300 106,954
Completed High Density Residential
ZEEAFRA PREREE 226,892 129,567

June 2008 Middle-Low Density Residential

7,399 16,265
41,154 21,581
57,245 15,123

4,629 12,188

2,932 7,368
26,175 27,425

4,953 11,419

122,014 7,214
61,246 7375
66,938 7,318
64,271 6,846

532 5,073
16,592 3,763
30,429 7,385
74,269 4,645
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—ERRXFARTEFAAD FH Information of the projects completed and
booked in 2007
AEBH-_ERLFBALAFHEALER Details of the projects booked and turnover of the Group in 2007
AR A T are listed below:
BE-ERLE+T AR
At the end of December 2007 & Ha “HEER
A B &A% Project Name Area Booked Turnover Recognised
(FFXK) (3 %000)
(Sqm) (HK$°000)
I —
TR %= Phoenix City Phase 2 7,399 123,580
JEJE SR = HA Phoenix City Phase 3 44,993 991,402
AR AT Oak Bay 85,065 767,463
G Fortune Island 28,779 170,641
H A Others 3,669 58,983
BFHE N3 Beijing Subtotal 169,905 2,112,069
LR The Bund Side 24,093 566,544
PR 35 3R Chengdu Jade City 158,824 1,091,709
FIE JEUZIR Wuhan Phoenix City 30,429 230,792
AR AR Hefei French Annecy 71,604 332,422
w3t Total 454,855 4,333,536
—RERXF RAEH E B Review on Rental Business in 2007
BIE—ERELEF+ _A=+—8 KAERH As at 31 December 2007, total book value of the Group’s investment
AW ER ERE AL A BHESY. 681 T properties amounted to HK$8,968 million, including a revaluation
HANEE 5§ = 7 - 46 AT do i ik 2 B 7A gain of HK$595 million after deferred taxation according to an
BB R S5 A ESER independent third party’s appraisal. As a result, the investment
Mk EAE AL E £A18.9% o BP9 AL properties accounted for 18.9% of the total asset of the Group.
BRMETHEENWGEERZINEE) 861F During the period, turnover of the rental business and property
ot B KM R20.9% © £ s management business amounted to HK$986 million, representing
F17.4% o EE R LH S LEme R a significant increase of 20.9% over the previous year; while the
A E G EBITDAF &40 JEAR - & percentage to the Group’s total turnover was 17.4% in 2007. Along
ZREXNFHTS. 1% mE) B R L F4 with the surge of turnover of the rental business, the EBITDA profit
80.3% o margin also soared from 78.1% in 2006 to 80.3% in 2007.

28 ZRE kR
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ZERR SR MEHFER BB L LT
E MM EEEFESEAEGR A
/,\714%@#%%’%%0&%%»11%‘@5?5 LN
ke o AL A K R R N LHR325% o b
KRG ERMERI R R A
BRPFBEZBRENF LH6.0% 0 £ B AAFE
Fobg oA KFRAGER T LEFR
JE M0 AL A M S b 5R22.8% oA M £
BHEMEN S EE R MERERNFELT
%

BEHENE

Investment property company

L ERRE Beijing China Resources Building
LR R CR Times Square

I EM PO Shenzhen City Crossing

Bl | CR Land Beijing

W Property Management

In 2007, the substantial improvement in the performance of the
rental business was mainly attributable to both the persistent high
occupancy rate and further increases in rental rates. In particular,
consolidated rental from Shenzhen City Crossing increased by
32.5%. CR Times Square also experienced a growth of 22.8% in its
rental income over 2006, led by a rise in its occupancy rate as well
as an increase of 6.0% in overall rental rates. The following table

sets out the turnover and occupancy rates of the key investment

properties:
BEH GEH000) T ¥k AL E (%)
Turnover (HK$'000) Average Occupancy Rate (%)

—EEEE ZEENHF % yoy —EEEE ERENHF % yoy
2007 2006 % yoy 2007 2006 % yoy
132,153 121,435 8.8 100.0% 96.1% 3.9
164,198 138,949 18.2 95.5% 94.4% 1.1
474,620 370,314 28.2 99.7% 99.1% 0.6
92,467 78,303 18.1 94.5% 95.4% -0.9
122,924 106,859 15.0 N/A N/A N/A

—RREFEER
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AEBERNGEZ LAY EFI T The details of the Group’s key rental properties in the PRC are set

out as follows:

AEE
4 & e
Interest AR | AR JEAL A & & AR
Wk AR B WA Attributable Total Attributable A&
Property name City to the Group GFA GFA Usage
(F7 &)
(Sqm)
|
Y| M — B I Shenzhen 100% 229,938 229,938
Shenzhen City Crossing Phase 1
% R 133,281 133,281 RE
The MIXc Retail
EEIEDEY; § 40,990 40,990 3
China Resources Building Office
1% %35 55,667 55,667 1% %35
Car Park Carpark
PRI 3 58 K L EI| Shenzhen 100% 13,789 13,789 B JE
Hua Rui Building Hotel
LR R i Shanghai 100% 97,139 97,139
Shanghai CR Times Square
e 51,190 51,190 4
Mall Retail
S 3 36,843 36,843 3
Office Office
Elov- 3PN § tw Beijing 100% 65,222 65,222 ey 3
China Resources Building Office
o 5 AR % Beijing 95.62% 36,184 34,599 g
Xidan Cultural Centre Retail
B2 E T tw Beijing 95.62% 14,105 13,487 g
Grand Constellation Shopping Mall Retail
S L3 Beijing 95.62% 10,685 10,217 g
U-Space Mall Retail
Wl 4 £l Beijing 95.62% 17,952 17,166 g
Jing Tong Shops Retail
Ib W EER 7 £ A LY Beijing 95.62% 13,210 12,631 g
Beijing Phoenix City Commercial Street Retail
E PN & Bl Beijing 47.81% 54,214 25,920 XY <
Huawei Centre Residential/Retail
EdhREL AT Beijing 15.29% 70,058 10,712 RSB FH
Huanan Building Retail/Office
a0 w Beijing 95.62% 48,697 46,564 RS V& <4
Others Office/Retail
A & AR 671,193 577,384
Total GFA
Ao REME 502,826 411,067
Comprising: Retail
BT 168,367 166,317
Office
* HAROEEZFTHRINER P SN * Not including Shenzhen City Crossing Phase 2 (191,039 square
191,039-F 7 &~ AL M B £ 3%463,477-F 7 K~ metres), The MIXc in Hangzhou (463,477 square metres), Beijing
Jb AR A #£160,000-F 7 K~ L KEAE Oak Bay (160,000 square metres), Beijing Phoenix Plaza (176,386
& #5176,386-F 7 K o square metres), all of which are currently under construction.

30 —EREFESR
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ERKBEELES (FRNEE) 4 HoE
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FBFH >N T REAFNZTHE R ETHE
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3 5 MR @ o ROE BRI — AT B Kk
TR AR E A2 KRR R =R E
WL EE ST RAER R ER T
ZHIREFERINT2007F 5w FEAR
TP LA AT IR Y T B shehiE Rk
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HAER o

Value Added Service

After the acquisition of construction business (China Resources
Construction Corporation — CRCC), the Group resorted to its
expertise, identified common issues of customers’ concerns in
relation to construction quality and analysed reasons for and worked
out long term solutions to those issues. The Group has established
new residential construction quality standards and management
requirements to further optimise the construction quality
management system of the Group. In 2007, Phase 1 of the Phoenix
City in Wuhan, for which CRCC was the master contractor, was
awarded a “Huanghe Prize” by Wuhan City for its excellence in
quality (K EF X #EH £42), Phase 2 of the Phoenix City in
Wuhan was even granted by Hubei Province as a quality structural
work (¥t 4 1EH 44 42). In addition, the construction quality
of Phase 2 of Shenzhen City Crossing ranked top in Shenzhen City
in 4th quarter inspection of 2007 and was thus received public

praises by the Shenzhen Construction Quality Supervision Centre.

Upon acquisition of decoration business, the Group started to apply
its expertise in process standardization, quality management and
customised service in various projects of the Group. The acquisition
thus benefited the Group in multiple areas such as residential
decoration, showroom decoration, cost control and enhancement

of decoration quality.

—RREFEER
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RN i Land Bank

—ERLHF EREL27.64FTAR W In 2007, the Group added 8.2 million square metres (GFA) to its
B (OERANEENER T ER iffff 9 land bank portfolio at a total cost of RMB12,764 million (including
o AALAVE AR EHERRZ) 8 HF RMB4,241 million as the consideration for land bank acquisition

Ta5é%ﬁ*%i%%%mm@#££k
FRIG W LB EELF LT A

from CRH, which was satisfied entirely by issuing new shares to
CRH). The table below shows the details of the Group’s land bank
newly added in 2007:

HHAR
0B SR
Total Land
Premium/ EHEY
B A PR Wk E AR Acquisition Project
A B %A Project Name City Total GFA Price Type
(F7 K) AR 8 T)
(Sqm) (RMB’0000)

PR AR T Chengdu Oak Bay PRAR 528,156 83,465 BEEAES
Chengdu High Density
Residential
KERTHKAR Wuhan Minzhulu Project K 61,228 16,126 A8 T AEAE
Wuhan High Rise
Commercial
Residential
SReEdE LA R Hefei Parklane Project A He 373,664 35,961 EZe-HE
Hefei Residential/
Commercial
5% F i A Ningbo Tuscany Lake Valley IR 11,554 4,970 PAIRE BAEE
Ningbo Middle-Low
Density
Residential
F i BRI Changsha Phoenix City i 540,000 84,000 mE AT
Changsha High Density
. ) Residential
JEL P AR A B Xiamen Oak Bay JE P9 380,771 195,600 mE AT
Xiamen High Density
. Residential
ER A LR Ningbo Cixi Project SR 367,610 118,500 BEEAET
Ningbo High Density
Residential
REEATEAR Tianjin Shuanggang Project R# 152,200 78,010 T aEEES
Tianjin Middle-High
Density
Residential
FEE A AR Chongging Electric Instrument 2y 572,306 88,763 BEEAES
Factory Project Chongging High Density
Residential
B AtAlEE R Mianyang Project 1y 861,916 55,100 AT EAEE
Mianyang Middle-Low
Density
R . Residential
JbR K #1543 78 B Beijing Daxing 15* Project 13 153,956 91,822 TIRE EAEE
Beijing Middle-Low
Density
Residential
A B F IR MIXc Hangzhou AT 812,980 BE T AEE
Hangzhou Hotel, Mall,
Residential
&5 K Y B KA R Wuxi Taihu International Community (¥ 1,832,426 424,124 e -HE
Wuxi Residential/
Commercial
Xk BAR Dalian China Sea Project X ik 1,501,151 Ee-HE
Dalian Residential/
Commercial

4%t Total 8,149,918 1,276,441

—EREFESR
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m bW LR AEBRATHLE L
W E A 1,779.098 F 7 & (EE@AA) o
PRs A AR E I R LT A

P City

Together with our existing land bank, the aggregate land bank of
the Group amounts to 17.79 million square metres in terms of
gross floor area. Details of land bank except operational rental

properties are listed below:

BRTHE sERHE Wik E @A

Property under Development Completed Property Total GFA
(FF %) (F7 k) (F7 &)

(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)

b Beijing* 1,682,993 302,423 1,985,416
L& Shanghai 491,373 2,083 493,456
R Shenzhen 302,078 - 302,078
ARAR Chengdu 4,714,775 52,092 4,766,867
a4 Wuhan 61,228 53,165 114,393
& e Hefei 482,679 11,949 494,628
AL Hangzhou** 812,980 - 812,980
S gk Wuxi** 1,832,426 - 1,832,426
%k Ningbo 557,562 - 557,562
X ik Dalian 1,501,151 - 1,501,151
-3 Changsha 2,163,471 - 2,163,471
M Suzhou 128,093 - 128,093
k2 3 Chongqing 572,306 - 572,306
1y Mianyang 861,916 - 861,916
BP9 Xiamen 380,771 - 380,771
X iE Tianjin 152,200 - 152,200
3t Total 16,698,002 421,712 17,119,714

* ALk B S L TARAT A A B 945 A97.8% -
AEBAE LT HE L EHI5.62% X HEH

R A
60% Z A% 3 o

L AR R )

2R 0 K Mg 3G A B K S B e HreR
BEE—FTHFETAHA EREHCHELY
ZRENFRGYBIR T EAp E R R L F
JEAG1618 (FTENT B P RSB
M~ Fe Kik) o

* The Group’s interest in Oak Bay Project in Beijing is 97.8%, and
interest in other Beijing projects is 95.62%.

**  The Group’s interests in Hangzhou and Wuxi Projects are both
60%.

Substantial increase in land bank of the Group has further solidified
its foundation for continuous growth. Along with additions of our
land bank, the Group’s geographic reach has been extended
accordingly to Chongqing, Xiamen, Tianjin, Mianyang, Hangzhou,
Wuxi and Dalian, making it from 9 at the end of 2006 to 16 cities
by the end of 2007.
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Fund-raising through Share Placement,
Borrowings and Debt Ratio

In May 2007, the Group raised a net proceed of approximately
HK$3,922 million by placing 400 million new shares at a net price
of HK$9.81 per share to independent investors. As of 31 December
2007, the Group had consolidated borrowings of HK$15,434 million,
as well as cash and bank balances of HK$4,517 million. The Group’s
net debt to equity ratio stood at 49.3%.

As of 31 December 2007, 46.6% and 53.4% of the Group’s borrowings
were denominated in Renminbi and HK dollars respectively. Among
the total borrowings, approximately 17.6% of the bank borrowings
are repayable within one year while the rests are all long term
borrowings. As of 31 December 2007, all of the Group’s borrowings
denominated in foreign currencies are interest-bearing at floating
interest rates. The Group managed to maintain its borrowing cost
at relatively low levels. The Group’s current borrowing costs of the
HK dollar loans were HIBOR+40bp (all-in) and that of Renminbi
loans stood at 10% below the benchmark interest rate, which is the
lowest level permitted by relevant regulations. The weighted average
interest rate for bank loans was approximately 5.3% per annum

during the year.

To prepare for our future development needs, the Group obtained
HK$5,000 million 5-year new loans in 2007 at an all-in cost of
HIBOR plus 0.40%, timely capitalized on the abundant pool of HK
dollars in the capital market and the prevailing low-cost funding

opportunity.
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Employee and Remuneration Policy

As of 31 December 2007, the Group employed approximately 3,073
full time staff in Mainland China and Hong Kong (including its
property management and agency subsidiaries). The Group
remunerates its employees based on their performance, work
experience and the prevailing market wage level. In addition,
performance bonuses are granted on a discretionary basis. Other
employee benefits include provident fund, insurance and medical

coverage as well as share option scheme.
By order of the Board

Wang Yin

Managing Director

28 March 2008, Hong Kong
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Executive Directors

MR. SONG LIN, aged 45, was appointed Chairman of the Company
in February 2006. He is concurrently Vice Chairman and President
of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and China
Resources National Corporation, Chairman of China Resources
Enterprise, Limited, China Resources Power Holdings Company
Limited as well as China Resources Microelectronics Limited. Mr.
Song is the Deputy Chairman of China Vanke Co., Ltd., a listed
company in China. He is also an Independent Non-Executive
Director of Geely Automobile Holdings Limited and The Bank of
East Asia (China) Limited. Mr. Song has extensive experience in
corporate management and is currently responsible for the overall
business development and strategic planning of the Group’s
businesses. Mr. Song holds a Bachelor’s degree in Solid Mechanics
from the University of Tong Ji in Shanghai, China. He joined China
Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in 1985.

MR. WANG YIN, aged 52, was appointed Managing Director of the
Company in 2001. He is responsible for the execution of strategies
and day-to-day operation of the Group. He is also a Director and a
Deputy President of China Resources (Holdings) Company Ltd. and
a Director of China Resources National Corporation. Mr. Wang is
also a Director of China Vanke Co., Ltd., a listed company in China.
Mr. Wang earned his Bachelor’s degree in Economics from
Shangdong University in China and MBA degree from the University
of San Francisco in the United States. He joined China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited in 1984.
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Non-Executive Directors

MR. JIANG WEI, aged 45, was appointed Non-Executive Director of
the Company in February 2006. Mr. JIANG is currently a Director,
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited and China Resources National
Corporation. Mr. Jiang is a Non-Executive Director of China
Resources Enterprise, Limited, China Resources Power Holdings
Company Limited, China Resources Logic Limited, China Resources
Microelectronics Limited, China Assets (Holdings) Limited and is
also an Executive Director of Cosmos Machinery Enterprises Limited
and an Independent Non-Executive Director of Greentwon China
Holdings Limited. He is also a Director of China Vanke Co., Ltd., a
listed company in China. Mr. Jiang obtained both his Bachelor’s
degree in International Trade and Master’s degree in International
Business and Finance from the University of International Business
and Economics in Beijing, China. He joined China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited in 1988.

MR. YAN BIAO, aged 46, was appointed Executive Director of the
Company in 1996 and was re-designated as Non-Executive Director
in February 2006. Mr. Yan is a Director of China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited and China Resources National
Corporation. He is also a Non-Executive Director of China Resources
Enterprise, Limited and is the Director of Legal Affairs of the China
Resources Group. He has a Bachelor of Laws degree from the Peking
University, China and an MBA degree from the University of San
Francisco in the United States. He joined China Resource (Holdings)

Company Limited in 1985.

MR. LIU YANIJIE, aged 51, was appointed Non-Executive Director of
the Company in February 2006. Mr. Liu is an Assistant President of
China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and General Manager
of the Personnel Department of China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited. He has a Bachelor’s degree from Renmin
University, China. He joined China Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited in 1991.
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MR. LI FUZUO, aged 43, was appointed Non-Executive Director of
the Company in August 2007. He is currently an Assistant President
of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and General
Manager of its Strategy Management Department. He is also a Non-
Executive Director of China Resources Logic Limited, China
Resources Microelectronics Limited and China Resources Enterprise,
Limited. Mr. Li obtained both his Bachelor’s and Master’s Degrees
in Mechanical Manufacturing Engineering from the Beijing
University of Aeronautics and Astronautics. He joined China

Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in 1990.

MR. DU WENMIN, aged 44, was appointed Non-Executive Director
of the Company in August 2007. He is the President of the Internal
Audit Department of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited
and Non-Executive Director of China Resources Enterprise, Limited,
China Resources Logic Limited and China Resources
Microelectronics Limited. Mr. Du has an MBA degree from the
University of San Francisco, USA and also holds the professional
qualification of Economist issued by the Ministry of Commerce and
the Evaluation Committee of China Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited. He joined China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited
in 1985.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

MR. WANG SHI, aged 57, was appointed Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in 1997. Mr. Wang is also the Chairman of
China Vanke Co., Ltd., which is listed on the Stock Exchange in
Shenzhen, China. Mr. Wang is also an Independent Non-Executive
Director of SOHU.Com Inc. and Shanghai Metersbonwe Fashion
and Accessories Co., Ltd. He has a Bachelor of Science degree from

Lanzhou Railway College in China.

MR. HO HIN NGAI, BOSCO, aged 62, was appointed Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company in 2005. Mr. Ho is the
founder of Ho & Partners Architects Engineers and Development
Consultants Limited. He is Authorized Person-Architect, Hong Kong,
Member of Hong Kong Institute of Architects and Associate of Royal
Institute of British Architects.
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MR. CHAN MO PO, PAUL, aged 53, was appointed Independent
Non- Executive Director of the Company in July 2006. He also
serves as Chairman of the Company’s Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee. He is the Chairman of PCP CPA Limited.
He is also an Independent Non- Executive Director of publicly listed
China Communication Services Corporation Limited, Hong Kong
Economic Times Holdings Limited, Kingmaker Footwear Holdings
Limited and The Wharf (Holdings) Limited.

Mr. Chan is a graduate of The Chinese University of Hong Kong
where he obtained both his Bachelor’s and Master’s degrees in
Business Administration. Mr. Chan is a Practising Certified Public
Accountant in Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (“ACCA”), CPA
Australia, the Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors, the
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Institute of
Company Secretaries. Mr. Chan has over 30 years’ experience in
accounting and finance fields and is a former president of the
HKICPA. He is also a former president of the ACCA - Hong Kong.
In 2006, he was awarded a Medal of Honour by the Government of
HKSAR and in 2007 was appointed a Justice of the Peace. In 2008,
he was appointed a member of Shanghai City’s Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference. Recently, Mr. Chan has also been
appointed an advisor to the Accounting Standards Committee of
The Ministry of Finance of PRC.

MR. ANDREW Y. YAN, aged 50, was appointed Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in July 2006. He also serves as
the Chairman of the Company’s Remuneration Committee.
Currently, he is the Managing Partner of SAIF Partners III and SB
Asia Investment Fund II, and the Executive Managing Director of
Softbank Asia Infrastructure Fund (SAIF). Besides, Mr. Yan is also
an Independent Non-Executive Director of China Oilfield Service
Limited, Fosun International Ltd. and Stone Group Holdings Ltd.,

all three are listed companies in Hong Kong.

—RREFEER
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Mr. Yan received his first Master’s degree in Sociology and
Economics from Beijing University in 1986 and second Master’s
degree from Princeton University in the United States in 1989. He
obtained his Bachelor’s degree in Engineering from the Nanjing
Aeronautic Institute in the PRC.

Senior Management

MR. WU XIANGDONG, aged 41, is the Senior Vice President of the
Company and the General Manager of China Resources (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd. Mr. Wu has a double Bachelor’s degree in Architectural
Management and Mechanics from Tsinghua University, China and
an MBA degree from the University of San Francisco in the United
States. Mr. Wu has experience in corporate management and
commercial property operation. Mr. Wu joined China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited in 1993 and was the Vice General

Manager of China Resources Property Management Limited.

MR. CHEN YING, aged 38, is an Assistant Vice President of the
Company and the General Manager of China Resources Land(Beijing)
Company Limited. Mr. Chen has a Bachelor’s degree in Architectural
Management from Tsinghua University, China and an MBA degree
from the University of Oxford. Mr. Chen is also a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers. He has experience
in property management and corporate management. Mr. Chen
joined China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in 1993, and
had worked for China Resources Construction (Holdings) Co., Ltd.

MR. TANG YONG, aged 37, is an Assistant Vice President of the
Company and the General Manager of China Resources Land
(Chengdu) Limited. Mr. Tang has a Bachelor’s degree in Industrial
and Electrical Automation from Tongji University, China and an
MBA degree from the University of San Francisco in the United
States. Mr. Tang has experience in property management and
corporate management. Mr. Tang joined China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited in 1993, and had worked for China Resources

Property Management Limited.
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MR. WANG GUOHUA, aged 45, is the General Manager of Corporate
Finance and Planning Department of the Company. Mr. Wang
received his Bachelor’s degree in Inorganic High-temperature-
resistant Materials Engineering from Wuhan Polytech University
and then Master of Science degree in International Banking and
Finance from Heriott-Watt University in Edinburgh, the UK. as a
recipient of Senior Scholarship of British Foreign Office. He joined
the Company in 2006. Prior to that, Mr. Wang had worked for over
10 years in Edinburgh, London and Hong Kong respectively with
several renowned international investment banks in areas of fund

management, equity research and corporate finance.

MS. ZHANG XIAOFENG, aged 38, is the Financial Controller of the
Company. Ms. Zhang has a Master’s degree in Economics from
Capital University of Economics and Business. She is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA),
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA), and
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants (CICPA). Ms. Zhang
had worked for a well-known accounting firm. She joined the

Company in 2003.

—EREFESR
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K# Song Lin
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The Company recognises the importance of maintaining high
standards of corporate governance to the long-term stable
development of the Group. The Company has adopted the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices set out in the Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
A review of the Company’s corporate governance in 2007 is set out

as follows:

A.1 The Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the issuer
and for the overall enhancement of the issuer’s business towards
success. The Board should make objective decisions to the interests

of the issuer.

. As at 31 December 2007, the Board of the Company comprised
11 directors, including 2 executive directors, 5 non-executive
directors and 4 independent non-executive directors. Members
of the Board are not related to each other and the Chairman
is not related to the members of the Board, including financial,
business, family or other significant relationship. In

accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules, the

Company has received confirmation from each of the

independent non-executive directors, confirming their

independence.

. The Board meets at least four times a year, to review the
financial performance of the Company, any major agenda and
other matters requiring decision of the Board. The attendance

of directors in meetings held in 2007 is detailed as follows:

C D

Attendance

3/4
4/4
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TERL R R e P 4
Name of Director Attendance
JE# A7 F F Non-Executive Director
# 1% Jiang Wei 1/4
4 B& Yan Biao 0/4
%) # & Liu Yan Jie 1/4
# & Xie Sheng Xi (20078 A 31 B i#:4E) (resigned on 31 August 2007) 2/2%*
Z=454F Li Fuzuo (74200748 A 31 8 %% £&1%) (appointed on 31 August 2007) 2/2%
M XK, Du Wenmin (#200748 A 31 B ¥ %&4%) (appointed on 31 August 2007) 2/2%
B 5 JF#47% F Independent Non-Executive Director
X % Wang Shi 1/4
7% 7% Chan Mo Po, Paul 4/4
fT#2 % Ho Hin Ngai, Bosco 3/4
M # Andrew Y. Yan 1/4
PH 320 {/{1%? BAEZ AT a2 B MRk EE o Note: * Before the date of resignation, there were two board meetings.

Gl ER A NS EBHRAEE #* After the date of appointment, there were two board meetings.

& o
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All directors have access to advice and services of the Company
Secretary, who is responsible for ensuring that Board
procedures are complied with;

Minutes of meetings of the Board and Board Committees are
kept by a designated secretary and are available for the
inspection of directors upon notice of a reasonable period;

The Board has established a policy for directors to seek
professional advice, whereby directors may seek independent
professional advice after appropriate procedures at the
Company’s expense;

If a substantial shareholder or director has a conflict of interest
in a material matter in respect of matters to the consideration
of the Board, such matter shall not be considered by means of
document circulation. Independent non-executive directors
who have no significant interests in the transaction shall
attend the relevant Board meeting.

Deviation: None.

—EREFEER
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A.2 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Issuer should separate its operating management into two major
aspects: management of the Board and day-to-day management of
the issuers’ business. On the Board level, the two aspects must be
clearly distinguished to ensure a balance allocation of power and

authority.

The posts of Chairman and Managing Director of the Company are
held separately by Mr. Song Lin and Mr. Wang Yin respectively. The
segregation of duties of the Chairman and the Managing Director
ensures a clear distinction in the Chairman’s responsibility to
manage the Board and the Managing Director’s responsibility to

manage the Company’s day-to-day business.
Deviation: None.

A.3 Board Composition

The board should have a balance of skills and experience appropriate
to the requirements of the business of the issuer, and should ensure
that any change in composition shall not cause any undue
disruption. The Board should have a balanced composition of
executive and non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) to ensure the adequate independence of the
board so that independent judgment can effectively be exercised.
There should be a sufficient number of non-executive directors with

appropriate skills to reach influential advice.

. Members of the Board and their detailed biographies are set
out on Pages 36 to 40 . All corporate correspondence which
sets out names of directors clearly state the identity of each
director, including executive director, non-executive director

and independent non- executive directors.

Deviation: None.
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written terms of reference. Its duties included those required
under Code Provision A.4.5(a) to (d).

Members of Nomination Committee include three independent
non-executive directors namely, Mr. Chan Mo Po, Paul
(Chairman), Mr. Andrew Y. Yan, Mr. Ho Hin Ngai, and Mr.
Song Lin. The duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board
and to make recommendation after such review and to assess
the suitability and qualification of any proposed director
candidate. The recommendations of the Nomination
Committee are then put forward for consideration and

adoption, when appropriate, by the Board.

On 31 August, 2007, non-executive director Mr. Xie Sheng Xi
resigned due to personal reason. On the same day, Mr. Li
Fuzuo and Mr. Du Wenmin were appointed as non-executive
directors of the Company through a written Board resolutions
signed by all directors. The detailed biographies of the two

directors are set out on Page 38.

2007 R L X B ERBEBEFE TR EL T Attendance of members of the Nomination Committee at meetings
held in 2007 is detailed as follows:

TFLL

Name of Director

K# Song Lin

17 B8 Ho Hin Ngai, Bosco
B % % Chan Mo Po, Paul
® # Andrew Y. Yan

CR V&

Attendance

0/1
1/1
1/1
0/1

—RREFEER
Annual Report 2007

45



46

X EIRE

Corporate Governance Report

EBRFEN RLELZBEOEFGERE
1B AE b A R AL RE A B AN S EH
TEERLEBGOCHRBREZITBEARLE
Bk o 3 A4 o

o AN+ L EABIEHITETHLE
BlE A B A A W LB 5 IEHAT
TERBELFHAANEZSALE=L
BIFPFTEFHRKER - ZFE
FE i EF AL E38E40H o

e ER AT B EIATEETR R LA
A M AR A GRS R =
VASR A8 i EF (B
TRIFFATEE) Y REH A
HIE AR A RN G TARHZ
1 EF (O IAT R IR
FTEFE)ZF PRI BT K
BAEF i B b AN E] SHRIRT
PR N F) A b E R R
T A P ey LT R F Rk

A RBENF LR =+ 8 A7
WRRRFRE L HRRE—TE
hARE ETEFARAF AR
RAEBANE FHITEF A2
ARAE F R A B AL245 0 LA EE
BEamkEENEEEIE
TREHGETERAERRE (=
EEEF+ A=+ —HB R
ZANIEEHANKREG) L2
B FAE IR o

= FFLFRFR
Annual Report 2007

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee has
recommended the Board to appoint Mr. Li Fuzuo and Mr. Du
Wenmin as non-executive directors of the Company after assessing

their qualification and experience.

o The experience and views of independent non-executive
directors are held in high regard. The Company has appointed
4 independent non-executive directors, exceeding the
minimum requirements under the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors. The detailed biographies are set out on Pages 38 to
40.

Deviation: Except independent non-executive Mr. Chan Mo Po, Paul
and Mr. Andrew Y. Yan have been appointed for a fixed
term of three years, all directors of the Company
(including executive and non-executive directors) are not
appointed for a fixed period, but the articles of the
Company stipulate that every director (including
executive and non-executive directors) retires and be re-
elected at least once every three years. Therefore, the
Company has adopted adequate measures to ensure the
corporate governance of the Company complies with the

same level to that required under the Code.

At the annual general meeting to be held on 30 May
2008, a resolution will be put forth to approve the re-
election of Mr. Li Fuzuo and Mr. Du Wenmin as directors
of the Company. However, according to the code provision
A.4.2, all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall
be subject to election by shareholders at the first general
meeting after their appointment, i.e. the general meeting
of the Company held on 21 December 2007.
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A.5 Responsibilities of Directors

All directors are required to keep abreast of their responsibilities as
a director and of the conduct, business activities and development
of that issuer. Since the Board is an overall group in substance,
non-executive and executive directors should equally be required

to act in a cautious and skillful manner.

. Every newly appointed director shall receive a comprehensive
and formal induction on the responsibilities of directors and

to ensure that the directors understand their duties;

. Non-executive directors of the Company are equipped with
adequate experience and skills to fully participate in the Board
to perform the functions under Code Provisions A.5.2(a) to
(d);

. Every director shall acknowledge that sufficient time should

be contributed to the affairs of the Company;

o The Company has adopted the "Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers" as set out in
Appendix10 of the Listing Rules ("Model Code") as the code of
best practices for the securities transactions by directors of
the Company. After specific enquiries by the Company, all
directors confirm that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the year under review. The Company has
also formulated a code of conduct for the securities
transactions by relevant officers to govern the securities
transactions of officers who come into contact with price-

sensitive information due to their office.

Deviation: None.

—RREFEER
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A.6 Supply of and Access to Information
Directors should be provided in a timely manner with appropriate
information so as to enable them to make an informed decision and

to discharge their duties and responsibilities as a director.

. Documents of meetings are generally sent to members of the
Board or Board Committees three days before the meetings of

the Board or Board Committee.
Deviation: None.

B.1 Remuneration of Directors and Senior
Management

Issuer shall establish a formal and transparent procedure for setting

policies for fixing the remuneration packages of directors. No

director shall be involved in deciding his own remuneration.

o The Company has set up a Remuneration Committee with
specific written terms of reference. Its duties include those

required under Code Provisions B.1.3(a) to (f).

o A majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee
of the Company are independent non-executive directors. Mr.
Andrew Y. Yan is the Chairman and other members include
Mr. Ho Hin Ngai, Bosco, Mr. Chan Mo Po, Paul and Mr. Wang
Yin.
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During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee
reviewed the incentive mechanism of the Company and approved
remuneration of members of the board and senior management.

Deviation: None.

C.1 Financial Reporting
The Board should present a balanced, clear and comprehensible
assessment of the issuer’s performance, state of affairs and prospects.

. The directors are responsible for the supervision of the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company, to
ensure that the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the operating and financial status of the Company. In the
preparation of the financial statements as at 31 December
2007, the directors of the Company have selected and applied
appropriate accounting policies and have made cautious and
reasonable judgments and estimates based on the principle of
going concern;

. In 2007, audit fees were approximately HK$1,250,000 and there
were no fees for non-audit related services;

. The statement of responsibilities expressed by the auditor of
the Company is set out in the Auditors’ Report on page 75.

Deviation: None.

C.2 Internal Controls

The Board should maintain a sound and effective internal controls
system to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the issuer’s
assets.

The Board is responsible for the internal control system of the
Company and conduct regular review on the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Company. During the year under
review, the Board believes the current internal control system has
been further improved and is sound and effective to safeguard the
shareholders’ investments and the issuer’s assets.

Deviation: None.

—RREFEER
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All members of the Audit Committee of the Company are
independent non-executive directors, including Mr. Chan Mo
Po, Paul (Chairman), Mr. Wang Shi, Mr. Ho Hin Ngai, Bosco,
and Mr. Andrew Y. Yan, while Mr. Chan Mo Po, Paul holds

accounting-related professional qualifications;

Current terms of reference of the Audit Committee of the
Company include the duties set out in Code Provisions C.3.3
(a) to (n);

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held two
meetings to review the financial statements of the Company
and discussed with the external auditor the impacts of the
changes in accounting policies on the Company, the
application of accounting standards and of the Listing Rules
etc. and made recommendations thereof, as well as advising
the management on the enhancement of the level of corporate

governance of the Company on an on- going basis;

Attendance of members of the Audit Committee at meetings
held in 2007 is detailed as follows:

D&
Attendence

0/2
2/2
2/2
2/2

Minutes of the meetings of the Audit Committee are kept by a

designated secretary and sent to all members of the Board.

Deviation: None.
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D.1 Delegation by the Board
An issuer should have a formal schedule of matters reserved to the
board for its decision and should give clear directions to

management as to the matters that must be approved by the Board.

o The Board is responsible for the formulation of strategies,
objectives and business plans for the Company, and to
supervise and control the implementation of strategies of the
Company and its operations and financial performance. In
addition, the Board is also responsible for maintaining a high

standard of corporate governance of Company.

o The Board delegates the duties of the implementation of
strategies and the decision-making of daily operations to the
Managing Director. The Management regularly meets to review
the strategic goals, corporate structure, operating procedures,
budget implementation, major projects and business plans of

the Company.
Deviation: None.

E.1 Effective Communication
The Board should endeavour to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, use annual general meetings to

communicate with shareholders.

o The Company enhances the communication with Shareholders
by means of publication of interim and annual results report
and press release and timely publication of information on
the website of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

. Due to business trip, Chairman of the Company did not attend
the annual general meeting held no 4 June 2007. All general
meetings where approvals for connected transactions were
being sought for had been attended by independent non-

executive directors to address queries from shareholders.
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. The Company also promotes the communication with
shareholders through various investor relation activities to
provide shareholders with more channels to understand the

strategies and the latest development of the Company.

During the year under review, the Company participated in
roadshows in Hong Kong, Singapore, London, New York City and
Sydney organised by Deutsche Bank, Citigroup, Credit Suisse and
Macquarie respectively, covering issues on the results announcement
and significant acquisitions and presented to the investors operating
results, development strategies and latest business status of the

Company.

At the same time, the Company participated in various investment
conferences held by CLSA, Citigroup, Macquarie, Deutsche Bank,
BNP Paribas in Hong Kong, Beijing, Shanghai, Xiamen, Macau,
Singapore, and frequently met on an one-on-one basis with fund
managers and investors in Hong Kong and overseas, as well as
arranged on-site visits to the Company’s properties to actively create
opportunities for communication with the investors, so as to enable
them to timely understand the latest business development of the
Company and the industry environment of the real estate business
of China to enhance their understanding and confidence to the

Company.

Looking ahead, we will continue to improve and perfect the
communication with investors and to provide them with more
opportunities to understand the business of the Company as well as
to enable the management of the Company to have a better
understanding of the requirements of the market on the Company,
with an aim to continue to enhance the internal management,

profitability and governance of the Company.

Deviation: Due to business trip, Chairman of the Company did not

attend the annual general meeting held on 4 June 2007.
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E.2 Voting by Poll

The issuer should regularly inform shareholders of the procedures
for voting by poll and ensure compliance with the requirements
about voting by poll contained in the Listing Rules and the

constitutional documents of the issuer.

Details on the procedures for voting by poll of the Company are set
out in the shareholder circular convening the general meeting.
When voting on resolutions requiring a poll, the Company engages

external scrutineer to ensure proper counting of the votes.

Deviation: None.
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The directors have pleasure in submitting to shareholders their
report and audited financial statements of the Company and the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2007.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
the activities of its principal subsidiaries and associates are shown
on page 144 to 151.

The segment information of the Group is set out in note 6 to the

financial statements.

Group Profit
The consolidated income statement set out on page 77 shows the

Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2007.

Dividends

The Board of Directors recommend the declaration of a final dividend
of HK7.4 cents (2006: HK5.1 cents) per share, together with the
interim dividend of HK2.4 cents per share, dividends per share for
the year amounting to HK9.8 cents. The final dividend is payable
on 30 June 2008 to shareholders whose names appear on the Register
of Members of the Company on 30 May 2008.

Property, Plan and Equipment
Movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are

set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

Properties
A schedule of the principal properties of the Group is set out on
pages 3 to 19.

Share Capital

Movements in share capital during the year are set out in note 32

to the financial statements.
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Distributable Reserves at the Company

The Company’s reserves available for distribution represent the share
premium and retained profits. Under the Companies Law (Revised)
Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands, the share premium of the
Company is available for paying distributions or dividends to
shareholders subject to the provisions of its Memorandum and
Articles of Association and provided that immediately following the
distribution or dividend, the Company is able to pay its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business. Reserves of the
Company available for distribution to shareholders as at 31
December 2007 amounted to HK$16,715,857,000 (2006:
HK$8,276,601,000).

Directors
The directors who held office during the year and at the date this

report are:

Chairman
Mr. Song Lin

Managing Director
Mr. Wang Yin

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Jiang Wei
Mr. Yan Biao
Mr. Liu Yan Jie
Mr. Xie Sheng Xi
(Resigned on 31 August 2007)
Mr. Li Fuzuo
(Appointed on 31 August 2007)
Mr. Du Wenmin
(Appointed on 31 August 2007)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wang Shi

Mr. Chan Mo Po, Paul

Mr. Andrew Y. Yan

Mr. Ho Hin Ngai, Bosco
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According to Articles 99 and 116 of the Articles of Association of
the Company, Mr. Song Lin, Mr. Jiang Wei, Mr. Liu Yan Jie, Mr. Li
Fuzuo, Mr. Du Wenmin and Mr. Wang Shi shall retire and are

eligible for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received the annual confirmation of independence
from all the independent non-executive directors, and considers
that all the independent non-executive directors are independent of

the Company.

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management
Biographical details of the Directors and senior management are

set out on pages 36 to 41.

Share Option Schemes
The Company operates share option schemes for the purpose of
promoting additional commitment and dedication to the objective
of the Company by the participants. During the year under review,
the Company operates two share option schemes, namely the “New
Scheme” and the “Old Scheme”.

The Old Scheme refers to the share option scheme which subsisted
until 31 January 2002 and was terminated on 31 January 2002.
Eligible participants of the Old Scheme were the employees of the
Company and its subsidiaries (including the directors). The
maximum entitlement of each participant did not exceed the
maximum limit as permitted by the Listing Rules applicable before
1 September 2001. The exercise prices of the share options were
determined at the entire discretion of the board of directors, but
did not exceed the maximum discount permitted by the Listing

Rules applicable prior to 1 September 2001.
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The New Scheme refers to the share option scheme which was
approved by the shareholders in the extraordinary general meeting
held on 31 January 2002 and shall expire on 31 January 2012. The
board of directors of the Company may grant options to eligible
participants including employees, executive or non-executive
directors of the Group (or any proposed candidates), any
discretionary object of a discretionary trust established by any
employee, executive or non-executive director of the Group, any
executive or employee (or any proposed candidates) of consultants,
professional and other advisors to the Group, chief executive,
substantial shareholders of the Company, associated companies of
the Group, associates of directors, chief executive and substantial
shareholders of the Company, and employees of substantial
shareholders. The maximum entitlement of each participant
(including options to be granted to the directors, chief executive or
substantial shareholders or any of their respective associates) is
equal to the maximum limit permitted under the prevailing Listing
Rules. The exercise prices of the share options are determined

pursuant to the provision of prevailing Listing Rules.

As at the date of this report, the number of shares available for
issue under the New Scheme is 355,410,869 shares and represents

8.81% of the issued share capital of the Company.

The offer of a grant of share options under both schemes may be
accepted within 28 days from the date of the offer upon the payment

of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.

Share options disclosed below and granted on or after 31 January
2002 were issued under the New Scheme while the remaining
options were under the Old Scheme. Share options granted under
the Old Scheme are exercisable before 27 May 2007, and those
under the New Scheme are exercisable for a period of ten years
from the date of grant. Certain share options are fully vested or
exercisable within ten years from the date of grant while part of

them are vested within four years after the date of grant.
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BT LM EHRI ARFEN ANFZ Save as disclosed below, no other share options has been granted
FTEATHRAHR T 2R EIEFE HIH or exercised, in accordance with the terms of the relevant share
PAREZHRRZ BB HRGREA W option scheme during the year in relation to each of the directors,
Ry B ME 3 & AR % B AT 18 b T chief executive, substantial shareholders of the Company or their
i A 4 o respective associates and employees of substantial shareholders.
(F) % F (a) Directors
AZRELFT_A=+—8 T3l As at 31 December 2007, the following directors had interests
FTEHARERNE - E R LM in respect of options to subscribe for shares under both New
A E R TRARBAY ZMHER: and Old Schemes of the Company:
A E B R A
L5 %t & Price of the
Number of share option"! Company's share®
20074 20074 HK$
1418 AAAH ARHM ARHM AR 124318 T Li i
HAFR £ fix: 8 5 [ 4 # AR Bh B BB
#4BH AHEREE  Outstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed  Outstanding For For
I Date of Exercise at during during during during at option option
#4 Name Capacity Grant Price 11112007 the period the period the period the period 31/12/2007 granted exercised
% # || Song Lin FABAA 1/6/2005 1.23 900,000 - - - - 900,000 - -
Beneficial owner
H#&K|| LiuYan Jie FAHEAA 1/6/2005 1.23 500,000 - 250,000 - - 250,000 - 9.56
Beneficial owner
|| LiFuo  FAHAA 1/6/2005 123 500,000% - 250,000 = = 250,000 = 9.56
Beneficial owner
#LK || DuWenmin & H5H A 1/6/2005 1.23 250,000% - - - - 250,000 - -
Beneficial owner

* ERAFEARBEIREAEAA KRR L * Mr. Li Fuzuo and Mr. Du Wenmin were appointed non-executive
ENA Z+— B HRAE A KN E) JEH directors of the Company on 31 August 2007.
fTEFe

PH 3% Notes:

1. FEr BARESC R 35 I AR R X R 1. Number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares
) 48 M B Ay o in the Company covered by the share options.

2. FEATE A B HE T 2 K 8] Ik 2. The price for the Company’s share disclosed for the options
AR M B B Ry BAMEATAE B AT — exercised during the year is the weighted average of the closing
18X 5 B Ay AT P AT 3L TR 2 prices quoted on the Stock Exchange immediately before the date
I HET 3 o of exercise of options.
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(b) Employees

and other participants

Details of share options granted to the employees (other than

directors) of the Group and other participants by the Company

8 are set out below:
(i) H®E(FRE&#EZTF) (i)  Employees (Other than directors)
A R RAY
BT
Bty s Price of the
Number of share option” Company’s share®
20074 AAHH ARHM ARHM ARHM 20074 HK$
1A18 Ed] x4 B2 % 2 12A318 X4 eATH
i KA Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed MR iR Bt B A
#EaH A1 AR Outstanding during during during during  Outstanding For option For option
Date of Grant Exercise Price at 1/1/2007 the period the period the period the period at 31/12/2007 granted exercised
217/6/1997 4.592 11,718,000* — 5,793,000 - 5,925,000 — — 9.57
20/7/2000 0.99 1,990,000* - 340,000 - 1,650,000 - 9.48
15/4/2002 1.61 960,000 — 960,000 - — — — 12.06
7/10/2002 0.96 1,350,000 — 150,000 - — 1,200,000 — 11.02
28/4/2004 1.04 10,204,500 - 6,909,500 - - 3,295,000 10.79
29/4/2005 1.42 7,110,000 — 1,297,500 - — 5,812,500 — 11.85
2/6/2005 1.27 500,000 — 250,000 - — 250,000 — 11.70
27/6/2005 1.34 600,000 - 200,000 - - 400,000 11.70
3/1/2006 3.225 30,700,000 — 6,000,000 - — 24,700,000 — 11.23
17/2/2006 3.965 2,000,000 — 125,000 - — 1,875,000 — 7.70
26/6/2006 3.58 3,800,000 - 950,000 - - 2,850,000 11.70
M2z Notes:
1. Ry A HE S B 35 Ly B HE R 1. Number of share options refers to the number of underlying
Z R B A8 A o shares in the Company covered by the share options.
2. e AT R B P B 2 K 2. The price for the Company’s share disclosed for the options

2> 8] AN AR #e 0 Ko & MY SAAEAT
B AT — 183 5 B R A AT
ST P 4ROBCT AR Z A HET 3 B

exercised during the year is the weighted average of the
closing prices quoted on the Stock Exchange immediately
before the date of exercise of options.

—EREFESR
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(ii) H b 2 (ii)  Other participants
A R RAY
BT
Bty s Price of the
Number of share option” Company’s share®
20074 ARHH ARHM ARHM ARHM 20074 HK$
1A1R Ed] fix:d B2 % 12A318 X4 eATH
i kAT Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed MR B A A Bt A A
ZEBH AT AR A Outstanding during during during during  Outstanding For option For option
Date of Grant Exercise Price at 1/1/2007 the period the period the period the period at 31/12/2007 granted exercised
4/3/2002 1.59 10,710,000 — 5,720,000 - — 4,990,000 — 11.22
1/6/2005 1.23* 7,450,000 — 4,100,000 - — 3,350,000 — 9.56
* ORI EEHRERALIENE * Including renumbering due to the resignation and
2] 4o appointment of directors.
Mez: Notes:
1. Ry BAMES B 35 By B M & 1. Number of share options refers to the number of underlying
Z Ko E) A8 B Ay o shares in the Company covered by the share options.
2. EATIE R AT B X A 2. The price for the Company’s share disclosed for the options
) AR A B B IR Ay B AEAT exercised during the year is the weighted average of the
1# B 23T —18 X 5 B KAy AT closing prices quoted on the Stock Exchange immediately
R B 4RO T AR 2 A AT 3 Ho before the date of exercise of options.
SEELEEER
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Directors’ Interest in Securities

As at 31 December 2007, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which have been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO, including interests and short positions which
the directors and chief executive of the Company are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO, or which are
required to be recorded in the register maintained pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise required to be notified to
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for

Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model

Code”) contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:

(F) ARG CBATEE BB AL WM B b (@) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of
WA IR the Company:

R EE O EAEHER T 5

HwEEE 7% & Number of Aggregate

Long positions/ Number underlying EL percentage

EiFA Name Short positions of Shares shares™ Capacity of interest®

R H Song Lin ks — 900,000 FHHFAA 0.022
Long position Beneficial Owner

I ¥ Wang Yin T A 5,230,000 — FHEFAA 0.130
Long position Beneficial Owner

W E Jiang Wei ks 892,000 - FHRHFAA 0.022
Long position Beneficial Owner

G- Yan Biao T A 1,992,000 - FHEFAA 0.049
Long position Beneficial Owner

B & A& Liu Yan Jie ks 550,000 250,000 FHRFAA 0.020
Long position Beneficial Owner

& 43 AF Li Fuzuo ks 750,000 250,000 FHRFAA 0.025
Long position Beneficial Owner

R, Du Wenmin F A 790,000 250,000 FHEHAA 0.026
Long position Beneficial Owner

—RREFEER 61
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Notes:

1)

This refers to underlying shares of the Company covered by share
options granted as detailed above under the section headed “Share
Option Schemes”, such options being unlisted physically settled
equity derivatives.

This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in
shares and underlying shares of the Company to the total issued
share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2007.

A [ v — 2= H A3 N nterests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares o
(T) ARG A0 E— FHA XA BA (b) Interest d ord h d underlying sh f
A ([EMAEl o iTtamAimu China Resources Enterprise, Limited (“CRE”), an associated
Bty oA o HE corporation of the Company:
MR ERD S AEHE B T
S 7% & Number of Aggregate
Long positions/ Number of underlying percentage
Ei P Name Short positions Shares sharesV of interest®
 #H Song Lin & 1,700,000 — 0.071
Long position
I ¥ Wang Yin A& 28,000 — 0.001
Long position
EL 3 Jiang Wei & 240,000 — 0.010
Long position
[ Yan Biao F & 500,000 — 0.021
Long position
H LK Du Wenmin & 100,000 — 0.004
Long position
PH 3 Notes:
(1) s EmMa £ R pHad] e (1) This refers to underlying shares of CRE, covered by share option
% 2 AE BT 2 B G 35 A £ A8 B AR granted under the Share Option Scheme of CRE, such option being
W HER DAL B AT AT unlisted physically settled equity derivatives.
P RN R RATAE T R
(2) 354 A AT Roah M A E B B AR A (2)  This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in

R A= EELF+ZA =+ —
B A5 EMA K LT RA I T 5
tbo

—EREFESR
Annual Report 2007

shares and underlying shares of CRE to the total issued share capital
of the CRE as at 31 December 2007.



TERHEE

Report of the Directors

(F) AR 8] A5 ik B — 3 1 B BOF PR (c) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of
8 ([EMEps] e TR AAN China Resources Logic Limited (“CR Logic”), an associated
By B S corporation of the Company:

MR F A FAEH BT
FaE S HEE % & Number of Aggregate
Long positions/ Number of underlying percentage
EiFA Name Short positions Shares shares™ of interest®
RO Song Lin T & 2,500,000 2,000,000 0.160
Long position
i Wang Yin & 300,000 — 0.011
Long position
¥ Jiang Wei S = 720,000 0.026
Long position
B A Liu Yan Jie T & - 510,000 0.018
Long position
EFid Li Fuzuo T & 510,000 - 0.018
Long position
ALK Du Wenmin 5 & 540,000 — 0.019
Long position
PH 3% Notes:
(1) s EmMBr s [ A3 e (1) This refers to underlying shares of CR Logic covered by share option

b B HAHEHE T 5 R 4G 3 1 By B4R B
By 3 F R B AN R b A
T M AR A T Ao

T4 AP B 8 3 B BOR A AR M
Bl A EELE A =+ —
HAEE MBI R CETRALRGT S
b

granted under the Share Option Scheme of the CR Logic, such
option being unlisted physically settled equity derivatives.

This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in
shares and underlying shares of CR Logic to the total issued share
capital of the CR Logic as at 31 December 2007.
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(T) AR B EE - F2HEHERE (d) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of
BAE (EMEH) CBEFLERR China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited (“CR
MR PR A Power”), an associated corporation of the Company:

MR E AR T

FaE S HEE % & Number of Aggregate

Long positions/ Number of underlying percentage

EiFA Name Short positions Shares shares™ of interest®

R H Song Lin T & 1,260,000 1,340,000 0.063
Long position

ER Y Wang Yin ks 346,000 420,000 0.019
Long position

ER Jiang Wei A - 1,600,000 0.039
Long position

B RE Yan Biao ks - 560,000 0.014
Long position

FIE S Liu Yan Jie ks 320,000 230,000 0.013
Long position

%43 #F Li Fuzuo T A 480,000 270,000 0.018
Long position

ALK, Du Wenmin ks 270,000 180,000 0.011
Long position

PH 3% Notes:

(1) eI E Mg BRoymgad] e (1) This refers to underlying shares of CR Power covered by share
b ROy SR P 3 A et A E 48 MR options granted under the Share Option Scheme of CR Power,
o EE R R B ETAE such option being unlisted physically settled equity derivatives.

M XK RE A AT A T o

(2) 354 A AT Roay M A E KA R AR A (2)  This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in
B BB A AR LEF+ A=+ — shares and underlying shares of CR Power to the total issued share
A EMAECBFTHRALEGT capital of the CR Power as at 31 December 2007.
bo
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AB &FatEEeRimss (2L
SLGEH B A 69 By B K AT
Pk 69 T 22 Ry X MR Ay HAHE F e HE
B HF R BB A LT AL S
Wy B AR AT A T A

(F) AR3E— M AR 3 o B — 32 8 By 2R AR

Interests in Underlying Shares of Associated
Corporation

As at the same date, certain directors had interests in options to
subscribe shares granted under the share option schemes of
associated corporations (within the meaning of SFO), such options

being unlisted physically settled equity derivatives:

(a) Options outstanding under the share option schemes of an

HEIFE R G B A associated corporation, CR Logic:
e E AT AR A 2007412 A 318 & K47
Ei 4 Name Capacity Date of Grant Exercise Price Outstanding at 31/12/2007
BT
HK$
R Song Lin KBBAA 13/1/2004™ 0.906 2,000,000
Beneficial Owner
W fE Jiang Wei KRHBA A 9/4/2002@ 0.82 720,000
Beneficial Owner
B A Liu Yan Jie KBBAA 9/4/2002? 0.82 510,000
Beneficial Owner
G Notes:

(1) Bty BT A 4% 2 B A+ 5 30 M P
itk

(2)  MRArBAAEST o va BAAT 45 A1 2925% -
THoRR_SWARBE - ZRE=
F_RBRWNFER_EEFHE—H —
BHE-_R——FwANBHMFTH

3 =X
#*

FOR A By A 69 AR AR % 1.00

o

&

(1) Options are exercised within a period of ten years from the date of

grant of the relevant options.

(2)  Options are exercisable in 4 tranches of 25% each from 9 April
2002, 1 January 2003, 2004 and 2005 to 8 April 2012.

3) Consideration for each of the grants mentioned above is HK$1.00.
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(2) RFB—MAnH B — 28T HBHH (b) Options outstanding under the share option schemes of an
M EmIoh ey R A HE associated corporation, CR Power:
&4 # B AT AR 20074 12 A 318 i k474
EL P Name Capacity Date of Grant Exercise Price Outstanding at 31/12/2007
BhE T
HK$
R Song Lin KBBA A 12/11/2003™ 2.8 800,000
Beneficial Owner 18/3/2005® 3.99 540,000
E Wang Yin KHBAA 12/11/2003™ 2.8 120,000
Beneficial Owner 18/3/2005® 3.99 300,000
W Jiang Wei KHRHA A 12/11/2003™ 2.8 1,000,000
Beneficial Owner 18/3/2005? 3.99 600,000
MRS Yan Biao KBBAA 12/11/2003™ 2.8 240,000
Beneficial Owner 18/3/2005® 3.99 320,000
Bl % A& Liu Yan Jie KHBAA 12/11/2003™ 2.8 50,000
Beneficial Owner 18/3/2005® 3.99 180,000
& 43 AF Li Fuzuo KHRHA A 12/11/2003™ 2.8 90,000
Beneficial Owner 18/3/2005? 3.99 180,000
A K Du Wenmin KHBA A 12/11/2003™ 2.8 180,000
Beneficial Owner

[ 32 : Notes:

(1) B EAMET o ZIAATAE 5 H020% » =T (1)  Options are exercisable in 5 tranches of 20% each, from 6 October
HoEEwWH ZRE R F SRR 2004, 2005, 2006, 2007 and 2008 to 5 October 2013.
FARRBREFR ZBEENET AN
BE_R—=F%+AALB0 MM

(2) Ay BAAET o Z BT HH20% T (2)  Options are exercisable in 5 tranches of 20% each, from 18 March
HoEBEEXF _EBERELF - ZEEN 2006, 2007, 2008, 2009 and 2010 to 17 March 2015.
FA_REBENEFR _R-RE =R+
NBE-_R—a25=A+LaHmMiT
1o

(3) bikA kR Ay B4R 6 RAR A 1.00 (3)  Consideration for each of the grants mentioned above is HK$1.00.
BT
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FTEIRBLHY
A_BERLF+_A=+—R - FTEHE
SR 8) B HARAT I B 2 8] 3T AEAT R 5T
AHA—F N AT G T AR T A
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S B B RORE A N R
AN EFERNE AW B NG 24
fTE KA EAERMERAEMZ KA

. ©°

Directors’ Service Contracts

As at 31 December 2007, none of the Directors has any service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
terminable by the employing company within one year without

payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contracts of significance to which the Company or its subsidiaries
were a party and in which any director of the Company had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end

of the year or at any time during the year.
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B 4R ¥ WA R0 B R

BRE_ERXLF+_A=+—8 A FTA
+ (A8 % E S AT AL H LI AR E)
o Ay B AR A B A T B R AR BE (A AN
) XV F 2% 534 5 HL 7 /8 H A
D B) T F AT RE (G AR A
% 3364 M 4 A 0 R e B B E A e

Shareholders with Notifiable Interests
As at 31 December 2007, the following persons (not being a Director

or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provision of Division
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were recorded in the

register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the

T

SFO:

#A2007%12A318
BT R 894 A
5 AN E) BT
B E
Percentage of

the aggregate

long position

in shares to the
issued share

MR WE capital of the
L Nature of Bty # R Company as at
S &% Name Capacity Interest Number of Share 31 December 2007
Finetex International Finetex International Limited FEBHA FaMA 847,604,218 21.06
Limited (“Finetex”]) ® (“Finetex”) Beneficial Owner Beneficial Interest
M (£8) AR China Resources (Holdings) FRBAA FHaME 125,300,000 3.11
(TEmLm])O Company Limited (“CRH”) © Beneficial Owner Beneficial Interest
Gain Ahead Group Limited Gain Ahead Group Limited FaBAA Fags 1,524,697,172 37.88
(“Gain Ahead”) (“Gain Ahead”) Beneficial Owner Beneficial Interest
EM(EE) ARG China Resources (Holdings) &L O R £ NE R 2,372,301,390 58.94
(MEmeEm)o Company Limited (“CRH”) @ Controlled Company’s Corporate Interest
Interest
CRC Bluesky Limited CRC Bluesky Limited &L O R £ NE MR 2,497,601,390 62.05
(“Bluesky”) (“Bluesky”) ¥ Controlled Company’s Corporate Interest
Interest
MR A A 8] China Resources Co., Limited &L O R £ NE MR 2,497,601,390 62.05
(TEmMpn]) o (“CRC”) @ Controlled Company’s Corporate Interest
Interest
L3 NG| China Resources National ZAEH AN A A A 2,497,601,390 62.05

(TeEEm) O

Corporation (“CRNC”) @

Controlled Company’s
Interest

Corporate Interest

—EREFESR
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(vt

(1)  Finetex B # 4 &2 3 847,604,218
B Gain Ahead A E&H A AN
1,524,697,172 /% + % M 4 8 % Finetex
% Gain Ahead Z " — B £ PR Z 41
L B L HEHA A 125,300,000
B w3 4R B & Bluesky# & F W B
2] Bluesky = 3 1 By 49 2 & B
28] f 3 B A 99.98% 89 A2 3 2
TR EMEA B EHMER
Bluesky * 25 g4~ ¥ Bl 3£ 4 340 4
¥y 8] 2,497,601,390 1% HE A 04 4 5

e EX T FESN A_RELF+ A=
T —B BaEEMELE ALARNE MK
W B Fa R A ‘1’ WA AR GE A2 F %
1) % XV 5 2% 5 335 5 #L R JA #1 A o 8]
WE W a‘ékﬁﬁa KA R TERA RN F) &HQ
(G 2R B ) % 3364 7 B ) B e
B HE R R LA

BB ) B Bk B F)
BB N B) BT % N B 23 fm AT A
%1448 2 #1518 °

BB BB R B

KA P RN E] BB 8] A

ESIS SR RN P UNG PN
(Immiﬁﬁx&iwﬂﬁxwﬁﬁ
)0

\

Notes:

(1) 847,604,218 and 1,524,697,172 shares of the Company are directly
held by Finetex and Gain Ahead respectively, CRH is the sole
shareholder of Finetex and Gain Ahead. Moreover, 125,300,000
shares of the Company are directly held by CRH, which is a 100%
subsidiary of Bluesky, which is in turn owned as to 100% by CRC.
Limited, which is in turn held as to 99.98% by CRNC. Thus, CRH,
Bluesky, CRC and CRNC are deemed to be interested in an aggregate
of 2,497,601,390 shares in the Company.

Save as aforesaid, as at 31 December 2007, no other person had any
interest or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provision of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which
were recorded in the register kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO.

Subsidiaries and Associates
Particulars regarding the subsidiaries and associates are set out on
pages 144 to 151.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed
Securities

During the year under review, neither the Company nor its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed

securities (whether on Stock Exchange or otherwise) .
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PR RZ 8B BAT HAE

AR — A & B A5 1,000,000,000 89 5 4%
e EMEBATEHFA (AERME)
AN B TRy AS35Y6 Ay P b S ] 0 4 T
oM E R R LF+ A=+ —A 2
3 AR R B R T 9 R AR AR
690,000,000 © %7 F # # #AASF P9 &
15 i o

A g — T8 A 8 A3 400,000,000 &9 B
FoEMERATLEFNA (AESME) A
8] R b 35% By AR A H A 8] 64 28 Ji )
HEeBMUE—RREFF+ A=+ —H 23
ATARKWMATHRZEE 2R
Mo IBRKEBBIAASEF RN ARG E

A dE— T8 A 8 A3 500,000,000 &9 B K
HoEMERARFLANE—RREAY
G0 A (AR M) A8 KD A35%
Ry 3t B BB AR E MR B e R
B TAFAEA50% o BAE— BB LS+ A =
FT—BREAAZAREMAETHRELEE
B A 3R o 2% TA B H R B A ASE AR

o

=
(%

MR B — A4 # A 1500,000,000 4 B
Wk EMEBARENGD B R KK R
I B (AEXME) A8 R %
35% &4 M Ay 3t B Bl BOF H A R E e
By RAFAKAA50% © Bk — K EXHF+ = A
Z+—BRAAATRREME TR ESE
FE e AR AR A HIAASFEN A
e E L
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Specific Performance Obligations on
Controlling Shareholder

Pursuant to a loan agreement for the amount of HK$1,000,000,000,
China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited (“CRH”) is required
to maintain the control in the Company’s management by directly
or indirectly holding not less than 35% beneficial interest in the
shares of the Company. As at 31 December 2007, the outstanding
loan owed by the Company under the loan agreement amounted to
HK$690,000,000 and is fully repayable within five years.

Pursuant to a loan agreement for the amount of HK$400,000,000,
CRH is required to maintain the control in the Company’s
management by directly or indirectly holding not less than 35%
beneficial interest in the shares of the Company. As at 31 December
2007, the loan was fully drawn down under the loan agreement and

is fully repayable within five years.

Pursuant to a loan agreement for the amount of HK$500,000,000,
CRH is required to maintain its status as the single largest
shareholder of the Company by directly or indirectly holding not
less than 35% beneficial interest in the shares of the Company,
while the PRC Government’s shareholding in CRH shall not be less
than 50%. As at 31 December 2007, the loan was fully drawn down

under the loan agreement and is fully repayable within five years.

Pursuant to another loan agreement for the amount of
HK$500,000,000, CRH is required to maintain its status as the single
largest shareholder of the Company by directly or indirectly holding
not less than 35% beneficial interest in the shares of the Company,
while the PRC Government’s shareholding in CRH shall not be less
than 50%. As at 31 December 2007, the loan was fully drawn down

under the loan agreement and is fully repayable within five years.
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M AE— 8 & A 2,500,000,00049 B 2
Wadk EMEBRARBEND B R AMER
MEH RA (AERME) A8 Ry Hh
359 a4 B 4 36 BL b B B A 2 B ed
FEAY RAFAEAA50% o Bk R ELF+ A
ZF— B G AERRMET R KL
B 2 W 48,500,000 o 3% A & 2 AR 3 A A5
ERARMEE

M AR —3a 458 A 2,000,000,0008 & 2
Wk EMEBARENGD B R KK R
I B (AEXRME) A8 R D%
35% &4 B4y 36 B P BB A A 2 L @ e
By RAFAKAA50% © Bk — K EXHF+ = A
Z+—BRAAATRREME TR ESE
BRI IR KRB HEAASFNE
B AR 3 o

M AE—38 48 A 3,000,000,0008 & 2
Wk EMERARFNGD E—R KK LR
ME D BFA (ABERME) A8 Ry %
35% &4 B Ay 36 B P B BOF A A 2 4 @ e
By RAFAKAA50% © Bk — K E X HF+ = A
Z+—BRAATAREB AT R E L
B A 35 51,124,000,000 © %78 B2k gk A A A
5F N ABIEE-

Pursuant to a loan agreement for the amount of HK$2,500,000,000,
CRH is required to maintain its status as the single largest
shareholder of the Company by directly or indirectly holding not
less than 35% shares of the Company, while the PRC Government’s
shareholding in CRH shall not be less than 50%. As at 31 December,
2007, the outstanding loan owed by the Company under the loan
agreement amounted to HK$48,500,000 and is fully repayable within

five years.

Pursuant to a loan agreement for the amount of HK$2,000,000,000,
CRH is required to maintain its status as the single largest
shareholder of the Company by directly or indirectly holding not
less than 35% shares of the Company, while the PRC Government’s
shareholding in CRH shall not be less than 50%. As at 31 December
2007, the loan was fully drawn down under the loan agreement and

is fully repayable within five years.

Pursuant to a loan agreement for the amount of HK$3,000,000,000,
CRH is required to maintain its status as the single largest
shareholder of the Company by directly or indirectly holding not
less than 35% shares of the Company, while the PRC Government’s
shareholding in CRH shall not be less than 50%. As at 31 December
2007, the outstanding loan owed by the Company under the loan
agreement amounted to HK$1,124,000,000 and is fully repayable

within five years.
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#2007 6 A 228 » K, 3] # Emax Capital
Limited ([Emax])) & € B & th#k kL &
& & 2 8 Toprun Investments Limited
([Toprunl) &3¢ & 447 B & » Toprun #
HEBN TR AR TR EFRES
BN E F o R RAR A 3 9170,000,000
T FRAB BB ETRANTHEA LR
Emax% ¥ (£8) FRASE ([EHE
B a2 AmENE mENEBRRA A
28] 62.05% B AT IR oAk 4R £ ALA) B
R GHERANIATHEAMER G
ZRHA2007HFTA308 BHGEEKE
b AT B

#2007 12 A 58 » A28 $#Gain Ahead
Group Limited ([ Gain Ahead]) % % ¥ & #
OB R B AL - B4 e K ik 0h
FFaAaB R HRMAERNF
4,528,800,0007T » 3% AX AR 77 42 i #E Iy 42 - F
7 4% J2 % - Gain Ahead % % M £ B X & #
T B 3] 0 o 3 R B AR A AR 8] 62.05%
AT R AR IR B AR Bk ) AR
KB A M AT A Z R AL E R M ik
% Z X H#A2007F12A 218 B B &K £
K@ LA
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Connected Transactions

On 22 June 2007, the Company entered into an Agreement with
Emax Capital Limited (“Emax”) to acquire 100% stake of its wholly-
owned subsidiary Toprun Investments Limited (“Toprun”). Toprun
is an investment holding company, who mainly operates the
construction and decoration businesses in Hong Kong and the PRC.
The consideration was HK$170,000,000 and was determined after
arm’s length negotiation between the said parties. As Emax is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of China Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited (“CRH”), and CRH has a 62.05% interest in issued share
capital of the Company, the Agreement constituted a discloseable
and connected transaction of the Company pursuant to Listing Rules
which was approved by the shareholders at the general meeting
held on 30 July 2007.

On 5 December 2007, the Company and Gain Ahead Group Limited
(“Gain Ahead”) entered into a sale and purchase agreement to
acquire interest in developing certain properties located in
Hangzhou, Wuxi and Dalian in Mainland China for a consideration
of HK$4,528,800,000 which was determined after arm’s length
negotiation between both parties. As Gain Ahead is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CRH, which in turn holds 62.05% interest in issued
share capital of the Company, the sale and purchase agreement
constituted a disclosable and connected transaction of the Company
involving the share transaction pursuant to Listing Rules which
was approved by the shareholders at the general meeting held on
21 December 2007.
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During the year under review, the Company’s wholly-owned
subsidiaries, namely Beijing China Resources Building Co. Ltd.,
China Resources Land (Shanghai) Limited (“CR Shanghai”), China
Resources (Shenzhen) Ltd. (“CR Shengzhen”), and members of CRH
entered into certain contracts in respect of leasing and
concessionaire arrangements, which constituted continuing
connected transactions pursuant to Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules.
At the same time, the Company purchased the construction and
decoration businesses from CRH on 22 June 2007, therefore, the
services provided to CRH and its subsidiaries by such companies
which engaged in the construction and decoration businesses also
constituted continuing connected transactions pursuant to Rule
14A.37 of the Listing Rules. Independent non-executive directors

have reviewed these transactions and considered that:

1.  these transactions were in the Company’s ordinary course of

business;

2. these transactions were conducted in normal commercial

terms;

3. these transactions were carried out in accordance with
respective agreement terms which were fair and reasonable,
and in the interests of the Company and the shareholders as a

whole.

Model Code Regarding Securities Transactions
by the Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rule as code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the directors. Having made specific enquiry with
all directors, the Company confirmed that all directors has complied
with the required standard set our in the Model Code during the

year under review.
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Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, as at the date of this
report, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the

Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

Major Customers and Suppliers
During the year under review, the Group’s five largest suppliers
and customers together accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s

purchases and sales respectively.

Five Year Financial Summary
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the

Group for the past five financial years is set out on page 160.

Pre-Emptive Rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there are no restrictions against such

rights under the laws in the Cayman Islands.

Audit Committee

The audit committee comprises Mr. Chan Mo Po, Paul, Mr. Wang
Shi, Mr. Ho Hin Ngai, Bosco and Mr. Andrew Y. Yan, all of them
being independent non-executive directors of the Company. The
audit committee has reviewed, together with the management and
the Company’s auditor, the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and discussed auditing, internal control and
financial reporting matters including the financial statements for

the year.

Auditor
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire at the end of the
forthcoming annual general meeting and is eligible for

reappointment.

By order of the Board
Song Lin

Chairman

28 March 2008, Hong Kong
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA RESOURCES LAND LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Resources Land Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 77 to 160
which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December
2007, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are

reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for

the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
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with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal controls relevant to the Group’s preparation and
true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors of the Company, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December
2007 and of the profit and cash flows of the Group for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
28 March 2008
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For the year ended 31 December 2007

BT FEF T
HK$’000 HK$’000
(£71])
(Restated)
K EHE Revenue 5) 5,681,095 3,936,730
S R K Cost of sales (3,597,462) (2,662,373)
ER ) Gross profit 2,083,633 1,274,357
BEDENTFHEEGHZIE Gain on changes in fair value of
investment properties 799,955 528,551
E RN N Other income 7 389,695 202,419
GHE BT AR B IOk Selling and marketing expenses (141,504) (110,814)
—RERAT R General and administration expenses (275,233) (238,324)
T E R AR Impairment loss recognised in respect of
AR B AR available-for-sale investments - (158,658)
JEAL T AN 8) K M Share of results of associates 67,715 11,874
E!’H% A Finance costs 10 (152,827) (176,919)
FRALAT 3 £ Profit before taxation 2,771,434 1,332,486
HLIA Taxation 11 (1,296,192) (480,611)
ES b Profit for the year 12 1,475,242 851,875
JEAE Attributable to:
AN E BT A Equity holders of the Company 1,431,082 858,675
b BT R HME B Minority interests 44,160 (6,800)
1,475,242 851,875
A& 8 Dividends 13
et Paid 281,013 166,048
BEIR Proposed 297,865 169,464
5 1% 2 A) Earnings per share 14
£ Basic HK39.8 cents HK27.6 cents
E: 35 Diluted HK39.2 cents HK27.2 cents
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

AZEEXF+—_A=+—8 At 31 December 2007

BT FEF T
HK$’000 HK$’000
(£71])
(Restated)
FRYFE Non-current assets
L S Goodwill 15 50,423 =
My~ R B BB Property, plant and equipment 16 3,161,640 817,831
T4 AL oA Prepaid lease payments 17 401,735 40,362
HAEME Investment properties 18 8,967,812 7,619,400
AT NG X HE Interests in associates 19 593,600 489,394
JEAN — R H A\ F) 2 IA Amount due from an associate 20 237,464 245,070
STk A2 4R A Available-for-sale investments 21 196,220 197,305
i IE IR E E Deferred taxation assets 22 374,174 369,403
13,983,068 9,778,765
ARG HE Current assets
Lk Ty Inventory of properties 23 21,953,226 9,171,918
Fa A AR E R Prepaid lease payments 17 923 923
Bl Other inventories 24 12,734 12,138
JE N B AR~ b B PR IR A Trade receivables, other receivables
E At H A and deposits paid 25 6,766,924 4,388,697
TN B P A8y TA IR Amounts due from customers
for contract works 26 190,784 -
JEWCF 4 W B A 8] #5R Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries 27 2,791 3,735
JENK B4 B% o> 8] #0R Amounts due from immediate
holding company 27 5,026 -
FAAFHLA Tax prepaid 52,532 25,511
RERBITE A Cash and bank balances 28 4,516,801 3,357,628
33,501,741 16,960,550
i B-Ki ¥ Current liabilities
JEAT BR AR B I JEAT PRA Trade and other payables 29 2,096,676 1,738,495
FAE W ECKITE Deposits received from pre-sales
of properties 3,573,992 1,398,610
JEAT R P A% A2 3008 Amounts due to customers for
contract works 26 124,248 -
JEAT R 4 W B A &) 2R Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 30 425 85,506
JEAT B4 4% A% o> 8] 3 0R Amount due to immediate
holding company 30 - 1,228,300
JEAT Y Rk R A Amount due to a minority shareholder 30 503,084 =
BATHRR— —FNEH Bank borrowings — due within one year 31 2,712,212 3,434,031
JEATHLIA Taxation payable 863,635 297,372
9,874,272 8,182,314
A E S Net current assets 23,627,469 8,778,236
FERALRAS B & Total assets less current liabilities 37,610,537 18,557,001
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
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KB AEHE
REA
A

AN B) AT A NEASE B A

b HOR A B

I

il /=i
AT R — —F £ 2 A
Ik 3EFLIA G fE

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to equity holders
of the Company
Minority interests

Non-current liabilities
Bank borrowings - due after one year
Deferred taxation liabilities

BT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000
(Z49])

(Restated)
32 402,520 332,281
21,726,941 11,181,076
22,129,461 11,513,357
1,482,401 219,817
23,611,862 11,733,174
31 12,721,736 6,157,538
22 1,276,939 666,289
13,998,675 6,823,827
37,610,537 18,557,001

Song Lin
Director

Wang Yin
Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE_REBELFE+-_A=+—8L&5HE For the year ended 31 December 2007

A RARH AR
Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RERD
#E WARHE
ThEE BELEHE  Employee
BA  BRRER  FABHE  —KEHA Ivestment  Exchange sharebased BB EA

Share Share Capital General  revaluation  translation compensation Retained

capital premium reserve reserves reserve reserve reserve profits

b

ST 1

%3 Minority
Total interests

Total

AL R AEFR REFL RBTA REfAR BRETA AR RETA BFFR RETA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 H(K?'OO){] HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
32
(note)
AZEEXE-A—R At1January 2006 217,367 5377.897 1,131,520 23,510 - 84,351 7,739 1203902 8,106,286 203557 8,329,843
BEARAER Exchange translation reserve
BAPANL arising on translation of
T 3] P subsidiaries in Chinese
ZBERBS Mainland recognised
directly in equity - - - - - 268,230 - - 268,230 23,676 291,906
Ewiaf| Profit for the year - - - - - - - 858,675 858,675 (6,800) 851,875
ERTHEDKNAE  Total recognised income
for the year - - - - - 268,230 - 858,675 1,126,905 16,876 1,143,781
FARALERY Recognition of equity-settled
iES share based payments = = = = = = 29,352 = 29,352 = 29,352
A ERBA A BH  Transfer of reserve in
subsidiaries - - - 38,124 - - - (38,124) - - -
B3 A Placement of new shares 30,000 1,064,829 - - - - - - 1,094,829 - 1,094,829
itk B AR Exercise of share options 6,304 98,644 = = = = (6,967) = 97,981 = 97,981
LR R Shares issued 18,610 1,205,442 - - - - - - 1,224,052 - 1,224,052
Bz Increase in capital injection = = = - - - - - = 475,300 475,300
BERENIEE  Acquisition of additional
interest in subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - (487,967)  (487,967)
ZRRRERBME  Final dividend for 2005 - - - - - - - (102679) (102,679)  (7T949)  (110,628)
LEREARAAMRE  Additional final dividend
for prior year - - - - - - - (657) (657) - (657)
ZEBAEPHRE  Interim dividend for 2006 - - - - - - - (6712)  (B2712) - (6272)
ARk
+=Az+—HR At 31 December 2006 332,281 7746812 1,131,520 61,634 - 352,581 30,124 1,858,405 11,513,357 219817 11,733,174
BEARAER Exchange translation reserve
BAPANL arising on translation of
R3] P subsidiaries in Chinese
2B Mainland - - - - - 925,606 - - 925,606 17,195 942,801
TR ER A4 Fair value gain on
AN A available-for-sale investments = = = = 11,280 = = = 11,280 = 11,280
BEARAER Total income recognised directly
Lo 4] in equity - - - - 11,280 925,606 - - 936,886 17,195 954,081
£ Profit for the year - - - - - - - 1431082 1,431,082 44,160 1,475,242
HETHBERTL  Realised gain on disposal of
LERKE available-for-sale investments = = = = (11,280) = = = (11,280) = (11,280)
ERTHERDKNAE  Total recognised income
for the year - - - - - 925,606 - 1431082 2,356,688 61,355 2,418,043
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

KA
Share
capital

Share
premium

BhiEg  FAgA
Capital

reserve

A RARH AR
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
RERS
&F HARA
ThEE BELEHE  Employee Pk 4
—fBHE  Investment  Exchange share-based AR A ST 1
General revaluation translation compensation  Retained %3 Minority i
Teserves Teserve Teserve Teserve profits Total interests Total

R REfR BEPL RBTR BERL RBTR BETA REFL REFR BHL RETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 H(K?’OO)O HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HEK$'000
g2
(note)
BARAEERA Recognition of equity-settled
GES share based payments - - - - - - 14,176 - 14,176 - 14,176
AR ERBA A B Transfer of reserve in
subsidiaries - - - 34,555 - - - (34,555 ) - - -
B3 A Placement of new shares 40,000 3,881,214 - - - - - - 3921214 - 3921214
itk B AR Exercise of share options 3,330 89,639 = = = = (16,730) = 76,239 = 76,239
LRI KA Shares issued 26,909 4,501,801 - - - - - - 4528800 - 4528800
WM B AN G] Acquisition of subsidiaries = = = = = = = = - 1329231 1,329,231
BB—MB BN Acquisition of additional
31y 5 non-controlling interest in
a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - (128,002)  (128,002)
ZEEAERAME  Final dividend for 2006 - - - - - - - (169.464)  (169,464) - (169,464)
EEEESAHME  Additional final dividend
for prior year - - - - - - - (21,517) (21,517) - (21,517)
ZREXEPHRA  Interim dividend for 2007 - - - - - - - (90,032) (90,032) - (90,032)
#ogErs
TS 2= At 31 December 2007 402520 16,219,556 1,131,520 96,189 - 1218187 20570 2973919 22,129,461  1482,401 23,611,862
Wz KSR B 6 — AR G5 A L 46 AR SR B B A4S P B P9 B Note:  The Group’s general reserves comprise the Group’s share of the post acquisition statutory

B M R R R BB R RN B E AR BARG
Ao

TR REAABRREDATRARLZ
Tk B 2 B) 68 40 5 A2 4w ) HLR - S B A 8] A AN
454530 R AR (kR M A A BT 2B IE M E)
o W P A 10% A 5% & 5 A £ ik T B AR A
ERNBAE

R AN R e KR B W A ) A AN
R (kM HRATZRIERT) &M
SEPEA)10% HAS Bk R A A B MR M a)
FTERNBHEARBESRNENGLETEILES
EX/ -8 ool

FEAFH M ARAR I A% R T BRI R R T A e
£ 5T ) A AR 8 S X AR S e B 8] A AR
LoRe RN R R e Wi R Y PALRCE W N GE
AR R

surplus reserve, statutory public welfare fund and discretionary surplus reserve of
subsidiaries in the Chinese Mainland.

In accordance with the relevant rules and regulations in the PRC and the provision of the
articles of association of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC, theses subsidiaries
were required to appropriate 10% and 5% of the profit for the year after setting off the
accumulated losses brought forward (based on the figures reported in the statutory financial
statements) to the statutory surplus reserve and the statutory public welfare fund,

respectively.

The Group’s subsidiaries which are established as foreign investment enterprises are required
to appropriate 10% of the profit for the year after setting off the accumulated losses
brought forward (based on the figures reported in the statutory financial statements) to
the statutory reserve fund and a certain percentage of the profit for the year to enterprise

expansion fund at the discretion of the board of directors of the respective companies.

The statutory surplus reserve and statutory reserve fund can only be used to make good of
previous years’ losses or to increase the capital of respective companies upon the approval
of relevant authority, the statutory public welfare fund can only be used in capital
expenditure for collective companies or to expand their production scale upon approval by

the relevant authorities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Bank interest income
Discount on acquisition of additional
non-controlling interests in a subsidiary
Gain on changes in fair value of investment properties
Gain on changes in fair value on derivative
financial instruments
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts
Impairment loss recognised in respect of
available-for-sale investments
Write down of inventory of properties
Recognition of equity-settled share based payment
Share of results of associates

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital
Increase in inventory of properties
Decrease (increase) in other inventories
Increase in trade receivables, other receivables

and deposits paid
Increase in amounts due from customers for contract work
Increase in amounts due from fellow subsidiaries
Increase in amount due from immediate holding company
Increase in trade and other payables
Increase in deposits received from pre-sales of properties
Increase in amounts due to customers for contract works
(Decrease) increase in amounts due to fellow subsidiaries

Cash used in operations
Chinese Mainland Enterprise Income Tax paid

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES

I N T

BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
(£7])
(Restated)
2,771,434 1,332,486
152,827 176,919
(79,694) (73,656)
(20,415) -
(799,955) (528,551)
- (7,120)
(17,570) -
32,316 35,238
- (61)
923 923
28,387 -
- 158,658
- 68,156
14,176 29,352
(67,715) (11,874)
2,014,714 1,180,470
(7,080,456) (1,443,682)
328 (1,517)

(1,387,146)

(2,731,398)

(115,903) =
1,197 (3,183)
(5,026) -

(297,492) 159,140

1,605,124 182,581
87,426 -
(91,286) 74,514

(5,268,520) (2,583,075)

(236,845) (82,281)

(5,505,365) (2,665,356)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

N2 BT

BT FEF T
HK$’000 HK$’000
(Z3])
(Restated)
BAEWH INVESTING ACTIVITIES
N BE T B 8] (8 4m R BT BN Acquisition of subsidiaries (net of cash and
RAERAASFHE) cash equivalents acquired) 34 (20,559) (306,660)
3 o — P P N B) I AR MR AE B Acquisition of additional non-controlling
interest in a subsidiary (107,587) -
[P EIPS Interest received 79,694 73,656
th & Ay R R R A Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and
BT A #R equipment 771 1,051
th A AT Bk B 3% AT AT BOR Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale
investment 19,570 -
ECSS B A 3 Advance to an associate - (5,000)
BN BB R B Purchases of property, plant and equipment (303,164) (275,398)
BAZE M E Purchase of investment properties - (20,267)
EE R e Settlement of derivative financial instruments - (18,565)
BAEHTARLFHA NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (331,275) (551,183)
BmAEH FINANCING ACTIVITIES
I RAT R New bank loans raised 12,250,853 7,097,580
IR SRATR A Repayments of bank loans (7,104,821) (3,543,210)
et L 8 Dividends paid (281,013) (166,048)
e A+ A] B Interest paid (671,154) (342,586)
YRR SRR EE Capital injections from minority interests - 475,300
Bie. & #7 X P 432k A Proceeds on placement of new shares 3,921,214 1,094,829
BAT AR P AR #00R Proceeds of issue of shares 76,239 97,981
18 1% H A2 4= RN 8) #OR Repayment to immediate holding company (1,228,300) (425,187)
BAEHIBALFH NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 6,963,018 4,288,659
RERREFEIEMFH NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 1,126,378 1,072,120
SHEREHYE EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE
CHANGE 32,795 288,627
—A—BRLERELFA CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
1 JANUARY 3,357,628 1,996,881
+t—A=+t—BRER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
REFM 31 DECEMBER 4,516,801 3,357,628
RERALFHEthZ ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCE OF CASH
2HT AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
RERBITHE A Cash and bank balances 4,516,801 3,357,628
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For the year ended 31 December 2007
1.

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Hong
Kong Stock Exchange”). The immediate holding company as at 31 December
2007 is China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited (“CRH”). The directors
regard the ultimate holding company of the Company to be China Resources
National Corporation (“CRNC”), a company incorporated in the Chinese
Mainland. The addresses of the registered office and principal place of business
of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information of the annual

report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is different from the functional currency of the Company, Renminbi
(“RMB”) as the Company is a public company incorporated in Hong Kong with
the shares listed on Hong Kong Stock Exchange, where most of its investors
are located in Hong Kong and therefore, the directors consider that Hong
Kong dollars is preferable in presenting the operating result and financial
position of the Company and the Group. The majority of the Company’s
subsidiaries are operating in the Chinese Mainland with RMB as their functional

currency.

The principal activities of the Group are property development, investment

and management and construction and decoration services.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the following
new standard, amendment and interpretations (“new HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), which are
effective for the Group’s financial year beginning 1 January 2007.

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Capital Disclosures
HKFRS 7
HK(IFRIC)-Int 7

Financial Instruments: Disclosures
Applying the Restatement Approach under
HKAS 29 Financial Reporting in

Hyperinflationary Economies

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on how the results
and financial position for the current or prior accounting periods have been
prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been

required.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

The Group has applied the disclosure requirements under HKAS 1 (Amendment)
and HKFRS 7 retrospectively. Certain information presented in prior year under
the requirements of HKAS 32 has been removed and the relevant comparative
information based on the requirements of HKAS 1 (Amendment) and HKFRS 7

has been presented for the first time in current year.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised standards or
interpretations that have been issued but are not yet effective.

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements!

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs!

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements?

HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Vesting Conditions and Cancellations!
HKFRS 3 (Revised)

Business Combinations?

HKFRS 8
HK(IFRIC)-Int 11

Operating Segments!

HKFRS 2: Group and Treasury Share Transactions®

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arranagements*

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes®

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 HKAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset,

Minimum Funding Requirements and their
Interaction*

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2007
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of these standards
or interpretations will have no material impact on the results and the financial
position of the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis, except for certain investment properties and financial instruments,
which are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set

out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of
the Company and entities (including special purpose entities) controlled by
the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has
the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to

obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated income statement from the effective dates of acquisition

or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used by

other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on

consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein. Minority interests in the net assets
consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the original business
combination and the minority’s share of changes in equity since the date of
the combination. Losses applicable to the minority in excess of the minority’s
interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests of the
Group except to the extent that the minority has a binding obligation and is

able to make an additional investment to cover the losses.

Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary is recorded at the Group’s
book value of the net assets attributable to the interests. The excess of the
carrying amounts of net assets attributable to the interest over the cost of

acquisition is recognised as discount on acquisition in the profit and loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the purchase method. The
cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the
date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus
any costs directly attributable to the business combination. The acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions
for recognition under HKFRS 3 Business Combinations are recognised at their

fair values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially measured
at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business combination over the
Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest
in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the business combination, the excess

is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially measured at
the minority’s proportion of the net fair value of the assets, liabilities and

contingent liabilities recognised.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of businesses for which the agreement date
is on or after 1 January 2005 represents the excess of the cost of acquisition
over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities of the relevant businesses at the date of acquisition.
Such goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of businesses is presented

separately in the consolidated balance sheet.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an acquisition
is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial
year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that financial year. When the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the
unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro
rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in the consolidated income
statement. An impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent

periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

On subsequent disposal of the relevant cash generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the determination of the amount

of profit or loss on disposal.

Investments in associates
An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant influence and

that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, investments in associates are carried in the consolidated
balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s
share of the net assets of the associate, less any identified impairment loss.
When the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest
in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An additional share of
losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on

behalf of that associate.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and
losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant

associate.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable
and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and services provided in the

normal course of business, net of discount.

Revenue from sale of properties held for sale in the ordinary course of business

is recognised when all of the following criteria are met:

. the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the properties are
transferred to buyers, which is when the construction of relevant
properties has been completed and the properties have been delivered
to the purchasers and collectibility of related receivables is reasonably

assured;

. neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control over the properties are

retained;
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

. it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction

will flow to the Group; and

. the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can

be measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through

the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Property management income and service income are recognised when services

are provided.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes (other
than construction in progress) are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property, plant and
equipment, other than construction in progress, over their estimated useful
lives after taking into account of their estimated residual values, using the

straight-line method.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment in the course
of construction for production or for its own use purposes. Property that is
being constructed or developed for future use as an investment property is
classified as property, plant and equipment and carried at cost less recognised
impairment loss until construction or development is complete, at which time
it is reclassified to and subsequently accounted for as investment property.
Any difference between the fair value of the property at that date and its
previous carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss. Construction in
progress is carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss. Construction
in progress is classified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets

are ready for their intended use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in the consolidated income statement in the

year in which the item is derecognised.

Leasehold land and building under development for future owner-occupied
purpose

When the leasehold land and buildings are in the course of development for
production or for administrative purposes, the leasehold land component is
classified as a prepaid lease payment and amortised over a straight-line basis
over the lease term. During the construction period, the amortisation charge
provided for the leasehold land is included as part of costs of buildings under

construction.

Buildings under construction are carried at cost, less any identified impairment

losses.

Depreciation of buildings commences when they are available for use (i.e.
when they are in the location and condition necessary for them to be capable

of operating in the manner intended by management).

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital

appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values using the fair value
model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment

properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal of when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the assets (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the consolidated income

statement in the year in which the item is derecognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investment properties (continued)

Inventory of properties is transferred to investment property when it is
evidenced by the commencement of an operating lease to another party. The
difference between the fair value and the carrying amount at the date of transfer

is recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill (see
the accounting policy in respect of goodwill above)

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss

is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income

immediately.

Construction contracts

Where the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably,
revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the stage of completion of
the contract activity at the balance sheet date, as measured by the proportion
that contract costs incurred for work performed to date bear to the estimated
total contract costs, except where this would not be representative of the stage
of completion. Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are

included to the extent that they have been agreed with the customer.

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract revenue is recognised to the extent of contract costs incurred that it
is probable will be recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses in
the period in which they are incurred. When it is probable that total contract
costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an

expense immediately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Construction contracts (continued)

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised
losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is shown as amounts due from
customers for contract work. For contracts where progress billings exceed
contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses,
the surplus is shown as amounts due to customers for contract work. Amounts
received before the related work is performed are included in the consolidated
balance sheet, as a liability, as advances received. Amounts billed for work
performed but not yet paid by the customer are included in the consolidated

balance sheet under trade receivables, other receivables and deposits paid.

Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets to the lessee.

All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of leased asset and recognised as an expense on a

straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits received and
receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised as a

reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and building are considered
separately for the purpose of lease classification, unless the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building elements, in which
case, the entire contract is generally treated as a finance lease and accounted
for as property, plant and equipment. To the extent the allocation of the lease
payments can be made reliably, leasehold interests in land are accounted for

as operating leases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At each balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost

in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the
translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the
period except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity, in

which cases, the exchange differences are also recognised directly in equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the assets
and liabilities of the Group’s operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the year, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised as a separate component of equity (the exchange
translation reserve). Such exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss

in the year in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for

capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the year in which

they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred

tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from profit as reported in the consolidated income statement because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current taxation is calculated using tax rates that have

been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither

the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the

temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet
date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient

taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is
charged or credited to profit or loss, except when it relates to items charged
or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred taxation is also dealt

with in equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Inventory of properties
Inventory of properties includes properties under development and properties

held for sale which are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value.

The carrying value of inventory of properties comprises the leasehold interest
in land together with development expenditure, which includes construction

costs and borrowing costs capitalised.
Land cost includes land premium and expenditure for demolition.

Other inventories
Other inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost

is calculated using the weighted average method.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of
a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts (including all fees on points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate,

a shorter period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. At each balance
sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade receivables, other receivables and deposits paid, amounts due from
customers for contract works, amounts from due an associate, immediate
holding company and fellow subsidiaries and bank balances) are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial

assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated
or not classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”),

loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, available-for-sale
financial assets are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised
in equity, until the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
at which time, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is
removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss (see accounting policy

on impairment loss on financial assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured
and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity instruments, they are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition

(see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of
impairment at each balance sheet date. Financial assets are impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash

flows of the financial assets have been impacted.
For an available-for sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered to be objective

evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
. default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or
. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

financial re-organisation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets that
are assessed not to be impaired individually are subsequently assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate

with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss is recognised
in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original

effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed

in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss
directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade receivables and
other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent

recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period, the
amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment

not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not be reversed
in profit or loss in subsequent periods. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to impairment loss is recognised directly in equity. For available-for-sale debt
investments, impairment losses are subsequently reversed if an increase in the
fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an event occurring

after the recognition of the impairment loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered

into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the group after deducting all of its liabilities. The Group’s financial

liabilities represent other financial liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of
a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where

appropriate, a shorter period.
Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables, amounts due to
fellow subsidiaries, amount due to a minority shareholder and bank borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original
or modified terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract issued
by the Group and not designated as at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised initially at its fair value less transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee contract. Subsequent to
initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee contact at the
higher of: (i) the amount determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in

accordance with HKAS 18 Revenue.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly in equity is

recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the
relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration

paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Share-based payments transactions

Share options granted to employees after 7 November 2002 and vested on or
after 1 January 2005

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair value of
share options granted at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in employee share-

based compensation reserve.

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss, with

a corresponding adjustment to employee share-based compensation reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in employee share-based compensation reserve will be transferred
to share premium. When the share options are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in employee share-based compensation

reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

Share options granted to employees on or before 7 November 2002, or granted
after 7 November 2002 and vested before 1 January 2005

The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded in the consolidated
financial statements until such time as the options are exercised, and no charge
is recognised in the consolidated income statement in respect of the value of
options granted. Upon the exercise of the share options, the resulting shares
issued are recorded as additional share capital at the nominal value of the
shares, and the excess of the exercise price per share over the nominal value
of the shares is recorded as share premium. Options which lapse or are cancelled

prior to their exercise date are deleted from the register of outstanding options.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Retirement benefit contributions

Payment to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the

contributions.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in
Note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are

considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of

assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment loss on inventory of properties

Included in the consolidated balance sheet at 31 December 2007 are inventory
of properties of HK$21,953,226,000 (2006: HK$9,171,918,000) which are carried
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Management conducts assessments
on the net realisable value of inventories by reference to their estimated net
selling price and other economic conditions of the markets in which the Group’s
properties are situated. If the actual selling prices of inventory of properties
are substantially less than expected due to an adverse market condition or
other factors, impairment loss on inventory of properties may result. For the
year ended 31 December 2006, an impairment loss on inventories of properties
of HK$68,156,000 was made in the consolidated financial statements. No

impairment loss was made in the current year.

Deferred tax assets

As at 31 December 2007, a deferred taxation asset of HK$374,174,000 (2006:
HK$369,403,000) in relation to allowance for bad and doubtful debts, write
down of inventory of properties, impairment loss of available-for-sale
investments and the provision of Land Appreciation Tax has been recognised
in the Group’s consolidated balance sheet. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised on the tax losses of HK$180,491,000 due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends
on whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences will be
available in the future. In cases where the actual future assessable profits
generated are less than or more than expected, a reversal or recognition of the
deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in the consolidated
income statement for the period in which such a reversal or recognition takes

place.
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5.  REVENUE

as follows:

Revenue represents income from sale of developed properties, rental income,

property management and related services, construction and decoration services

BT T
HK$’000 HK$°000
SEE R E Sale of developed properties 4,333,536 3,120,870
LA PN Rental income 738,957 587,087
My P2 S W R F Property management and related services 247,405 228,773
FE RN R H Construction and decoration services 361,197 -
5,681,095 3,936,730
6. EX J R 6. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS
(a) EHor# (a)  Business segments
BE-RRLEF+-_A=+—BEFAE Year ended 31 December 2007
HEEE
ECEE B ER EER
WE Property B AR H
Sale of investments Construction
developed and and decoration s
properties management services Consolidated
BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BEE Revenue
414K External sales 4,333,536 986,362 361,197 5,681,095
* 5 Result
T Segment result 1,200,551 1,297,377 13,492 2,511,420
Ko B A BN Unallocated interest income 79,694
PN N PN Unallocated other income 310,001
P WA Unallocated corporate expenses (44,569)
J& A T 25 N 8] £ 4 Share of results of associates = 67,715 = 67,715
MR A Finance costs (152,827)
FRBE AT % A Profit before taxation 2,771,434
HLIA Taxation (1,296,192)
S P9 i A Profit for the year 1,475,242
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6. EHRMBLHEEH ) 6.

(a) F#Ho#(H)

HE_BERLE T _A=t+—BLFHE

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued)
(a) Business segments (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2007 (continued)

(#%)
MEHRF HER
HE TR B g R KA IR F
¥ Property  Construction
Sale of  investments and
developed and decoration ko i
properties  management services Unallocated  Consolidated
BT BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
ESN i Other information
HRER Capital additions 10,175 2,291,046 52,551 604 2,354,376
LAY YT Depreciation of property,
I plant and equipment 25,580 6,049 411 276 32,316
A—ERLF+=—_A=+—8H At 31 December 2007
ECEE B ER EER
Wi Property AL TR F
Sale of investments Construction
developed and and decoration oA
properties management services Consolidated
BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
#E Assets
o HFE Segment assets 31,080,043 9,840,272 584,601 41,504,916
AT NG XA S Interests in associates - 593,600 - 593,600
JE N T 2 8] BOR Amount due from an associate 237,464 = = 237,464
RoBiend & E Unallocated corporate assets 5,148,829
LAH YA Consolidated total assets 47,484,809
A Liabilities
54 At Segment liabilities 5,184,253 536,828 577,344 6,298,425
Ao BLoE) A Unallocated corporate liabilities 17,574,522
b AR 4R Consolidated total liabilities 23,872,947
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6. LH BB EH ()

)

(a) FEHoHE

6.

RE-REXNF+ A=+ —RLEFR

BEH
b4

ES
SaEE

KB A BN

R Bt F AL BN

A BN

R yme A E) Fh

T AR B AR
AR 4R

JEAS T B 5] S Bt

M &R

PR AT i3 A
IR

£ Al

Revenue

External sales

Result

Segment result

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued)

(a) Business segments (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2006

e LR
mE

Sale of
developed
properties

BT
HK$’000
(Z49])
(Restated)

3,120,870

LET'S ¥
R
Property
investments
and
management

BT
HK$’000

815,860

RS
Consolidated

BT
HK$’000
(Z31)
(Restated)

3,936,730

641,769

885,096

Unallocated interest income

Unallocated other income

Income from investments

Unallocated corporate expenses

Impairment loss recognised in respect

of available-for-sale investments

Share of results of associates -

Finance costs

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit for the year

11,874

1,526,865

73,656

128,763

7,120
(80,215)

(158,658)
11,874

(176,919)

1,332,486
(480,611)

851,875
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6. EH A B o8 EH () 6. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued)
(a) EH»># () (a)  Business segments (continued)
HE_EZEXF+ _A=+—01LFE Year ended 31 December 2006 (continued)
(4%)
ECLERE %5
¥ Property
Sale of investments
developed and kB R
properties management Unallocated Consolidated

#EFL  BEFr 0 BEFL  BETR

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
H A A Other information
ARG R Capital additions 4,829 289,985 851 295,665
My B B R AR AT Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment 24,546 10,416 276 35,238
IR T N BE A A Write down of inventory of properties
W¥EGE included in cost of sales 68,156 - - 68,156
LT AL E R A AER Impairment loss recognised in
TR B 4R respect of available-for-sale
investments - - 158,658 158,658
I EENXF+—_A=+—8 At 31 December 2006
MEHRF
ECLERE %R
WE Property
Sale of investments
developed and i
properties management Consolidated

BT BETL BEFL

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

HE Assets

»iEEE Segment assets 14,050,187 7,999,533 22,049,720

AT NG XS Interests in associates = 489,394 489,394

TR T 2 3] BR Amount due from an associate 245,070 = 245,070

RoyBens) K E Unallocated corporate assets 3,955,131

AW E AL Consolidated total assets 26,739,315
A Liabilities

248 Atk Segment liabilities 2,822,778 399,833 3,222,611

K oBeNd) Atk Unallocated corporate liabilities 11,783,530

LA Ak Consolidated total liabilities 15,006,141

—EREFESR
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6. EH A B o8 EH () 6. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued)
(b) WA REDARBIOU L HA T E N (b)  No geographical segment analysis is shown as more than 90% of the
w B AR ME P B aA TR NN 55 Group’s businesses are derived from activities in, and from customers
A HE90% 49 F E AL AT B P9k it located in, the Chinese Mainland and more than 90% of the carrying
F-- RT3 U8 & IR RGP o o A values of assets of the Group are situated in the Chinese Mainland.
7. FHAbkA 7. OTHER INCOME
| 2000 [ 2006 |
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
R & Exchange gain 267,745 113,359
SRATH] BN Bank interest income 79,694 73,656
3 AT B 8] JE TR R B Discount on acquisition of additional non-controlling
R interests in a subsidiary 20,415 -
A ERTENTIEE Gain on changes in fair value on derivative
F R ER & financial instruments - 7,120
hE AL E R A2 kB Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments 17,570 =
) Others 4,271 8,284
389,695 202,419

SRR FEER
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8. EFEBAL 8.  DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
AT REAT124 (ZEEXF:19%) TFXZ The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 12 (2006: 19) directors were as
B 4 e follows:
Ex
W& HER  RAR _RExs
ZERLH R EX ) # Wi HEA O #BE EXR Fai I%  Andrew Ho  Chan Mo Total
2007 Song Lin ~ Wang Yin  Jiang Wei  Yan Biao Liu Yanjie Xie Shengxi Du Wenmin  Li Fuzuo ~ Wang Shi Y.Yan HinNgai  Po, Paul 2007

BEfa RiTr #%tr R%Ta #REfa BETa RETa RBfa RffA BEfa BEfa BRRfA BRfA
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000

e Fees
WiEE Executive directors 70 70 = = = - - - - = = = 140
FfEE Non-executive directors - - 70 70 70 46 2% 2% - = = = 304
Bid#irEF  Independent non-executive
directors - - - - - - - - 120 120 120 120 480
70 70 70 70 70 46 24 24 120 120 120 120 924
ERUEES Other emoluments
FaktwAEA  Salaries and other benefits - 2,513 - - - - - - - - - - 2,513
#{k@413H 1443 Contribution to retirement
benefit schemes - 100 - - - - - - - - - - 100
AR £ Share option expense - - - - 206 - 206 206 - - - - 618
WeuH Total emoluments - 2,613 - - 206 - 206 206 - - - - 3231
F 4 44
HEA  #BE O ERE Kamg  HER g iR Bk RER RER ZRER
Zhkrs 33 i i Wi Liu Xie Paul  Chi Wang, Lau #k R R 11] He iE Wong ~ Andrew Ho  ChanMo Totl
2006 Song Lin Wang Vi JingWei  YanBiao  VYanJie  ShengXi  Wolansky Ralph  Pak Shing ~ Zhong¥i  ChenYing  Chen Kai TangYong ZhengRong ~ Wang Shi  Kong Chi YYan  HinNgai  Po, Paul 2006
(323 AL RETL REFR REFR RERR RETR 0 BRPA RRPR MEfR RRFR 0 MEfR BEfR BPA BEfR BB BRA BHL BB BHR
HES 000 HES000  HKS000  HES000  HKS000  HES000  HKS000  HES000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HES000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HES000  HKS000  HKS000
w4 Fees
#i¥¥ Executive directors 0 0 - - - - - - 10 10 10 10 10 10 - - - - - 19
FiEs Non-exeautive directors - - 6 0 - 6 - 10 - - - - - - - - - - - 20
BAFAHEE  Independent non-executive
directors - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 10 64 57 10 57 418

0 10 60 ] - 60 - 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 64 i 10 i 808
Eedlg Other emoluments
FARAWEA  Salares and other benefits - 2363 - - - - - - - - 164 1,576 1612 81 - - - - - 7.9%
RkEAHAL  Contribution to retirement
beneft schemes - % - - - - - - - - 8l 8l 81 L) - - - - - 36
BE#EL Share option expense - 1230 1 216 B B - B - - B B - B - - B B - 112
Haky Total emoluments - 3691 b} 4o - - - - - - 1,705 1,657 1,693 866 - - - - B (1A
M. FRNHMEETEAETENL (ZEENF Note: During the year, none of the directors have waived the directors’ emoluments
EOREF-S 3 PIPNEW($ L0 PN EE e (2006: None). None of the directors have received any inducement pay for joining
TUAEAT 4E £ o or upon joining the Company.
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9. EEBAE

9. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

AEBALBRGFMALT O — 4 (ZEEx Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, one (2006:
i) ANAFTE REIMERA L LW one) was director of the Company whose emoluments are included in the
8o HHpm L (REXNF WE) AL B4 disclosures in note 8 above. The emoluments of the remaining four (2006:
dm four) individuals were as follows:

1 2 B

AR A4S A
B AR A SR R
TSNS R T

BT R e )
HK$’000 HK$°000
Salaries and other benefits 7,915 8,328
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes 226 264
Performance related incentive payments 2,813 8,067
10,954 16,659

RELWEN T TILE

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

1% B AHK

No. of employees

I N N

& — #7%1,000,000%

#461,000,001 7 % % 12,000,000 %
#42,000,001 72 % # 3,000,000 &
#43,000,001 72 % # 4,000,000 &
464,000,001 7T % # 45,000,000 %
#45,000,001 72 % # 6,000,000 &

Nil to HK$1,000,000 - -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 2
HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 - 1
HK$5,000,001 to HK$6,000,000 - 1

N = =
|
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10. ##% %A 10. FINANCE COSTS
BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
S F 5 PR R B R X R AT Interest on bank loans wholly repayable:
BB A8
EAE SO Within five years (659,076) (342,586)
B ¥ 3 Over five years (12,078) =
) Others (24,322) =
4R R A Total borrowing cost (695,476) (342,586)
BB R RTERBARET Less: Amount capitalised in properties under development
WEEAZ LR for specific bank borrowings 542,649 165,667
(152,827) (176,919)
11. #t=a 11. TAXATION
BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
(Z3))
(Restated)
Tk e The charge comprises:
Pp A AL Current tax:
AT Hong Kong Profit Tax (410) =
o B P9 3 A T AR AL Chinese Mainland Enterprise Income Tax (474,971) (213,458)
+ 33 A AL Land Appreciation Tax (256,965) (188,833)
POy & i - Underprovision in prior years:
o B P9 3 A AT AR AL Chinese Mainland Enterprise Income Tax - (51,751)
(732,346) (454,042)
i 2E HEIA (I 3222) Deferred taxation (note 22)
Hp S5 Current year (185,520) (26,569)
BLE B PTE A Attributable to changes in tax rates (378,326) =
(1,296,192) (480,611)
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11.

BLIA (#%)

AR 4 08 o B P9 £ BT AT AL 60 A R AR R
i A b B P9 I A 8] 6948 M A AT AR AL
Fe A SR B A ST R SRAL A 3T A AT AT

A AL P 99 A5 3R R AL A 0 17503
o

ZRELFZA+TNB PEAREREET
FAR A B 4052 5k 4 5 6330 ARG P EAR
FEAEIFEHE ([Fk]) —RELE+ =
Ao~ B F B B 3 AR AR A ik B AE AR ) o mRAR AT
RACRAA o R E BT B A AR
HEHGEENF—A—BARBIZINESL
25% o LA F A AR ZALFE15% 69 1B A E) @
TOHMAAEMA L F SR I E25% o BEIEHIR
R EAE A A R TAH @A AR E E R
SH ARG M A E

b SCPT A e 8 R AL A B E A X ALR B A
U 3E HLIA B X 4 # %5 378,000,000T ¢ ELAEA M
ANE HAEIER NG EM (EB) ARG
—REAFT A ENKENEEZIATAH
Heph 3L ALIE B X HE K 247,000,000
Fo kiR HE RN XTI 49 % 1,132,000,000
ARECHARE-RFES+ A Z+—ALS
XA MAEH R NG T Ak

11.

TAXATION (continued)

Provision for Chinese Mainland Enterprise Income Tax for both years has been
made based on the subsidiaries’ estimated assessable profits calculated in
accordance with the relevant enterprise income tax laws applicable to the

subsidiaries in the Chinese Mainland.

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at 17.5% of the estimated assessable

profits for the year.

On 16 March 2007, the People’s Republic of China promulgated the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income Tax (the “New Law”) by
Order No. 63 of the President of the People’s Republic of China. On 6 December
2007, the State Council of the PRC issued Implementation Regulations of the
New Law. The New Law and Implementation Regulations will change the tax
rate from 33% to 25% for the Group’s certain subsidiaries from 1 January
2008. For those subsidiaries enjoying privilege rate of 15%), the new tax rate is
progressively increasing to 25% over five years. The deferred tax balance has
been adjusted to reflect the tax rates that are expected to apply to the respective

periods when the asset is realised or the liability is settled.

The deferred taxation charge attributable to changes in tax rates of
approximately HK$378 million resulting from changes in applicable tax rates
as mentioned above included the effect of approximately HK$247 million in
relation to the deferred tax liabilities of the fair value adjustment arising from
the assets injection from the Company’s immediate holding company, China
Resources (Holdings) Company Limited, in December 2005. The discount
arising from such assets injection amounting to approximately HK$1,132
million was credited to the capital reserve account in the consolidated statement

of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 2005.
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11. HL3& (40

AR AR I B4R SR B R IRALAT A 23

Fde Tl

11. TAXATION (continued)

The taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before taxation

per the consolidated income statement as follows:

| 2 2006

At AT 3 A

e RIALFE33% (=R E~4F:33%)

A AIE

JE AL T B 5] E AR

AT R & R AR IR L2
BB

AT R &R RFPENZ
BB

KA RAALIA R ALY A

) i 45 3 K A SR AL AR

etk BALE A Z P AFAL

G PN ENOE S

g AE AL

35 {E AL AT B

HEREES &3 F Y

38R AL BB E A X A
EEHIAE ER G ERHE

A AR X

Profit before taxation

Tax charge at domestic tax rate of 33% (2006: 33%)

Tax effect of share of results of associates
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised
Income taxed at concessionary rate

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries

Land appreciation tax

Tax effect of land appreciation tax

Under provision in prior years

Effect on opening deferred tax assets and liabilities

resulting from changes in applicable tax rates

Tax charge for the year

BT R e )
HK$’000 HK$°000
(Z49)
(Restated)
2,771,434 1,332,486
(914,573) (439,720)
22,346 3,918
(51,848) (12,698)
27,206 23,859
(2,939) (29,838)
50,100 7,386
108,886 35,881
15,123 108,870
(256,965) (188,833)
84,798 62,315
- (51,751)
(378,326) -
(1,296,192) (480,611)
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12.  F P9 Al

12.  PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

| 2 2006

BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
F A AR Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging:
FEM 4 Directors’ emoluments
% Fees 924 808
A B A B A Salaries and other emoluments 2,613 8,382
Hf B TR A Other staff costs 153,550 114,638
BARAGF R A T 645 5 Retirement benefit cost, excluding amount included
HEEW A B in directors’ emoluments 24,201 12,554
AR A B X (R aET A Share option benefits expenses (excluding
FTEMAXHIA) B TR ALE amount included in directors’ emoluments) 13,559 27,630
B TR A KA Total staff costs 194,847 164,012
BB ABRETPHERTAZ Less: Amount capitalised in the properties
£ under development (28,152) (18,621)
166,695 145,391
HERLHM L Z AT RA Cost of inventories recognised as expense 3,523,417 2,384,377
A% B 67 B A Auditors’ remuneration 1,250 1,589
FaATAL R A He b Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 923 923
H o REP BR 2 68 € R SRR 5 4R Impairment losses recognised on other receivables 28,387 =
PRGNS B R A E A3 Write down of inventory of properties included in cost of sales - 68,156
My B B R BRI Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 32,316 35,238
g W R R BRI R Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment - (61)
Ak B N B HLIE (EFEA Share of tax of associates (included in share of results
JEAL T 2 8] £ &) of associates) (13,373) 3,994
&AL T & and after crediting:
KA AL DR Gross rental income from investment properties 738,957 587,087
WG E A A RN Less: Direct operating expenses from investment
BAMEZARE properties that generated rental income
B S during the year (136,130) (106,648)
602,827 480,439
WsE: AZREAEZ RN E EA 4% 194,144,000 Note:  Profit of the Company for 2007 amounted to approximately HK$94,144,000 (2006:
(= EERNF A 4 5 595,105,000T) © loss of approximately HK$95,105,000).
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13. B&& 13. DIVIDENDS
T BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
EAT AL B Dividend paid:
P BRI Z P AR Interim dividend paid during the year
— B L R AR N2 44N — HK2.4 cents (2006: HK2.0 cents) per ordinary share 90,032 62,712
(=B BN 52.000)
ZRENFRIPEE CRER Final dividend in respect of 2006, approved and paid
— R A R LB RS 14l — HK5.1 cents per ordinary share 169,464 =
—RRAFRKE CHER Final dividend in respect of 2005, approved and paid
— R A BE BRE3.34) — HK3.3 cents per ordinary share - 102,679
B B R A A AT 1 R B T IR Additional final dividend for prior year due to exercise
0 28 SN R A2 S R AR B of share options and placement of new shares 21,517 657
281,013 166,048
IR LB Dividend proposed:
ESCE § % )P N Final dividend proposed for the year
— B LB R AR T 44N — HK7.4 cents (2006: HK5.1 cents) per ordinary share
(=B RN 305 140) 297,865 169,464
AN EFAHARMBE_REXLFE+ A = The final dividend of HK7.4 cents per ordinary share in respect of the financial
+ — B2k BB B AG R A BR B A I A AR R N year ended 31 December 2007 has been proposed by the directors of the
7440 0 75 H dr 4% ©BAT By 0B 4,025,201,318 Company which is based on the latest number of shares of 4,025,201,318 in
R REAY 3T 368 HE BE SR HE B RE R K A Bk o issue and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming general
meeting.
14. HREZA 14. EARNINGS PER SHARE
A B il B AFH AR R AR R 2 The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the
F) 75 A T IR A ordinary equity holders of the Company is based on the following data:
R T BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
B A Earnings
R EE R KRG A A Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings
Z BA] (KR8] BRI A per share (profit for the year attributable to equity holders
JE AL AR B A]) of the Company) 1,431,082 858,675
i # R Number of shares
R ABRARBAZ Weighted average number of ordinary shares
T AT %8 A R for the purposes of basic earnings per share 3,599,933,445 3,109,038,980
T R AR 35 B AT B AR R oY Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares on
£-38 % share options 47,443,349 48,175,061
R EERBERF 2 Weighted average number of ordinary shares
T AT 58 AR d R for the purposes of diluted earnings per share 3,647,376,794 3,157,214,041
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15. W&

BA

—REkH$—HA—H
PR M P 8] E A (T 3234(31)

—ERXE+-_A=+—8

ey {6

—EEXH+-_HA=+—8n

15. GOODWILL

COST
At 1 January 2007

Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary (note 34(i))

At 31 December 2007

CARRYING AMOUNTS
At 31 December 2007

BHTF
HK$°000

50,423

50,423

50,423

AEBAEH > HELER S HE AL IRy
HoBHBATRALRM X AL )R EZEREN
REELERL QEINEEREG S HZS
R B A o

RE-_RRLHE+_A=+—BLSFE K&
BERERRAHLTRLAL EL T L AR
18 o

rTERAAEAREITRELHAER LTS
A AR AR i 4o T

BT Z O E A A T AR R AR R AR AR S Ak
o # 3 FR AR IR A 2L R MR A R A 4G At B
FALAL0%Z AT B RFAM AL AT ZF KW
REREER 2% 4273 Rk BB -HIRE
TR WA EREAMNGE B RBH
MAT £ 09T R &N IE ik
e E BB OBEFREANRE (0K
FAFEAEBEALA)  mEEFREE R
818 R R E R A TSR R TR WA
o F AN AT LIRS ARG
RERHEERRGAE E A T AIRE A
A LTI R B Ao

The Group uses business segments as its primary segment for reporting segment
information. For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill have been
allocated to the construction and decoration cash generating units (CGUs),
including various subsidiaries included in the construction and decoration

segment.

During the year ended 31 December 2007, management of the Group determines

that there are no impairments of its CGUs containing goodwill.

The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above CGUs and their major

underlying assumptions are summarised below:

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined based on a value in
use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a 5-year period, and discount rate
of 10%. Cash flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a steady
2% growth rate. This growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth
forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant
industry. Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations relate to the
estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales and gross
margin, such estimation is based on the unit’s past performance and
management’s expectations for the market development. Management believes
that any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would not
cause the aggregate carrying amount of the CGU of construction and decoration

to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of this CGU.
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16. ¥ B A& A 16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
BB A EHIE
Furniture A% Construction
HF and Motor in 4=t
Buildings equipment vehicles progress Total
wEFL  w¥FL  aWFLT  BETT Bk
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
PRI COST
—EEXF—HA—n At 1 January 2006 538,658 63,825 18,731 18,903 640,117
i AE 3R B Currency realignment 25,744 3,413 1,036 11,609 41,802
NE Additions - 26,025 2,143 247,230 275,398
Ei &t Write-off - (2,604) (877) - (3,481)
—ERx$+=_A=+—8 At 31 December 2006 564,402 90,659 21,033 277,742 953,836
LR S Currency realignment 36,123 10,337 3,115 31,808 81,383
NE Additions 252 11,874 2,638 288,400 303,164
N B TR B o 8] B B4 Acquired on acquisition of
(M 3£34) subsidiaries (Note 34) 149 8,626 3,272 1,988,742 2,000,789
£ Disposal - (6,993) (2,835) - (9,828)
—RRLFE+-_A=+—8 At 31 December 2007 600,926 114,503 27,223 2,586,692 3,329,344
LR VE 2 DEPRECIATION AND
AMORTISATION
—EEXF—HA—n At 1 January 2006 72,298 16,012 10,772 - 99,082
i AE 38 B Currency realignment 2,027 1,445 704 - 4,176
KA Provided for the year 14,407 18,193 2,638 = 35,238
e sh Write-off - (1,705) (786) - (2,491)
—ERx$+=_A=+—8 At 31 December 2006 88,732 33,945 13,328 - 136,005
HE Al 2 Currency realignment 3,882 3,233 1,325 - 8,440
KA Provided for the year 16,837 11,451 4,028 = 32,316
£ Disposal (2,279) (2,056) (4,722) - (9,057)
—EELHF+=_A=+—8 At 31 December 2007 107,172 46,573 13,959 - 167,704
PR A CARRYING VALUES
—EEX5+-_fA=+—8 At 31 December 2007 493,754 67,930 13,264 2,586,692 3,161,640
—EEXHF+=_A=+—8 At 31 December 2006 475,670 56,714 7,705 277,742 817,831
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16. ¥ BB B () 16.

HEFAE AP B P 2P BAL A A o

Prfe 3 TAZ IS ik My B B R M OA B v
T AR R H Rk AT

M5 404F B ALE BT E M
IR B
Mo B 5%
A 5%
17. FEAAE KA 17.

AEEZFAMAAEALA T B RN A B4
Bl o FAAT AL A 45 AR 1 50F HA P4 o

18. BAMWE 18.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
Buildings are located in the Chinese Mainland and are held under medium-

term leases.

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are depreciated on a straight-line basis with the following estimated

useful lives:

Buildings 40 years or over the unexpired term of lease,
whichever is shorter
Furniture and equipment 5 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS
The Group’s prepaid lease payments are situated in the Chinese Mainland and
held under medium-term leases. The prepaid lease payments are amortised

over 50 years.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

BT

HK$’000
AR FAIR VALUE
—EEXH—FA—H At 1 January 2006 6,967,634
B3R Currency realignment 66,717
NE Additions 20,267
A AMEAE (W) Transferred from inventory of properties (Note) 62,230
FEE AR B R R Z T AR 3G I Increase in fair value recognised in consolidated income statement 502,552
—REX#F+—_HA=+—8 At 31 December 2006 7,619,400
L kS Currency realignment 548,457
A EE AR B R AR Z T AR 3G I Increase in fair value recognised in consolidated income statement 799,955
—REkF+=—A=+—8 At 31 December 2007 8,967,812

Wit BOATORHBBERADERETFHELR
Z T AEL 3 A 8 3 525,999,000 T

AEBARADWEA _ZRLE+_A=+—18
ZAFE R A EREAMEZIBI AR
B E R IR IE AL TR F) A3 B AT
FE AR 2y B FEAF o o T AR P AL A RN B B A
WA RE T A FEMMLE ALY X
Bo T MAEIA s X M EZ R H BT
A LD

Note: Amount in prior year included an increase in fair value of certain inventory of
properties upon the transfer to investment properties of approximately
HK$25,999,000.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 December 2007 have
been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on that date by CB
Richard Ellis Limited, independent qualified professional valuers not connected
with the Group. CB Richard Ellis Limited has appropriate qualifications and
recent experiences in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant
locations. The valuation was arrived at by reference to market evidence of

transaction prices for similar properties.
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18. &AM E &) 18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
AEBRABRPBALEIEALTERRZME L All of the Group’s property interests in leasehold land and building to earn
WZERYEMBAANTEEXF T EH rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using the fair value
BAERINEZ T E- model and are classified and accounted for as investment properties.

A BB F+ A =+—8 KEBCKI The Group has pledged investment properties of approximately
#4 3 1 2,883,060,000 T X 4% A4 £ (— B E HK$2,883,060,000 at 31 December 2007 (2006: HK$2,473,000,000) to secure
S0 2,473,000,000T ) 0 AE B K SR B O AR — general banking facilities granted to the Group (see note 31).

A ARAT BR A Z 48 A0 (JLM3231) o

BHEHELATE P AR The investment properties are located in the PRC under medium-term lease.
19. AHEN IS 19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
|20 2006
BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
AT AN 8] JF BT AR E LR A Cost of unlisted investments in associates 70,294 65,831
JE AL W Bk 4% A 0 48 do Th R 8 Share of post-acquisition profits, net of dividend received 523,306 423,563
593,600 489,394
A BB 8] Z 8 A AR R e T Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s associates is set
out below:
Y T N
BT T
HK$’000 HK$°000
A E4AE Total assets 2,067,574 1,847,449
B th s Total liabilities (880,025) (868,334)
FE A Net assets 1,187,549 979,115
R B AL BN XA E A Group’s share of net assets of associates 593,600 489,394
i Revenue 136,896 118,677
ES b Profit for the year 132,114 24,011
AR B JE A B S N E) 2 A Group’s share of results of associates for the year 67,715 11,874
A AR BB 8] 2 B 7241(c) ° Particulars of the Group’s associates are set out in note 41(c).

—EREFESR
Annual Report 2007



AR R

Notes to the Financial Statements

20. JEAL— R I B8] KA 20.

JEM — RIS N8 HOA A RN LR &E
REBEZH AN EERLIZFEAREAL
R+ =18 A NIE R R AAEE R K E

21, THREEXRFE 21.

AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE

The amount due from an associate is unsecured, interest-free and does not
have fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the amount will not be repayable in the next twelve months, and accordingly,

it is shown as non-current.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

e T s

BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR E A Available-for-sale investments comprise:
R PR bR R Unlisted equity securities in the Chinese Mainland,
R A at cost 369,908 371,908
Al 98 Currency realignment (7,731) (8,646)
R AR Less: Impairment losses (165,957) (165,957)
196,220 197,305

WA B KRR 3 B E T G RAR e b AE S
SHENATHEZERLER ABANEEFRSL
AT B ETEF S K ERBAAEEHD
Fie AR de B AR 5 BR o

TR EFRABATT RN FMAER —MA
T E AN TR F T ®
BB REBBA FZNE19.6% ) HBRHEE AR
BMBEAZEENE ZNIEERBE
MR ERH A A LR TRAEMAE-H
AER AL B R AR EIORE G AT
158,658,000C * vA 3t 3% A & J 4% A1k b &
o

AR B A AL T MR 4
HEZRFNNGETRETRABES - ARNF
FEOHRBR A EFTRATE ERAAER
LF+ A =+ — 8 FAAE R

AL W R
/A\

The above were stated at cost less impairment at each balance sheet date since
the equity investments do not have a quoted market price in an active market
and the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the fair value cannot be

reliably measured.

In prior year, the directors have reviewed the recoverable amount of the Group’s
available-for-sale investments in a property development company in Beijing
with reference to the current market conditions. The Group held a 19.6%
minority stake in the company as long term investment. Operating environment
of the company has deteriorated in 2006 and the company was facing liquidity
or potential dissolution issue. Therefore, the Group has recognised full
impairment loss of HK$158,658,000 in the consolidated income statement to

fully provide for such long term investment.

The Group’s remaining available-for-sale investments represents certain unlisted
equity securities in a property investment company incorporated in Beijing.
The directors of the Company have performed an impairment assessment on
the investment and are of the opinion that no provision for impairment loss is

required as at 31 December 2007.
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22. BESAEE (AH) 22. DEFERRED TAXATION ASSETS (LIABILITIES)
VAT B RFE A B A B AL £ Rk 3t The followings are the major deferred taxation assets (liabilities) recognised
HIBAE(AE)ARFMEH- and movements thereon during the current and prior years.
4l %
(Mzz)
FIEIREAE  ERIEH Other
#EHE  Allowance for Land temporary
Investment doubtful  appreciation differences “ 3t
properties debts tax (Note) Total

L T BFTr  BETr BT

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
—EEXF—H—R At 1 January 2006 (507,942) 206,284 - 42,579 (259,079)
i AE R B Currency realignment (23,369) 11,289 - 842 (11,238)
(3= B) FANARFELES (Charge) credit to consolidated
BB & income statement for the year (134,978) - 54,752 53,657 (26,569)
—RENF+-_A=1+—18 At 31 December 2006 (666,289) 217,573 54,752 97,078 (296,886)
i AE 38 B Currency realignment (67,394) 9,791 6,910 7,380 (43,313)
B T B 8] Acquisition of subsidiaries = 1,308 = (28) 1,280
(3= B) FARFELES (Charge) credit to consolidated
HH & income statement for the year (256,858) 7,097 64,241 = (185,520)
BEREZHE Effect of changes in tax rate (286,398) (53,438) (13,909) (24,581) (378,326)
—EELE+=—H=+—H  At31 December 2007 (1,276,939) 182,331 111,094 79,849 (902,765)
Wi Htbfm 20 MR MEATATHE Note:  Other temporary differences mainly represent the deductible temporary differences
ERAREABERELAZ TRy HF £ arising from the write down of inventory of properties and impairment loss of

available-for-sale investments.

—EREFESR
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22. BEBAFE (AH) %) 22. DEFERRED TAXATION ASSETS (LIABILITIES) (continued)
AR X kAR ? > A T Analysis of the deferred taxation balances at the balance sheet date is as follows:
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
i 2 HLIB R E Deferred taxation assets 374,174 369,403
A HLIA G Deferred taxation liabilities (1,276,939) (666,289)
(902,765) (296,886)
ARG EFRL HAREEZZFWHB NG No deferred taxation assets has been recognised in respect of estimated tax
B 4% 6% A+ 3k 3 £ 38 R 1 180,491,000T (=& losses of HK$180,491,000 (2006: HK$308,198,000) as, in the opinion of the
BN F 0 1308,198,000T) A+ HLIE 5 AR A directors of the Company, the future profit streams of these subsidiaries are
RBREAIF-HBBRR S THEH RS uncertain. The tax loss could be carried forward for a maximum of five years.
23. HEAEE 23. INVENTORY OF PROPERTIES
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000
BREPHE Properties under development 20,160,446 7,656,914
HEME Properties held for sale 1,792,780 1,515,004
21,953,226 9,171,918
WEHEEAPE P AT AL FA TR The inventory of properties was located in the Chinese Mainland under medium-
A B A =8 A 4§. 45(@1457 EXC term lease. Inventory of properties which are expected to be recovered in more
Ep muﬁb AE RRAAHZEFHEERIMTARN than twelve months after the balance sheet date are classified under current
8] JE i 1R I A S o asset as it is expected to be realised in the Group’s normal operating cycle.
24, A BH 24.  OTHER INVENTORIES
PN T T
HK$’000 HK$°000
JRA Raw materials 1,661 1,068
H AT A Kb Consumables and others 11,073 11,070
12,734 12,138

—EREHFESR
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25. JEMCRRF O AL RRIA R EATIT A 25. TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

DEPOSITS PAID

e

BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000

JEN BE 21 Trade receivables 641,084 574,973
R R FHRAL Less: Accumulated impairments (328,696) (308,913)
312,388 266,060

SRR £ AR R A e AT s Deposits paid for acquisition of land use rights 5,509,152 3,286,710
H b W RRIE - FAAT AR A A 43T 4  Other receivables, prepayments and other deposits 1,203,826 1,049,228
G R R R Less: Accumulated impairments of other receivables (258,442) (213,301)
6,766,924 4,388,697

AARERGEH LY ALB—RFREGLT
ENES ESCRE T

AEBEBKRAZ S S ORENEMEEN
312,388,000 (=& &4 % #266,060,000
) W RENCIR B ZF KRB AR E BT
F 0 MR B O Bk A AR B et
BB R GEHRREETHERARGMEY
WA Ao A — T BT HERRERM &
T X2 5 49 © Ao FR IR JE M RR Bk AR B0 JE S 8 A
B HA e 3 A 0 JE MR AR AR ] o

R BRI 63 45 £ 48 38 5 328,696,000T (=
B R HH308,913,0005T ) ¢ 18 A AR 89 &
WCRR A F MR F R 2 A P sk R 3
Mo o Ak AR B 3 S A A AR e 3RIT o K
8RR L RE B oA E e hRIA
JE M I B PR M M e T

Due to the nature of business of the Group, the Group generally grants no

credit period to property buyers.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors with aggregate
carrying amount of HK$312,388,000 (2006: HK$266,060,000) which are past
due at the reporting date for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss. The Group has retained the ownership of the property sold to the property
buyer for overdue debtor balances. Since no credit terms is generally granted
to property buyers, the aged analysis of trade receivables net of impairment
presented below should be the same as the ageing of trade receivables past due

but not impaired.

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired trade
receivables with an aggregate balance of HK$328,696,000 (2006:
HK$308,913,000) which have either been placed under liquidation or in severe
financial difficulties. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
No movement in the allowance for doubtful debts in the current year. The
following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of impairments at the

balance sheet date:

| 2 2006

BT U T
HK$’000 HK$’000
—5 7N Within one year 195,848 135,304
—F 2k Over one year 116,540 130,756
312,388 266,060

—EREFESR
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25. OKFRF AWK RE A LT 25. TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
(#%) DEPOSITS PAID (continued)
R RAEE Movement in the accumulated impairments for:
2007 2006
E T
HK$’000 HK$’000
TN R B Bk Trade receivables
B RS Balance at beginning of the year 308,913 296,866
[E 53R & Exchange realignment 19,783 12,047
E o TS Balance at the end of the year 328,696 308,913
RtmAL S 8 Movement in the accumulated impairments for:
O 2 BT
BT T
HK$’000 HK$°000
b JE M2k A Other receivables
SEATEE R Balance at beginning of the year 213,301 204,982
o B AR TR G B R SRR AR Impairment losses recognised on other receivable 28,387 =
FE 3630 Exchange realignment 16,754 8,319
SE AR Balance at the end of the year 258,442 213,301

—EREHFESR
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26. M (M) BP oS I REE 26. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT
WORKS
O N N
BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
ALFAHEEISE Contracts in progress at the balance sheet date
& E A 0 TAZ R KA T AEZR Contract costs incurred plus recognised profits less
i A IR B AE L 5 48 recognised losses 2,833,692 -
R R Less: progress billings (2,767,156) -
66,536 -
st 2 HRAE B a9 AT Analysed for reporting purposes as:
JEM A4 % P #R Amounts due from contract customers 190,784 -
JEAT -4 B P #OR Amounts due to contract customers (124,248) -
66,536 -

27.

28.

A ERBEXF+_A=+—H BP#AHT
BRI E 42 5B 116,815000T (=R E X
FiR)LREPHEHIRERBEN
21,128,000 (=R EXF 1 &) o

TR % T B 8) /B B4 B 3] 3
A

AWM BA A RIAT BT DA AR %
=@ AN g

BARBATE G

R RBITEE OB THEHNR0T2EE
333 (mEEXN£:25852958) a2k
AT B2 o

FNRL A R T O F BB AR
#3,652,077,000T (48 % # # % 3,899,689,000
) (ZRENHF AR H2,312,470,000T (48 %
A5 1 2,312,470,000T) ) A AR B3 HEA
K73 RT B ol L o

—EREFESR
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28.

At 31 December 2007, retentions held by customers for contract works
amounted to HK$16,815,000 (2006: Nil). Advances received from customers
for contract work amounted to HK$21,128,000 (2006: Nil).

AMOUNTS DUE FROM FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES/IMMEDIATE
HOLDING COMPANY
The amounts are unsecured, trade in nature and recoverable within 12 months

after the balance sheet date.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash and bank balances comprise short-term bank deposits carry interest at
market rates which range from 0.72% to 3.33% (2006: 2.5% to 2.95%) per

annum.

Included in cash and bank balances, there is a total balance amounting to
RMB3,652,077,000 (equivalent to HK$3,899,689,000) (2006: RMB2,312,470,000
(equivalent to HK$2,312,470,000)) accumulated in RMB which is not a freely

convertible currency.
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28. BAERBATHSG (4) 28. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (continued)
RERABATEEEL AL TR The cash and bank balances are denominated in the following currencies:

T T BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
R Hong Kong dollars 592,546 1,021,941
AR HE Renminbi 3,899,689 2,312,470
£ 7T United States Dollars 20,511 23,217
HA Others 4,055 -
4,516,801 3,357,628
29.  JEATPRE A H AL JEATBROR 29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

| 2 2006

BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
JEA RR AR Trade payables 1,199,422 902,371
H b JEAT B OR ARG B A Other payables and accrued charges 897,254 836,124
2,096,676 1,738,495
AGEE B X JEATBR R E S M T The following is an aged analysis of trade payables at the balance sheet date:

BT &L
HK$’000 HK$’000
—% N Within one year 501,789 475,236
— Over one year 697,633 427,135
1,199,422 902,371

—EREHFESR
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30.

31.

AR 4 W B aa) A fErgne )/
P38 & &

JEAT B S B B o 8] B b B RO 75 SR AT R
BE HHE -

JE AT B 442 R 8 #A d5 Kk Cosmart
Enterprise Limited ([ Cosmart])) Z J& 44X 1%
(FLW3234) » 75 3 & B ARAT R EAF & 5 4 &
0523 B o MR CAFNEHIME-

SRAT B

AMOUNTS DUE TO FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES/IMMEDIATE
HOLDING COMPANY/A MINORITY SHAREHOLDER

The amounts due to fellow subsidiaries and a minority shareholder are

The amount due to immediate holding company representing the consideration
payable for the acquisition of Cosmart Enterprise Limited (“Cosmart”) (see
note 34) which was interest bearing at Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
(“HIBOR”) plus 0.5% per annum. The whole amount was repaid during the

30.
unsecured and trade in nature.
year.

31. BANK BORROWINGS

e =

BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
A AP Secured 2,338,782 1,250,000
ey Unsecured 13,095,166 8,341,569
15,433,948 9,591,569
AT 5 2 MR R X AR E Carrying amount repayable:

HERR—FN On demand or within one year 2,712,212 3,434,031
B 2 = N ARt More than one year but not exceeding two years 3,167,660 1,370,000
LI Y S =4 NP L 2 More than two years but not more than five years 9,307,147 4,787,538
AEVLE More than five years 246,929 =
15,433,948 9,591,569

RA A EPTE—F N Less: Amounts due within one year shown under
EE R ] current liabilities (2,712,212) (3,434,031)
12,721,736 6,157,538

AREAAMERTRIAREF S ZIHH

A AE R HI 4o T

The Group’s borrowings that are denominated in currencies other than the

functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out below:

1 N2

Hong Kong dollars

s #F T T
HKS$000 HKS$000
8,236,676 4,485,000

—EREFESR
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31.

SEAT AR B (#)

HHEBEOERETHEZHE61R (
F:5.62) af,uz&,béﬁﬁia**k%» H
7,197,272,0004T (=& &> F % ¥
5,106,569,000T.) & 3 A £3.788 (=& &
N 438)2) R A BARATE £ Em0.342
(;ﬁ%*#'ﬁ%éﬁﬁﬂ £ B m0.342) 3
bz é’?“é‘%‘ %8,236,676,000T (= EE~
1 4,485,000,000T) o4 HE AR B R 2R K
Pt B H A RIA S RA B B — F @R R o

=3

VA bR B AR B 564,068,000 (=R &R
1,063,971, OOOit A # 60,000,000
AN(ZERNF BRFRA) ST H RS
W P B 3 A3 %I%I ) R F s WA KR
% B35 % 7,327,500,000T (= FZ 5580
1,400, 000 0007T) ZSRAT B 2k - 4 Fa AR B & 2 Hh

31.

R
TR A AN 8] CHAT

32. X

po M (RH) ESERKZHMNA
AR Y 35%-°

32.

BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

Amount included fixed-rate bank borrowings of HK$7,197,272,000 (2006:
HK$5,106,569,000) which carry interest at average fixed rate of 6.1% per annum
(2006: 5.6% per annum) and variable-rate borrowings of HK$8,236,676,000
(2006: HK$4,485,000,000) which carried effective interest at 3.78% (2006:
4.38%) per annum and contractual interest at HIBOR plus 0.34% (2006: HIBOR
plus 0.34%)

lump sum upon maturity in accordance with the terms set out in the respective

per annum. The borrowings are repayable by instalments or in a

loan agreements.

Included in the borrowings of the Group above are unsecured loans amounting
to HK$64,068,000 (2006: HK$1,063,971,000) and HK$60,000,000 (2006:
HK$nil), which were guaranteed by CRNC and CRH respectively. Also, in respect
of bank borrowings of the Group amounting to HK$7,327,500,000 (2006:
HK$1,400,000,000) in accordance with the terms of the respective loan
agreements, CRH is required to hold not less than 35% of the issued share

capital of the Company at any time during the period of the loans.

SHARE CAPITAL

BAr#A

Number of shares

BA
Share capital

O 0 A T
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
AR @A 0.10T X %@ K Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
=R Authorised:
5 B # At the beginning of the year
and at the end of the year 5,000,000,000 5,000,000,000 500,000 500,000
BT B R Issued and fully paid
F 47 At the beginning of the year 3,322,815,409  2,773,670,691 332,281 277,367
fie. £ #7 Bk (M 3xa) Placement of new shares (Note a) 400,000,000 300,000,000 40,000 30,000
748 Bh REAE (M 32D) Exercise of share options (Note b)
(.M 3£33) (see note 33) 33,295,000 63,040,500 3,330 6,304
A 2 M B T B o 8] B S HE B Issued in consideration for the
Z KAR W 4T (M 32c) acquisition of subsidiaries (Note c) 269,090,909 186,104,218 26,909 18,610
E S At the end of the year 4,025,201,318 3,322,815,409 402,520 332,281
—RR X
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32.

33.

J& A (4%)

Mizz:

(a) ZRRLFRANB RN B ARARE R
9.81 7T H AT A B 400,000,000 8% 4 A% & 44
W01 LF@ A AF AR EBEEF £ oH5d
B A & T @ ST Ry F A R S AHEA o

(b) P9 A E) sk A HE A AT M 45 4733,295,000
B H P ) AR S R 0. 150 5 4 AT 4 P9 A AR AHE 49
ATARAR ATk 450,96 T 2 5 B 4594 o A il
RE e &5 @ LA WAy F A R FHEA o

() ZFEEXF+ZA=+ANB KN MHR
ML E A R E) (T[R4 ]) #47269,090,909 i
AR @A #0158 MR (LR 3E34) -

A BB 3T 8

A B) A M RS o [ S ) &[T 3
B ] w5 S A RN B LRI AAK
A FBANE A AR

Bl AN RBEAZRERELA =18
BBLFTEGRAERAEA TR _F—]
Z+— B AT R A I AR A R R
—F—A =+ —8 AN KR ELEE
T B RAFER B A B XA H
AR EBARNG A EMBE NN ZRE (A
AN EE) MBEFI AN EFFHLL
MEREHEZATIER AT B R ER B R R —F
LR — B ATR 2 b AL A 2 AT B R
3 RAFAKA KN 8] My 2 18 o AR IR 3B 3%
T & S h 2 g AT 6 1 B BT R T AT
BB RS FARBBRE—FIHA—BF
MRZ EFHA EF ERe

—EREFESR
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33.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(a) On 8 May 2007, the Company issued and allotted 400,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each for consideration of HK$9.81 per share to finance the Group’s working
capital. The new ordinary shares rank pari passu with the existing shares in all

aspect.

(b) During the year, the Company issued 33,295,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
upon exercise of share options. The exercise price of the share options during the
period ranges from HK$0.96 to HK$4.59 per share. The new ordinary shares rank

pari passu with the existing shares in all aspect.

(c) On 28 December 2007, 269,090,909 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each (Note 34) were

issued for the acquisition of Speedy Gain Investments Limited (“Speedy Gain”).

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
The Company operates share option schemes for the purpose of promoting
additional commitment and dedication to the objectives of the Company by

participants, namely the “Old Scheme” and the “New Scheme”.

The Old Scheme refers to the share option scheme adopted by the Company
pursuant to a board resolution passed on 20 July 2000, which subsisted until
31 January 2002. On 31 January 2002, the shareholders of the Company
approved the termination (to the effect that no further options shall be offered)
of the Old Scheme. Eligible participants of the Old Scheme were the employees
of the Company and the subsidiaries (including directors of the Company).
The exercise price of the share option under the Old Scheme is determined by
the directors of the Company. The exercise price will not exceed the maximum
discount permitted by the Listing Rules applicable prior to 1 September 2001
and not less than the nominal value of the Company’s shares. The maximum
number of shares issued and permitted to be issued on the exercise of options
under the Old Scheme and to be granted to each participant does not exceed
the maximum limit as permitted by the Listing Rules applicable before 1
September 2001.
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33.

ERRAEE ()

AR RARR_F AT AR
&R R P AL SRS YT o R
NEFE AT o A R A S B A
FA KB AR OF RN PATIIERATE
iy AN ZEMIE B FATRIFPATEF AT
BEGRMEHRIAEMEHTEARER
R RN S B M A M AT AT A
B B AN 8] R 2R B 2N 8] AT
REEM AN ZEF TROHAA LR
RGN R E T A B AR IRAT R
A8 FF B AR AT AR @ R K
AVAT Z 4 2 5% &1 A 8) B e B A A 4%
o B KT R Y R R A E R
WA S B X T AR SR & o AR AR
Fr 3B 3% A Y R AT Z BT B IR A B AT
1 BT AR AT XY 40 S VA BOAR IR 3T B A
¥ A AT T BT R G
HB AR S B AR IR AT SR T AR R B
Ao Rl Ae g7 & W Ei LA BT E X Eke

ARAEATARA B B EAHEL B2
BAZ+ANRN I ATE BT e RAR 8
T Ky o BT K IR AR 09 87 B AAT R EE &
SRR AL B R AFA B AT
FE I AR B A R AR
S oft fe B AR R ST B AT B PR SR B A
MERBAZERLET A=+ —B 8
ARIE T ST R AT S F] 3% A RAT 1R 2B B AE
A8 M A B 5 R A R 50,372,5008% (=
&R 4 113,708,000 8% & 77,534,000/% ) » 48 %
ARG E AT 0% A 1.25% (K&
A 10.41% % 2.33%) o

33.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The New Scheme refers to the share option scheme adopted by the Company
which was approved by the shareholders in general meeting on 31 January
2002. The board of directors may grant options to eligible participants,
including executive or non-executive directors of the Company, any
discretionary object of a discretionary trust established by any employee,
executive or non-executive directors of the Company, any executives and
employees of consultants, professional and other advisors to the Group, chief
executive, substantial shareholder of the Company, associate companies of the
Group, associates of directors, chief executive and substantial shareholder of
the Company, and employees of substantial shareholder. The exercise price of
the share option under the New Scheme is determined by the directors of the
Company, and will not be less than the higher of the closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of grant, the average closing price of the shares
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant, and the
nominal value of the share. The total number of shares that may be issued
upon the exercise of all options granted and yet to be exercised under the New
Scheme and the maximum number of shares that may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted thereunder and the maximum entitlement of each
participant under the New Scheme is respectively, equivalent to the maximum

limit permitted under the prevailing Listing Rules.

The offer of a grant of share options under both schemes may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of the offer together with the payment of HK$1
in total by the grantee. The vesting and exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable at the entire discretion of the board of directors with
the vesting period not exceeding four years and the exercise period will not
exceed a period of ten years immediately after acceptance of grant. Options are
lapsed if the employee leaves the Group before the options vest. At 31 December
2007, the number of shares in respect of which options had been granted and
remained outstanding under the Old Scheme and the New Scheme were nil
and 50,372,500 (2006: 13,708,000 and 77,534,000) shares, representing 0%
and 1.25% (2006: 0.41% and 2.33%), respectively, to the shares of the Company

in issue at that date.
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33. E%H—U%'fi’ (#%) 33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
TAWEMRE (QREF) AN B EH The following tables disclose details of the Company’s share options held by
FHRAKFEZEH: employees (including directors) and movements in such holdings during the
year:
BRAEHA
Number of share options
AR AZRExH AZRRxE
AR —A—8 ek E $ AT #Mx#%k t=Azt+-8
Exercise e kAT Granted Exercised Lapsed R d
SRR price Exercisable Outstanding during during during Outstanding
Date of grant per share period at 1.1.2007 the year the year the year at 31.12.2007
BT
HK$
£t 27/06/1997 4.592 27/06/1997 to 27/05/2007 11,718,000 - (5,793,000) (5,925,000) -
0ld Scheme 20/07/2000 0.990 20/07/2000 to 27/05/2007 1,990,000 - (340,000) (1,650,000) -
13,708,000 - (6,133,000) (7,575,000) -
#3tdl 04/03/2002 1.590 04/03/2002 to 03/03/2012 10,710,000 - (5,720,000) - 4,990,000
New Scheme 15/04/2002 1.610 15/04/2002 to 14/04/2012 960,000 - (960,000) - -
07/10/2002 0.960 07/10/2002 to 06/10/2012 1,350,000 - (150,000) - 1,200,000
28/04/2004 1.040 28/04/2004 to 27/04/2014 10,204,500 - (6,909,500) - 3,295,000
29/04/2005 1.420 29/04/2005 to 28/04/2015 7,110,000 - (1,297,500) - 5,812,500
01/06/2005 1.230 01/06/2005 to 31/05/2015 9,600,000 - (4,600,000) - 5,000,000
02/06/2005 1.270 02/06/2005 to 01/06/2015 500,000 - (250,000) - 250,000
27/06/2005 1.340 27/06/2005 to 26/06/2015 600,000 - (200,000) - 400,000
03/01/2006 3.225 03/01/2006 to 02/01/2016 30,700,000 - (6,000,000) - 24,700,000
17/02/2006 3.965 17/02/2006 to 16/02/2016 2,000,000 - (125,000) - 1,875,000
26/06/2006 3.580 26/06/2006 to 25/06/2016 3,800,000 - (950,000) - 2,850,000
77,534,500 - (27,162,000) - 50,372,500
91,242,500 - (33,295,000) (7,575,000) 50,372,500
BT AT Exercisable at the end of the year 7,382,500
L SR Weighted average exercise price 2.52 - 2.29 3.81 2.48

—EREFESR
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#E8H

Date of grant

£l

anf

Exercise

price

per share

AT
Exercisable

period

33.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

HoRENE
—A—8
#RAT®

Outstanding
at 1.1.2006

FRE S
Granted
during during

the year

MRS R

Number of share options

FRATH

Exercised

the year

ERCEE:d
Lapsed
during

the year

ARERE
t=Az=+-1
R
Outstanding

at 31.12.2006

BEL
HK$
3t 27/06/1997 4.592 27/06/1997 to 27/05/2007 16,075,000 — (4,357,000) = 11,718,000
0ld Scheme 20/07/2000 0.990 20/07/2000 to 27/05/2007 7,690,000 = (5,700,000) = 1,990,000
23,765,000 - (10,057,000) - 13,708,000
#tdl 01/03/2002 1.610 01/03/2002 to 28/02/2012 12,200,000 = (12,200,000) = =
New Scheme 04/03/2002 1.590 04/03/2002 to 03/03/2012 25,730,000 = (15,020,000) = 10,710,000
15/04/2002 1.610 15/04/2002 to 15/04/2012 3,500,000 = (2,540,000) = 960,000
07/10/2002 0.960 07/10/2002 to 06/10/2012 4,748,000 = (3,398,000) = 1,350,000
28/04/2004 1.040 28/04/2004 to 27/04/2014 26,810,000 = (16,605,500) = 10,204,500
29/04/2005 1.420 29/04/2005 to 28/04/2015 8,030,000 = (920,000) = 7,110,000
01/06/2005 1.230 01/06/2005 to 31/05/2015 11,000,000 = (1,400,000) = 9,600,000
02/06/2005 1.270 02/06/2005 to 01/06/2015 1,200,000 — (700,000) = 500,000
27/06/2005 1.340 27/06/2005 to 26/06/2015 800,000 — (200,000) = 600,000
03/01/2006 3.225 03/01/2006 to 02/01/2016 — 30,700,000 = = 30,700,000
17/02/2006 3.965 17/02/2006 to 16/02/2016 = 2,000,000 = = 2,000,000
26/06/2006 3.580 26/06/2006 to 25/06/2016 = 3,800,000 = = 3,800,000
94,018,000 36,500,000 (52,983,500) - 77,534,500
117,783,000 36,500,000 (63,040,500) = 91,242,500
SBBT AT Exercisable at the end of the year 39,297,500
AT 4748 1R Weighted average exercise price 1.76 3.30 1.55 - 2.52
W si: Note:
1. MhREREAR B R R RSB AT AR B A Bk 1. Options are lapsed if the employee leaves the Group before the options vest.

% # o
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33, ERARAETE (41)

R AT B NE B F AT A AR

BF e T
£
B
Exercise
E &R price
Date of grant  per share

s
Exercisable

period

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Details of the movements of the share options during the year held by the

directors of the Company included in the above table are as follows:

AoRELE
—A—8 FRE L
AR Granted
Outstanding during
at 1.1.2007 the year

BEAHE

Number of share options

Bk 4 FREHK
Exercised Lapsed
during during
the year the year

EHok
Reallocation
(1)
(Note 1)

AoRELE
+=A
Z+-—8
R
Outstanding
at 31.12.2007

BT
HKS$
#3tdl 04/03/2002 1.590 04/02/2002 to 28/02/2012 - - (540,000) - 540,000 -
New Scheme  01/06/2005 1.230 01/06/2005 to 31/05/2005 1,900,000 - (750,000) (500,000) 1,000,000 1,650,000
1,900,000 - (1,290,000) (500,000) 1,540,000 1,650,000
BRAER A
Number of share options
AZRENE
£33 AZRENE +=A
AR —A—8 FRER R LTS d AR Z+-8
Exercise e kAT Granted Exercised Lapsed Reallocation R d
EE:E price Exercisable Outstanding during during during (F321) Outstanding
Date of grant  per share period at 1.1.2006 the year the year the year (Note 1) at 31.12.2006

HK$
3t 27/06/1997 4.592 27/06/1997 to 27/05/2007 4,300,000 - (2,300,000) - (2,000,000) -
0ld Scheme  20/07/2000 0.990 20/07/2000 to 27/05/2007 5,700,000 - (2,400,000) - (3,300,000) -
10,000,000 - (4,700,000) - (5,300,000) -
S U A7 Exercisable at the end of the year -
LT Sk & Weighted average exercise price 1.23 - 1.38 1.23 1.36 1.23
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Ed

B

Exercise

&R price

Date of grant  per share

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

AoRERE
—A—8 FREE
i R Granted
Exercisable Outstanding during
period at 1.1.2006 the year

BEMAEHA

Number of share options
HoRENE
+=A
ki 3 EREE: THR Z+-—8
Exercised Lapsed Reallocation kAT
during during (M3z1) Outstanding
the year the year (Note 1) at 31.12.2006

BT
HKS$
#3tdl 01/03/2002 1.610 01/03/2002 to 28/02/2012 8,400,000 - (4,800,000) - (3,600,000) -
New Scheme  04/03/2002 1.590 04/02/2002 to 28/02/2012 120,000 - (1,420,000) - 1,300,000 -
15/04/2002 1.610 15/04/2002 to 28/02/2012 1,600,000 - - - (1,600,000) -
28/04/2004 1.040 28/04/2004 to 27/04/2014 11,500,000 - (3,500,000) - (8,000,000) -
01/06/2005 1.230 01/06/2005 to 31/05/2015 - - (700,000) - 2,600,000 1,900,000
02/06/2005 1.270 02/06/2005 to 01/06/2015 1,200,000 - (700,000) - (500,000) -
22,820,000 - (11,120,000) - (9,800,000) 1,900,000
32,820,000 - (15,820,000) - (15,100,000) 1,900,000
ST TR Exercisable at the end of the year 1,900,000
AT 4718 18 Weighted average exercise price 1.68 - 1.79 - 1.62 1.23
P2z Note:
1. A MM E AT B B B R HE R A R 1. The reallocation of options arose when the option holders changed their positions

BAEANG XAk B AT ER b EF
WA B E ko M R R A TN B R E G

e SR

in the Company from employees to directors or vice versa during the year. The
options were granted to them in previous years.
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33.

B (41 33.

S P9 AT AT A B A AT 1 B A0 2 HE - G AR
BERFI0.97TL (= REAFEFLFIL)

-+
X
Puss
n

+—BaESFE R

LHAEEXNEAA ST S BB
P35 b B REAE ZAE NP AL 7S el ) e AT @
MT AR K oKX E e T e

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
In respect of the share options exercised during the year, the weighted average
share price at the dates of exercise is HK$10.97 (2006: HK$4.59).

During the year ended 31 December 2006, options were granted on 3 January
2006, 17 February 2006 and 26 June 2006. The estimated fair values of the
options granted were calculated using the Black-Scholes pricing model. The

inputs into the model were as follows:

3.1.2006 17.2.2006 26.6.2006

i HE T 3 R AR Weighted average share price
L&) ¢ Exercise price

T A% R <F A Expected life

Ey:0 S Risk-free rate

Ta 4 8 m R R Expected dividend yield

AW BB AN TR
R B AT B AR

before date of grant
Bt W A A8 ) S8 4T ) 7 B MOAE 3T AR AL XA m A 4
BEMZARH QFRMAD) KRB
WEREHSFEEFTERY Eo

PTAT S AR Z S By A — 2w f o

T8 A % & 75 F5 T8 B AL AR = R AT B4R £ 40%
HoZ R AE260R BAEKHZ T K AL
B g 4 X R PT R FAE T AR R F A AR R R 2R
R AT R E TR AT EE ELR
MR

BRE-_BERLHF+ _A=+—8LFE KK
[ A3k 8) BT 4ok B AP L 4 s
14,176,000C (=& &> 4F 3 129,352,000

) e

—EREFESR
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Fair values of option at grant date

Closing share price immediately

HK$3.23 HK$3.93 HK$3.53
HK$3.23 HK$3.97 HK$3.58
7 years 7 years 7 years
4.105% 4.25% 4.806%
1.86% 1.529% 1.702%
HK$1.72 HK$2.15 HK$1.87
HK$3.22 HK$4.00 HK$3.48

Note: Because the Black-Scholes option pricing model requires the input of highly

subjective assumptions, including the volatility of share price, changes in subjective
input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate.

All options were under the graded vesting period between one to four years.

The expected volatility measured at the standard derivation of expected share
price returns of 40% is used, which is based on average of 260 day historical
volatility. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on
management’s best estimate, for the effects of non transferability, exercise

restrictions and behavioural considerations.

The Group recognised the total expense of approximately HK$14,176,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2007 (2006: HK$29,352,000) in relation to share
options granted by the Company.
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34, WCEET B o) 34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

BE-_ERLF+_A=+—BLFAE
(i) —EELFLA=tH AZEDRNE (i)
RAE #1170,000,000T B A 4542 1A 8]
# 8 Toprun Investments Limited
(TToprunl) & 3k & 547 A o 3% 78 M Bk
VA B 5 N Bk o Toprun & 3 11 & 2 8) £
REAEFRRTRRERGREE LS
ZHEKBATAAR AL R A BT
50,423,0007T ° % Bk 69 A E 1$1E
BT A T

For the year ended 31 December 2007

On 30 July 2007, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital
of Toprun Investments Limited (“Toprun”) from its immediate holding
company for a cash consideration of HK$170,000,000. This acquisition
has been accounted for using the purchase method. The major activities
of Toprun and its subsidiaries are the decoration and construction
business in Hong Kong and the PRC. The amount of goodwill arising as
a result of this acquisition was HK$50,423,000. The net assets acquired

in the transaction, and the goodwill arising, are as follows:

BB NSRAT AT 2
PRE A A AT 1A
Acquirees’
carrying amount
and fair value
before combination
BHETA
HK$’000

P B A E A Net assets acquired:
LB 0. Property, plant and equipment 5,278
I 2 HEIE K E Deferred taxation asset 1,280
E b B Other inventories 43
JE N B AR~ b B BRIR A Trade receivables, other receivables and deposits paid 152,884

et A
JEME P A8 TA2HOR Amounts due from customers for contract works 74,881
A+ AR Tax prepaid 86
R BARAT R Cash and bank balances 83,260
JE AT RR AR R H A JE AT R TR Trade and other payables (122,905)
JEATF P -4 TAZ A Amounts due to customers for contract works (36,822)
JEAT A & 8] FOR Amounts due to related companies (408)
AT 1 Bank borrowings (38,000)
P B A E A Net assets acquired 119,577
BB BT AR TR Goodwill arising on acquisition 50,423
VAT 3] 7 XA Satisfied by:

A KR Cash consideration 170,000
BB PTAT A (i) AN g8 Net cash (outflow) inflow arising on acquisition:

A KR Cash consideration (170,000)

P MCBE L& R 4R AT 4 £ Cash and bank balances acquired 83,260

(86,740)
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34, BHEHBAE ()

34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BRE-_BEEXFE+ A =+—HIEFEE (8)

(@)

(ii)

(#%)

FERL MG ELGTHAEABNE
B F ORI R R FAREF AR
W F 2K

o Mo =~ REXF—A — B TR
A SRS O G
353,000,000/ + i 4 L i A1) A 2§ A 38 4
19,000,000/ s % A HEAF S - K &
BT A R R F— A —1
ERXAEBE R ELEARES T
A A BT R o R SR B AT T o 2)
BOMCE B AR TR S H A EA 5
# % 1361,000,0007T % # 4 14,000,000
gL °

ZRBLERAT AR REBRAK
1B AR 462,859,000 T 8 & B K36 B
EHREARA ([EERIE]) 6923
CHARA-EERIGEILETHAE R
KEHLHRRE B ZELHENES
FE M

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (continued)

(1)

(i)

(continued)
In the opinion of the directors, the goodwill arising from the acquisition
represents the synergy in areas such as resources sharing, cost control

and quality assurance of its projects.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2007, total
consolidated revenue for the year would have been increased by HK$353
million, and profit for the year would have been increased by HK$19
million. The pro forma information is for illustrative purposes only
and is not necessarily an indication of turnover and results of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 1 January 2007, nor is it intended to be a projection of
future results. The turnover and profit contributed by the subsidiaries
acquired to the Group from the acquisition date was HK$361 million

and HK$14 million respectively.

On 19 September 2007, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share
capital of THERIBEEHREAMRAT (“EEKRIE)
consideration of RMB462,859,000. The major activity of & X 45 is
property development in Chongqing, PRC, and accordingly, the

for a total

transaction has been accounted for as the acquisition of assets.

BT R
HK$’000

P I B A AR Net assets acquired:
LB ¥ 0 Property, plant and equipment 698
H B Other inventories 58
B E L b AE R HE GG B B 2R Progress payments for the purchase of land use rights 714,805
R BARAT R Cash and bank balances 2,877
JE AT RR AR R H 4 JE AT R R Trade and other payables (243,128)
B B A E A Net assets acquired 475,310
VAT 3] 7 XA Satisfied by:
A KRR Cash consideration 321,275
ik 2 RAZ (ZEAJEAT BR 2 A Deferred consideration (included in trade and other payables) 154,035
Hf JEAT R E)
475,310
KR TR A (Fd) A Fa: Net cash (outflow) inflow arising on acquisition:
et R RAR Cash consideration paid (321,275)
P BB 3L R GRAT 45 4 Cash and bank balances acquired 2,877
(318,398)
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34. MW EAE ()
BE_ERXLHE+_A=+—8a1LFE (4)

(iii)

ZRFXFF AT AR ALRBE
i ®) F 7 B A AT 4 35269,090,909 8%
RN B R B BB IR 8] BB AR
(TR IR S R WS ) PAR|
FZETERMN BHAKERFEHE
BREOCAR ZAXHECNKATEK
o

R 0 A T A 8] AR A% AR PR 6]
HBHAEM (Kid) 5 F A RN
(MFEmMXE]) a2 gi-EFmiie s
AP ENERR YT AL L
([hABALE]) REDEHRF
Do AN IR A EALLURLET
B P9 Kk oy F R R o

AR —F 2 EF WA Vikwood
Investments Limited i 4% ¥ & 3 7 37 25
KB E ) A R a8 ([ ML
M 1) 60%HE 3 o 3 AL M A A F B ik
EMAR G IBELE REDEHE
BB ANANERATEEAHL%E
AP B YA 8 A R AR o

34.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 (continued)

(iii)

On 28 December 2007, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share
capital of Speedy Gain from its immediate holding company by issuing
a total of 269,090,909 shares of the Company to be allotted and issued
to the vendor. The major activities of Speedy Gain and its subsidiaries
are property development in Hangzhou, Wuxi and Dalian, PRC, and
accordingly, the transaction has been accounted for as the acquisition

of assets.

A wholly owned subsidiary of Speedy Gain, Fortune Achieve Investments
Limited, holds 100% direct interest in China Resources (Dalian) Real
Estate Co., Ltd (“Dalian”). Dalian is a wholly owned foreign enterprise
(“WOFE”) incorporated in the Chinese Mainland and engaged in the
property development activities. The main tangible asset of the Company

is a property development site in Dalian, the Chinese Mainland.

Another wholly owned subsidiary of Speedy Gain, Vikwood Investments
Limited, holds 60% indirect interest in China Resources Sun Hung Kai
Properties (Hangzhou) Co., Ltd (“Hangzhou”). Hangzhou is a WOFE
incorporated in the Chinese Mainland and engaged in the property
development activities. The main tangible asset of the Company is a

property development site in Hangzhou, the Chinese Mainland.
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34, BEEWBAF () 34.  ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BE_RBEXLFT_A=Z+—BEFE (4) For the year ended 31 December 2007 (continued)

(i) (4%) (iii)  (continued)
A H — KL HMWE A S Complete Another wholly owned subsidiary of Speedy Gain, Complete Power
Power Holdings Limited M 4 # A7 3 i# #7 Holdings Limited, holds 60% indirect interest in China Resources Sun
wh A AR E (84)) AR ([[3EME Hung Kai Properties (Wuxi) Limited (“Wuxi”). Wuxi is a WOFE
1)) 60%HE o[ M LB AHATEN incorporated in the Chinese Mainland and engaged in the property
MR W ABALL RESE development activities. The main tangible asset of the Company is a
BRED RANAGEIERT HE AL property development site in Wuxi, the Chinese Mainland.

HAETHEHNLESOHER R

BT R
HK$’000

POV A 548 -

Lk Sy ¥ 588

FA A A2

¥ A (35 (a)

JEN AR A SR IR IR A
et o

L BARAT 4545

JEAT Bk A - b JE AT BRIA

CRTAE D E s

JEAT Y B R R

JEAT B i& 8] A

BRATHE

PR BE 3 E 1A
b HOR A B

PR BE 3 E 1A

VAT 3 75 R AT
S EAT A (i 22(b))

WCRE PT E £ X BLERNIFH
PR L2 BARAT 848

Net assets acquired:

Property, plant and equipment 1,994,813
Prepaid lease payments 324,785
Inventories of properties (note (a)) 4,536,347
Trade and other receivables and deposits paid 8,260
Cash and bank balances 384,579
Trade and other payables (71,622)
Deposits received from pre-sales of properties (475,432)
Amount due to a minority shareholder (503,084)
Amount due to related companies (100,148)
Bank borrowings (240,467)
Net assets acquired 5,858,031
Minority interest (1,329,231)
Net assets acquired 4,528,800
Satisfied by:

Shares issued (note (b)) 4,528,800
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition:

Cash and bank balances acquired 384,579
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34.

T B A E] (#1)
BE_ERRLF+_A=+—8LFHE (8)
(iii) (%)

T

(a) AEBRGERAREGERTHE (B
B B B AE) VAR AN B BT
£ A 6 BT AR ) AR R IR R A AT R
3 (SRR A M AR ARAELE)
B W AE AR R o FRARTE A RN BT A
WA R TA MM ER AN L2
Bo MAFA 7 s S H Rl M EX R HEAET
AR o BN AR H A% AR M AR e
FaMomT AERAR G ERTHER
B E B

(b) & AT 4 R 8 45 10178 49 269,090,909 1% A
O 8] 3B AR Py iR AR 6 OMOHE R AR (I 3232) o
R 8] BT KRR R E G N 7Y A s B
HRABEDETHIHME R

BE-_EEXF+_A=+—BLFE
AZEBEEXFFT A=+ -8 KEBEARME
# #3,105,680,000T » &7 A 4 42 B 3] M
Cosmart® 3 & 547 & K o

CosmartZ & & W & 2 8 Charmlink Enterprises
Limited# A b ¥ £ MAHE LA R FIEA A
(T#748]) 49N -#T 48 B R EMIE 2 H M B
NE ML R ERAMNALTRME R
46.9% = F £95.9%

Cosmarts — % 2 & W & » 8 Kennex
Enterprises Limited# # 3£ 1 & 3b (R AR) # &
HIRAE) ([RAEE]) BHAME RS
AT BN ZNE REDERREES #
NE X EBH T E E T — M b B P R AR
ZEB R

34.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 (continued)

(iii)  (continued)

Notes:

(a) The total fair value of the Group’s properties under development for investment
purpose (included in property, plant and equipment) and inventories of properties
acquired at acquisition date have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out on that date by CB Richard Ellis Limited, independent qualified professional
valuers not connected with the Group. CB Richard Ellis Limited has appropriate
qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of similar properties in the
relevant locations. The valuation was arrived at by reference to market evidence of
transaction prices for similar properties. The total fair value is then allocated to
the properties under development for investments purpose and inventories of

properties based on the gross floor areas of the respective portion.

(b) As the consideration for the acquisition of Speedy Gain, 269,090,909 ordinary
shares of the Company with par value of HK$0.1 each were issued (note 32). The
fair value of the assets acquired by the Company are determined with reference to
the market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties at the date of the

acquisition.

For the year ended 31 December 2006

On 21 December 2006, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of
Cosmart from its immediate holding company for consideration of
HK$3,105,680,000.

A wholly owned subsidiary of Cosmart, Charmlink Enterprises Limited, holds
49% interest in Beijing China Resources Xin Zhen Property Co., Ltd. (“Xin
Zhen”). Xin Zhen was a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group. As a result
of the acquisition, the Group’s effective interest in Xin Zhen increased from
46.9% to 95.9%.

Another wholly owned subsidiary of Cosmart, Kennex Enterprises Limited,
holds 100% interest in China Resources Land (Chengdu) Development Company
Limited (“Chengdu Development”). Chengdu Development is a company
established in the Chinese Mainland and engaged in the property development
activities. The main tangible asset of the Company is a property development
site in Chengdu, the Chinese Mainland.
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34, WBEWENE (1) 34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
BE_EZEZXF+ A =+—81LFE (4) For the year ended 31 December 2006 (continued)
REAEA AT
Carrying
amount and
fair value
B
HK$’000
PR S 4R Net assets acquired:
AT B NG X B Interest in associate 487,967
hEHE Inventory of properties 2,271,045
2,759,012
VAT 375 R F AT Satisfied by:
AT Ay (M 32) Shares issued (Note) 1,224,052
A KRR Cash consideration 306,660
2 RAR (B A JEAT A2 I Deferred considerations (included in amount due to
258 RE ) immediate holding company) 1,228,300
2,759,012
W32 AF &8 CosmartAR A& X — 3 o AT A Note:  As part of the consideration for the acquisition of Cosmart, 186,104,218 ordinary
5] 186,104,218 1% 4 A% 7 {4 # ¥ 0.170 2 %38 A% shares of the Company with par value of HK$0.1 each were issued (note 32). The
(B 3£32) o A8 BT a6 & & AT 1873 4 fair value of the assets acquired by the Company, determined with reference to the
FH D MR EHEG TR HEE L market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties at the date of the
acquisition.
35. TRFRERD 35. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS
PR T N ] 23R KR LA RAT AN F) Part of the considerations for the purchases of subsidiaries that occurred during
FEAD ol B 2 H b 3 IR AT 3234 o the year comprised issuance of shares of the Company. Further details of the
acquisition are set out in note 34.
36. KRR Ak 36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
KEBLE R FATAEYAB ) AT AE 35 4% - Guarantees are given to banks with respect to loans procured by the purchasers
BATHEAMERINE RAAT A MBS of the Group’s properties. Such guarantees will be released by banks upon the
LRGN T FA R EFR A MK delivery of the properties to the purchasers and completion of the registration
SHZIANTHEERE KR the relevant mortgage properties registration. In the opinion of directors, the

fair value of the financial guarantee contracts is not significant.
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37. &R¥E

37.

COMMITMENTS

e =

MM AR 3 T AR KRB &

construction in progress:

BT A G AT
AR HA

A WOMCRE £ 24 A RS

land use rights

financial statements

Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition of

Contracted for but not provided in the consolidated

Other commitment in respect of the acquisition of

BT A #EUHTA
HK$'000 HK$’000
887,856 55,866
6,450,221 2,759,880

38. BEMYKIE
A B HKAA
ARFENESEMYRBAT D LR
TR AL A 2 35 45 3,965,0000 (=& K5 4 4
2,582,0007.) o

A SR BAE B ARAE AT SR R T S
BEMLYZ KR FRAA L R o T

38.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT

The Group as lessee

Minimum lease payments paid under operating leases during the year in respect
of office premises was HK$3,965,000 (2006: HK$2,582,000).

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for future minimum

lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

e

BT T
HK$’000 HK$°000
—F RN Within one year 6,926 2,081
FH_EHAF (BIEEEWF) In the second to fifth year inclusive 9,134 2,667
B F% Over five years 3,519 -
19,579 4,748

BEALFAERRLETHATHLERMZ
e ALK T — B R ko AT T
ESEE P F

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of
its office premises. Leases are negotiated for an average term of one year to

five years and rentals are fixed for an average of two years.
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38. A& FALK R () ®

AR EAEAEAA

ORI Z 4 AR A N B 1 738,957,000
A A= R RN B H587,087,000T) o kit 4
B4R R AL M B 64,511,000 (ZEE
SR 9,973,000T) o5 T EZ R KAME
BEERLETONLER WAL BARERE
ZHECHMEITITANTFIETF B

AEBALLED G EME T T AR RAGH
B ALY

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT (continued)

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was HK$738,957,000 (2006:
HK$587,087,000). Included above, there was contingent rental income of
HK$64,511,000 (2006: HK$9,973,000). The contingent rental for certain
properties was determined by a certain percentage of turnover. The properties
held by the Group for rental purpose have committed tenants for periods

which ranged from one to seven years.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with tenants for the

following future minimum lease payments:

C e

BT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000
—% N Within one year 507,508 426,558
$_EZF A (OLFEFERF) In the second to fifth year inclusive 698,860 840,508
B % After five years 347,270 284,993
1,553,638 1,552,059
39. BARAR A 39. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS
(a) S (a) Hong Kong

AR B b B A Bk B S — 8 B
A ([RALH]) it s3td
Py — SRR AR B ) A A 5 B A d) ) 4T
o Fom ARG B AR R AR A R LA
R ERAE B AR HE5NHHR RS
Bk 44k B R B UEL,0007 0 3 A 4 3
HNEAEAEBERL LB X EAE LR
HENHHA -

P9 KR EAE R L B RER
BRI LR AR R AR
PRSTRIHLA] AT 57 pb A 8y < ) 4F oy 2 4%
o T

The Group participates in a mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) for its employees in Hong Kong. MPF scheme is a defined
contribution scheme in accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Ordinance. Under the rules of MPF scheme, the employer and
its employees are required to contribute 5% of the employees’ salaries,
up to a maximum of HK$1,000 per employee per month. The assets of
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the group companies in

an independently administered fund.

During the year, the total amounts contributed by the Group to the
scheme in Hong Kong and charged to the consolidated income statement
represent contributions payable to the scheme by the Group at rates

specified in the rules of the scheme are as follows:

I B2 BT

s #F T T
HK$'000 HK$’000

EEHER B GAORAER IR Amount contributed and charged to the
ke consolidated income statement 909 100

—EREFESR
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39. BARAEAISE () 39. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (continued)
(b) B A (b)  Chinese Mainland

AEBATPENZEE LT EHNELE The employees of the Group in the Chinese Mainland are members of
o Fr B BT 48 5 B R B R R ARG A EH 3] state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the respective
ZRm B AEBBEBRBETIFLERAET Y local government in the Chinese Mainland. The Group is required to
e St B AdE A TR X A A oK contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs to the schemes to
ERsZEHIE—FTEAFEER fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
B these schemes is to make the specified contributions.

AEABF R LA 2 E The total cost charged to the consolidated income statement in respect
BABARIRZBR A4 T of the above-mentioned schemes in the Chinese Mainland during each

of the years are as follows:

C e

BHETL BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
EEER A GEAERARIRRZ Amount contributed and charged to the
e ] consolidated income statement 23,392 12,840
40. M AEXRH 40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(i) HREALWBAT BERAIZIRY (i)  Transactions with fellow subsidiaries/holding companies
AT ARKERAKREZE S MR 2 WEB AN The following is a summary of the significant related party transactions
AT ERMBEALTT SR entered into by the Group with its fellow subsidiaries during the year:
EkAARFRE Tl ER A
Rental and Construction
management fees received cost received
N N T N
LK BEFA BT BETA BT
Relationship HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i (EE) A RAS China Resources (Holdings) EEd |
Limited Holding company 3,449 7,013 - -
EM A A TR China Resources Construction Fl 4 1B 3]
Corporation Fellow subsidiary - - 172,237 161,495
ML RARAE China Resources Management Fl 4 W53
Limited Fellow subsidiary - 513 - -
EMT D BERA AR China Resources Power Holdings [ % ¥ & 2 3]
Company Limited Fellow Subsidiary 3,895 3,813 - -
EMGH(EE) ARG China Resources Textiles Fl 4 W53
Holdings Limited Fellow Subsidiary 3,391 3,267 - -
EHERAMRAE China Resources Vanguard Fl 4 W5 3]
Company Limited Fellow Subsidiary 6,709 2,851 - -
RINAARICE B Shenzhen Kapok Hotel Fl 4 W5 3]
Fellow Subsidiary 5,606 5,808 - -
E A A A ) China Resources Breweries Rl % I B o 3]
Limited Fellow Subsidiary 3,522 2,365 - -

—EREHFESR
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40. MEAER G 5)

(i)

(i)

RE AMBNG AR ()
BEZZERLFE+=_A=+—BL1LHF
B RS BR i 8 R e RRAT
Ry A 2 AR AR B B 4542 B 8] Toprun
Investments Limited & iR # £ & A Fk
A S R B NG R EBEZFIK
MM ER R EN EHERTHE
P &G AN R Kk S8 L2k
B (LW 3234) »

HE-—REXNFE+ A=+ —BILF
B KR B R B AT R R A
A A RAE B B4R 8) Cosmart
Resources Limited & 8% R M B 2 4] o Kk
FERM AT ENFAE LA
[P 8] Z 88 S HE 5 B B P93 R AR —
Lz HERS (LW234) o

TEERARZHE
ARG EERAWERFRARAEN
Z Bl A F

40.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Transactions with fellow subsidiaries/holding companies (continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group has acquired
certain subsidiaries from its immediate holding company, Toprun
Investments Limited and Speedy Gain Investments Limited through
cash payments and issue of shares respectively as consideration. As a
result of the acquisitions, the Group has acquired the construction and
decoration businesses and obtained the property interest of pieces of
land in Wuxi, Hangzhou and Dalian, the Chinese Mainland (see note
34).

During the year ended 31 December 2006, the Group also acquired
subsidiaries from its immediate holding company, Cosmart Resources
Limited through issue of shares and cash payments as consideration.
As a result of the acquisition, the Group has obtained additional interest
in Beijing China Resources Xin Zhen Property Co., Ltd. and the property
interest of a piece of land in Chengdu, the Chinese Mainland (see note
34).

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of directors of the Company and other members of

key management during the year was as follows:

e T s

42 4148 A1 Short-term benefits
i IR A% A8 A Post-employment benefits
Fx A At 3k Share-based payments

o o

HK$'000 HK$’000
7,150 8,108
335 244
835 4,876
8,320 13,228

AN FTERITBAARABZIHFM A HFmEE &
wHEEMA KRR T IFABE A HE T

= FFLFRFR
Annual Report 2007

The remuneration of directors of the Company and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard to the

performance of individuals and market trends.
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40. MEAER G 5)

(iii)

BErEPRECERENERIRS
i

AR OE e — 1A A P B BOR BLHE R M
WA ST R ((HREHNTM]) &
EX SUNCELEE o) de g S AT ) P 3
B A G i A B SR AT 4R 2k B 2R
T — B K HLAE B8 X —H e

Tr b SC() AR A ok R R B R e
HRERETREAEHF e X RALER
BRFAEH XD R TFRAZFH
FEATUAB LS =7

(@ ALBEABFTEHBRPRETF
J B R % H F A ARAT R 2 Rtk
MITELFETR Y BRI A
AR BB AT S — R R AT R Ko
AT FRATR T AN
AEFRALEEBIMEL £F

F o

(b) AREREPALEHETE F
Xh mEFRALRREF T
ZHh e mAERR S ELE
FIEBEREATLE LT ITe

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(iii)

Transactions/balances with other state-controlled entities in the Chinese
Mainland

The Group operates in an economic environment currently
predominated by entities directly or indirectly owned or controlled by
the PRC government (“state-controlled entities”). In addition, the Group
itself is part of a larger group of companies under CRNC which is

controlled by the PRC government.

Apart from the disclosure in (i) above, the Group also conducts business
with other state-controlled entities. The directors consider those state-
controlled entities are independent third parties so far as the Group’s

business transactions with than are concerned.

(a) The Group has entered into various transactions, including
certain deposits placements, borrowings and other general
banking facilities, with certain banks and financial institutions
which are stated-controlled entities in its ordinary course of
business. In view of the nature of those banking transactions,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that separate

disclosure would not be meaningful.

(b) The Group has sales and purchases transactions with customers
and suppliers, in which the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that it is impracticable to ascertain the identity of the
counterparties and accordingly whether the transactions are with

other state-controlled entities.

—EREFESR
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41, TB ) SLEE AN ) 41.

(@) ANddEIzWBENARELF+=
A=+ —BZXHHKIN =T

ERATRAS

EM AR @M

Nominal value of

W B 8] 4 A4 issued share capital/
Name of subsidiary registered capital

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

(a) Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2007 and 2006 are set out as follows:

R UPAIE L F P Sy
B 2R KA @A ]
Proportion of nominal value of issued EX S5
share capital/registered capital held by Principal activities

AAd WEAD  ANE WEAE

Company Subsidiaries Company Subsidiaries

T 20

BEBREARNE ([BEHE]) 76,000 % T
Strong Foundation Developments Limited US$76,000

(“Strong Foundation”)

Boom Go Group Limited (“Boom Go”) 11£ ¢
US$11

Best Hope Group Limited (“Best Hope”) 1£ 7
US$1

Big Leap Group Limited (“Big Leap”) 1£ 7
US$1

Direct Win Group Limited (“Direct Win”) 1£ 7
US$1

Bright Choice Group Limited (“Bright Choice”) 1£ 7
US$1

King Role Limited (“King Role”) 3£ 7T
US$3

Cosmart Resources Limited (“Cosmart”) 2% 7L
US$2

Kennex Enterprises Limited (“Kennex”) 1£ 7
US$1

100% - 100% - BEER

Investment holding

100% - 100% - BEER

Investment holding

- 100% - 100%  HAEK

Investment holding

- 100% - 100%  HAEK

Investment holding

- 100% - 100%  HAEK

Investment holding

- 100% - 100%  HAEK

Investment holding

100% - 100% - BEER

Investment holding

- 100% - 100%  HAEK

Investment holding

- 100% - 100%  HAEK

Investment holding

—EREFESR
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41. W B3] BN () 41.

CETRAS
HEMEAZIGME
Nominal value of

G PAGIEA

issued share capital/

W T A8 B L LT
T E NN

Proportion of nominal value of issued

Name of subsidiary

Charmlink Enterprises Limited (“Charmlink”)

Megapower Resources Limited (“Megapower”)

Jb o M K A R E) (i 22d)
Beijing China Resources Building

Company Limited (note d)

b ER, LT A RAZ (H2d)

Beijing China Resources
Property Management

Company Limited (note d)

EME N QL) By A FRA
(P 3£a)

China Resources Land
(Beijing) Co., Ltd. (note a)

EMENR QLX) HEFHEAR
FAENF (Frizb)

China Resources Land
(Beijing) Property Management
Co., Ltd. (note b)

Jb % M T A b E B AR IR
FAENF (Frizb)

Beijing China Resources
Jingtong Property Development
Company Limited (note b)

b7 25 R L b E B AR IR
FAENF (Frizb)

Beijing China Resources Shuguang
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(note b)

registered capital

1£7
US$1

157
US$1

12,000,000 % 7T
US$12,000,000

370,000% T
US$370,000

AR
1,300,000,000
RMB1,300,000,000

A K, 5,000,000

RMB5,000,000

AR 264,329,360 T
RMB264,329,360

A K, 180,000,000
RMB180,000,000

share capital/registered capital held by

PN

Y P

Company Subsidiaries

Y 2006

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 95.62%

- 95.62%

- 95.62%

- 95.62%

PN

T 2 )

Company Subsidiaries

100%

100%

100%

100%

91.96%

91.96%

91.96%

91.96%

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES (continued)

EREHW

Principal activities

R

Investment holding

R

Investment holding

MERLKE

Properties investment

HEE R

Property management

HF A ERE
Investment holding and

property development

HEE R

Property management

MR

Property development

MR

Property development

—EREHFESR
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41. W B3] BN () 41. SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES (continued)
ERITRAS
AMARZ @A

Nominal value of

W T A A X BT
B3 A @ e
Proportion of nominal value of issued EX 3 ¥4

Principal activities

G PAGIEA

Name of subsidiary

issued share capital/
share capital/registered capital held by
And WEAF ANE WEHAE

Company Subsidiaries Company Subsidiaries

registered capital

3t 7 2 4 AR K B RSA TRA G 10,000,000 % T - 95.62% - 91.96% M EHEE
(FF3£b) US$10,000,000 Property development
Beijing China Resources
Jian Xiang Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd. (note b)
R ERT B RMA BTN E A K, #2,000,0007T - 95.62% - 91.96% TR IA
(FF22Db) RMB2,000,000 Electrical engineering
Beijing Huazhao Electrical
Equipment Co., Ltd. (note b)
b E M 5 E s el A F A K, #500,0005T - 95.62% = 91.96%  HEAARE
(M 2zb) RMB500,000 Property agency
Beijing China Resources
Property Agent Co., Ltd. (note b)
Je SRR LA MR F AR AR - 95.62% = 91.96% M EKE
(M 3£b) 1,000,000,000T
Beijing China Resources RMB1,000,000,000 Property development
Xin Zhen Property Co., Ltd. (note b)
bW P RS S R ARG AK28,000,000T - 76.50% - 7357% W ERE
(H3xc) RMB28,000,000 Property development
Beijing Zhongchengxin Property
Development Co., Ltd. (note c)
=0 (k) ARAE (Md) 40,000,000% T - 100% - 100% EERFE
China Resources Shanghai US$40,000,000 Properties investment
Company Limited (note d)
EMAR (L&) A RAE (Hd) 21,000,000 % 7T - 100% - 100%  HEBE
China Resources Land (Shanghai) Limited US$21,000,000 Property development
(note d)
China Resources Land (Shanghai) Management 150,000% T - 100% - 100% Wk R
Co., Ltd. (F32d) (note d) US$150,000 Property management
MR A RN E) (1 32d) # #400,000,000T - 100% - 100% HEZFE

China Resources (Shenzhen) Company
Limited (note d)

—REF LR
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A1 R A F) S AN E ()

ERATRAS

EM AR @M

Nominal value of

T B 2 8] 4 A%

Name of subsidiary

issued share capital/

registered capital

Y| E M £ E A R (H32d)

Shenzhen China Resources Property

A K, %£5,000,000T
RMB5,000,000

Management Company Limited (note d)

M B W (RAR) BEA TR
(AR ]) (H32d) (note d)

# 756,000,000
HK$756,000,000

EME R ORAR) LA MRS
(TRARE£]) (W:id) (note d)

64,000,000 % 7.
US$64,000,000

M E A ORAR) AR E (K 2d)
China Resources Land (Chengdu) Limited
(note d)

42,000,000 % 7T
US$42,000,000

PRAR S F A £ R B A R E)
(M 3£b) (note b)

A K, £1,000,000T
RMB1,000,000

# 62,240,000 T
HK$62,240,000

China Resources Land (Wuhan) Co., Ltd.
(M 22d) (note d)

China Resources Land (Wuhan) Management 500,000 % 7T
Co., Ltd. (F¥z2d) (note d) US$500,000
China Resources Land (Hefei) Co., Ltd. 9,600,000 % T

(M 22d) (note d) US$9,600,000

100,000 % 7.
US$100,000

China Resources Land (Hefei) Management
Co., Ltd. (F¥z2d) (note d)

# 385,000,000
HK$385,000,000

China Resources Land (Ningbo) Co., Ltd.
(M 22d) (note d)

41.

W T A8 B L LT
T E NN

Proportion of nominal value of issued

share capital/registered capital held by

PN

Y P

Company Subsidiaries

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

PN

Y PN

Company Subsidiaries

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES (continued)

EREHW

Principal activities

HEE R

Property management

MR

Property development

MR

Property development

MR

Property development

HEE R

Property management

MR

Property development

HEE R

Property management

MR

Property development

HEE R

Property management

MR

Property development

—EREHFESR
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41. W B3] BN () 41. SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES (continued)
EEATRAS
AMARAZ @A W T A8 B L LT
Nominal value of Bk M A A2 @ A )

EREHW

Principal activities

G PAGIEA

Name of subsidiary

issued share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of issued
share capital/registered capital held by
Aand WEAF ANE WEHAE

Company Subsidiaries Company Subsidiaries

registered capital

148

China Resources Land (Hunan) Co., Ltd. & #240,000,000 7T - 100% = 100%  wEAE
(M 22d) (note d) HK$240,000,000 Property development
EME W (BRM) A FRAE (K Ed) 50,000,000 % 7T - 100% - - HEBRE
China Resources Land (Suzhou) Ltd. US$50,000,000 Property development
(note d)
China Resources Land (Xiamen) Ltd. & 1,454,792,739 T - 100% = - WEBRE
(M 22d) (note d) HK$1,454,792,739 Property development
China Resources Land (Xiamen) & #770,000,000 T - 100% = - WEBRE
Developments Ltd. (F#z£d) (note d) HK$770,000,000 Property development
F B RAE R IR 8] (M 32b) A K, #20,000,000T - 100% - - HEBRE
(note b) RMB20,000,000 Property development
China Resources Land (Hunan) 7 %700,000,000 7T - 100% = - WEBRE
Developments Ltd. (F#z£d) (note d) HK$700,000,000 Property development
China Resources Land (Heifei) 7 %700,000,000 7T - 100% = - WEBRE
Industrial Ltd. (FF3£d) (note d) HK$700,000,000 Property development
HE0M (kik) X EA RS (H:d  # %85,000,000T - 100% - - WEBRE
China Resources (Dalian) Real Estate HK$85,000,000 Property development
Co., Ltd. (note d)
#0m (kik) BEEARASE (Kd) 7 #385,000,000 7T - 100% - - HEBRE

China Resources (Dalian) Realty Co. Ltd.
(note d)

HK$385,000,000

—EREFESR
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A1 R A F) S AN E ()

G PAGIEA

Name of subsidiary

EMAT AL W E (RMN) A RA S
(M 32d)

China Resources Sun Hung Kai Properties
(Hangzhou) Co. Ltd. (note d)

A AL A E (£4)) AR E
(M 22d)
China Resources Sun Hung Kai

Properties (Wuxi) Limited (note d)

EMAM AR EFE (£E) ARAE
(M 2xb)
China Resources Sun Hung Kai Properties

Management (Wuxi) Limited (note b)

MARIE ARG ([EA&])
Speedy Gain Investments Limited
(“Speedy Gain”)

BmERATARAE ([48E])
Fortune Achieve Investments Limited

(“Fortune Achieve”)

Complete Power Holdings Limited

(“Complete Power”)

A IR E) ([4E5E])
Brilliant Palace Limited

(“Brilliant Palace”)

Vikwood Investment Limited
(“Vikwood”)

EFHAARAE ([EFHA])
Wellview Investment Limited
(“Wellview”)

ERATRAS
EM AR @M
Nominal value of

issued share capital/

registered capital

# 490,000,000
HK$490,000,000

71,990,000 % 7.
US$71,990,000

3,000,000 % T
US$3,000,000

257
US$2

157
US$1

157

US$1

# #500,000,000T
HK$500,000,000
157

US$1

100%
US$100

W T A8 B L LT
T E NN

Proportion of nominal value of issued

share capital/registered capital held by

PN

100%

Y P

Company Subsidiaries

60%

60%

60%

100%

100%

60%

100%

60%

PN

T 2 )

Company Subsidiaries

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES (continued)

EREHW

Principal activities

MR

Property development

MR

Property development

MR

Property development

R

Investment holding

R

Investment holding

R

Investment holding

R

Investment holding

R

Investment holding

R

Investment holding

—EREHFESR
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A1 R A F) S AN E ()

G PAGIEA

Name of subsidiary

ERATRAS
EM AR @M
Nominal value of

issued share capital/

registered capital

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES (continued)

R UPAIE L F P Sy
B 2R KA @A ]
Proportion of nominal value of issued EX 3 ¥
share capital/registered capital held by Principal activities

kad WEAE  ANE WAL

Company Subsidiaries Company Subsidiaries

T 20

Toprun Investments Limited

(“Toprun”)

Upper Able Investments Limited
(“Upper Able”)

Uconia Limited (F 3£ (e)) (note (e))

Shanghai Uconia Building Decoration

Co., Ltd. (F¥z2d) (note d)

Beijing Uconia Decoration Engineering
Co., Ltd. (F¥z2d) (note d)

R TR & M F R ATA TR F
(M 22b) (note b)

EMAEA RS (H:Eb)
China Resources Construction

Corporation (note b)

B 32

257
US$2
2%
US$2

#110,000T
HK$10,000

2,000,000 % T
US$2,000,000

2,000,000 % T
US$2,000,000

A R, #500,000T
RMB500,000

A K, 50,000,000

RMB50,000,000

@@  HREAF S —FA T ENR LA

A

(b)  HREND—FATEMNRRELZENA

B ]

©  HEWENA—FATENERLZAF L

*o

() EMBARA—FA T E RN 2 AR

3

(e) BN B A B R 2 2B e

—EREFESR
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100% - AA I B
Investment holding
- 100% BAER
Investment holding
- 100% BAG IR Ay
Decoration service
- 100% B A5 R A
Decoration service
- 100% B A5 R A
Decoration service
- 100% B A5 R A
Decoration service
- 100% EE
Construction
Notes:
(a) The subsidiary is a joint stock limited company established in the Chinese Mainland.
(b) The subsidiary is a domestic wholly owned enterprise established in the Chinese
Mainland
(c) The subsidiary is an equity joint venture established in the Chinese Mainland.
(d) The subsidiary is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the Chinese
Mainland
(e) The subsidiary is incorporated and has major operations in Hong Kong.
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A1 R A F) S AN E ()

41. SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES (continued)

(b) LELEABINEERAHAEIZHELAER LS (b)  The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
REEZRKNIWBE NG - ANG EE opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets of the
Bk I E AT B NG X S Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
B Mgl AT ko directors of the Company, result in particulars of excessive length.
F& B F 4+ % > Boom Go * Best Hope * Big All the subsidiaries listed above are established and operating in the
Leap ~ Direct Win ~ Bright Choice * King Chinese Mainland except for Strong Foundation, Boom Go, Best Hope,
Role * Cosmart * Kennex * Charmlink * Big Leap, Direct Win, Bright Choice, King Role, Cosmart, Kennex,
Megapower ~ it 4% i% ~Complete Power Charmlink, Megapower, Speedy Gain, Fortune Achieve, Complete Power,
& ~Vikwood ~ # & #& # > Toprunk Brilliant Palace, Vikwood, Wellview, Toprun and Upper Able which are
Upper Ablet 3& B & % 2% B 32 Mt A A& registered in the British Virgin Islands and their place of operation is
BBE S R BRI BN G &R in Hong Kong.
B R R R e
T B - 3] it S B ATAE AT M o No debt securities have been issued by the subsidiaries.
(c) AEBBHENNA_ERRLFE+ A= (c) Particulars of the Group’s associates as at 31 December 2007 are set
F—BZAH R =T out as follows:
CEITRES AEH
AMARZ @A BA S
Nominal value Attributable
AN E] LA of issued share interest held by EX S ¥ 3
Name of associate capital/registered capital the Group Principal activities
Jb K P B 5o E B AR TR F] (W 2ka) 11,000,000 % T 47.81% HER TR
Beijing Huazhongyuan Property Development US$11,000,000 Property investment
Co., Ltd. (note a) and management
Jb W R K A IR 8] (M 3Eb) 12,920,000 % 7T 47.81% WEBRTRFE
Beijing Hua Wei Center Co., Ltd. (note b) US$12,920,000 Property investment
and management
bW EEBE A AR A E (Wiza) 350,000% T 35.86% FAE T SN A6 R TS
Beijing Hua Jiade Decoration Engineering US$350,000 Provision of exterior
Company Limited (note a) decoration services
M2z Notes:
(a) B NG T — F AP B MR LR A (a) The associate is a domestic enterprise established in the Chinese Mainland.
%o
(b) B NG T — R B R P A (b) The associate is a Sino-foreign equity joint venture established in the Chinese

Hobpto Mainland.

EE PN RS PSS EEES S

All the associates are established and operating in the Chinese Mainland.

—EREHFESR
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42. FARRE R
AEEFEERAERAEDE TR TANS
w3 BARAL R AR SR AR R R
&K E o

AEBZH AR OEES (QIEAR 2314
FZRATHER) AT R R R A AR RN E)
BAFEH ABASHE R (B4 T BmA) S
B MR B R T X B ARG B A o

AN EE R AT E AR BT E
FHEEFARARREF AR ANADNZ AR
W FFZ AR AL BAHEB AL AT
TR~ e v AR BOEAT AT A8 SR W AT R
SR S LT

AEBXEMR SR EFRRF -2

43. &1 R
(a) AemiAxH5

42.

43.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able
to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders

through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes the bank
borrowings disclosed in note 31, bank balances and cash, and equity attributable
to equity holders of the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves
and retained earnings as disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular basis.
As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and the risks
associates with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new

debt or the redemption of existing debt.

The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

P THE GROUP
) 2 N
BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000

e Financial assets
B RN IRR Loans and receivables (including cash and cash

(AL RRALEM) equivalents) 6,019,854 4,704,685
SRR gk A E Available-for-sale financial assets 196,220 197,305

6,216,074 4,901,990

£ 5% B 1 Financial liabilities
s A Amortised cost (18,034,133) (12,643,870)

—EREFESR
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43. AT A (%)

(b)
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AR B E AR AL B E B B
STERARRAE S BT R IR
HEFZHGFE EEEBREEMRER
FHRE R AT

ARBIFHERRERERREELR
B B R G R AR R R R
3 MR B AT R 2 R R
ERHERGRE - FEHERGEBN
REZ W EF N FE AR TR
BHARFEFETARRZHEN &
MEGERGERER

AEB X5 RGBS ERE T AR
0 7 X 3 B AEAT BLH o

A8 EF Rl AT R M F KA 0
NAERIRHRE EHFREREAMALEE
E WM R Mo % R & 645 T 35 A
e (84850 BB R e B A & R R ~ 13 R R
M B B A A R o

ALBRATEIIA NI (45
GEE S RS NE RE S &

W 45 A 1

I BB R\ R 22

A BB PAT R G IR A B R
G~ BRAT 45 AR SLARAT B R - BB BB P R
Mo A EBRBBFMENEREHE R
SN R R Mo A 4E B 3L EE 3 4 1 R b R
Fo R 0B BRI E AT B AK
FERHEEHTERSER L

43.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment
and oversight of the Group’s risk management framework. The Board is
responsible for developing and monitoring the Group’s risk management
policies. The committee reports regularly to the Board of Directors on

its activities.

The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and
analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and
controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to market conditions and
the Group’s activities. The Group, through its training and management
standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive
control environment in which all employees understand their roles and

obligations.

The Group’s audit committee oversees how management monitors
compliance with the Group’s risk management policies and procedures
and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation
to the risks faced by the Group. The Group audit committee is assisted
in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both
regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures,

the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to market risks or

the manner in which it manages and measures.

The Board of Directors of the Company monitors and manages the
financial risks relating to the operations of the Group through internal
risk reports which analyses exposures by degree and magnitude of risks.
These risks include market risk (including foreign currency risk and

interest rate risk) credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including

derivative financial instruments, for hedging or speculative purpose.

Market risk

Foreign currency risk management

The Group conducts its treasury functions and maintain cash and bank
balances and bank borrowings in foreign currencies, hence is exposed
to foreign currency risk. The Group manages its foreign currency risk
by closely monitoring the movements of the foreign currency exchange
rates. The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should

the need arises.

—RREFEER
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43. AT A (%) 43.

(b) MHBAKREZEBR (4)
R & (4)
ShE R T T (4))
AEZRBH AERIBATHERER
AR Z AR E A T

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Foreign currency risk management (continued)

The carrying amount of the Group’s Hong Kong dollars denominated
monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the reporting date is as

follows:

Assets

&t
Liabilities

1 N T T

Hong Kong dollars

BT BT BHF A #FHT AL
HKS$000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000
592,546 1,021,941 8,236,676 4,485,000

b [ B E
TARFREAEBHAARN (had) 2
PO AR R B A 6y R ) LB
TC IR b S R AR 10% 09 B8 B 210% 2
NN ERE AR ZHRIE R
B ZHRA) E kR IR HE R T RE
G5 ) 0 4 3 o B AT AL AR SR
A AMEERAR BARKRE
[E &k .10%F sk 30 2 M 4R ofh A
RELAAESR LA AE (B) HHAFT
BARAG R R ARG GRY) <%
AR BETEFTFTHEL% - A F N R
BLAT 3 A M % B) AN B AW

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 10% increase
and decrease in the Renminbi, the functional currency of the Company
and subsidiaries operating in the PRC, against Hong Kong dollars. 10%
is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period
end for a 10% change in foreign currency rates. A positive (negative)
number indicates an increase (decrease) in profit or loss where the
Renminbi strengthens/weakens against Hong Kong dollar. For a 10%
weakening of Renminbi against Hong Kong dollar, there would be equal

but opposite impact on the profit before taxation.

A SR

Profit or loss

| 2006

BT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000
ESop il Profit before taxation 764,413 346,306
IR Ayt AR KRR 3 R R B S PR In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative

W AR M AT 3 R AR R B A R R o

—EREFESR
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43. AT A (%)

(b)

MR KR B AR (87)

A R e

AL B @A MELRTHREZIATHE
) R o A SR B R B A M B4R AT
BRBBITEBZI AL RTA E AR
(A B 3¢t LW 3231 2.28)

AEBELH>MANER R 2 XL H
SAE IR R I F A SRR i AT A R
S R SR CE RSP S RPN
£ B AR R IO F Ak A R

AR B T @ EA M ARk A A R AR
ZHEBARHEAH AL A KT E—

i o

ES &5 28

VAT BB T 75 AR AR GRAT 45 R B ARAT
HRAGEDZAHERRAL (thA M
B R oA R ) AR BUE E B 4 B
BAESIHAZRPMBEFIE ALY
w0 4 & 05018 H BE 69 38 e R Y AE N
RERFHAR ZHRA R BB EA
T E T HA WA R LT M B e 4
o

A% E A F BES018 K B @ BT AT F
EHEFTE ANALEAARE R
RF+ A Z+— B EBRAA
AR HG Am #5595 18,599,000T (=
BEENE RSB m A 15,639,000
A) o EBRBARERFARITEBRR
SEAT B A R R P B o

AAER AR R G EHEADYE
RS RIS T TR

43.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives (continued)

Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-
rate bank borrowings. The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank borrowings and bank balances
(see Notes 31 and 28 for details).

The Group analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis, but
the Group did not enter into interest rate swaps in managing its cash
flow interest rate risk. However, from time to time, if interest rate
fluctuates significantly, appropriate measures would be taken to manage

interest rate exposure.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities are

detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for bank balances and bank borrowings at
the balance sheet date and the stipulated change taking place at the
beginning of the financial year and held constant throughout the
reporting period in the case of instruments that have floating rates. A
50 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate
risk internally to key management personnel and represents

management’s assessment of the possible change in interest rate.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s profit before taxation for the
year ended 31 December 2007 would decrease/increase by
HK$18,599,000 (2006: decrease/increase by HK$5,639,000). This is
mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its

variable rate bank balances and bank borrowings.

The Group’s sensitivity to interest rates has increased during the current

year mainly due to the addition in variable rate debt instruments.

—EREFESR
Annual Report 2007

155



156

AR R

Notes to the Financial Statements

43. AT A (%)

(b)

B R 2R AR (47)

13 5 B & 5 22
AZEEXF+_A=+—80 KAEL£H
B R 5 7 ke B AT B AR R A SR DR
HAEAR 3] B R B AR 6 R K E R ER
B

. T 32 5 3678 P4 & X A M R 545
BZRKEHEEHE

AEFREKERAR AEAYREEC
ZEETERER LR -ERMEA L
fo B AAE A o B I 0 2 B AR BR USRS 4
FENCE I AE o s s R AN K
KB AFEMAT HHAAHAREZ
TR 4 A 0 A BEAR B & Ol 2 3R
HF R 5 ARG AR bt W S R
AFTERLRAERNERRAKCHEETE
fik, o

WA XY T A HBA B RS RIFEMA
AP BB RATIEE HERRITRZ
BRAT  BOARAT B 3 A5 B R IR A o

WABHEBERR G HHFREP A
EEMERRAGE £BEE T

R H R e
FRAHELRRE KNER B
HEFENLARIRALRALSTMZAK
FoAm AR BRLEE T L LIRS &
AR I YL TR B AT
R R EEREYG A MAE
I 5 4 oF T AT 3231 o
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43.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives (continued)

Credit risk management

As at 31 December 2007, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge
an obligation by the counterparties and financial guarantees provided

by the Group is arising from:

3 the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets

as stated in the consolidated balance sheet; and

. the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to the financial

guarantees as disclosed in note 36.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action are taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt and debt
investments at each balance sheet date to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is

significantly reduced.

The credit risk on bank deposits is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-

rating agencies or state-owned banks in the PRC.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure

spread over a number of counterparties and customers.

Liquidity risk management

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains
a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations
in each flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensure compliance with loan covenants. Details of the

Group’s borrowings are set out in Note 31.

Liquidity and interest risk tables
The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual maturity

for its non-derivative financial liabilities.
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

AT
b LiES
Weighted

average

effective

interest rate

%
%

Financial risk management objectives (continued)

Liquidity risk management (continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued)

The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can

be required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash

outflows.

THE GROUP
—EELE
+=A
=+—8H
ABARE  LHREMH
1218 A RERE Carrying
RAT Total amount
12 months 12245 2%5% undiscounted at
or less 1-2 years 2-5 years cash flows 31.12.2007
BEFTAL O OBRETAL  BFTAL O RFTAL O B¥TAL
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

—RE LE 2007
PSR Non-interest bearing
JEAT BR 2 R H 4 Trade and other payables
JEAT BRTR
JEAT R 4 T B 2 8] Amounts due to fellow
#a subsidiary
JEAT Y B R 2R Amount due to a minority
shareholder
ZE&ETHE Fixed interest rate
instruments
BATHE R Bank borrowings
FE T Variable interest rate
instruments
BATHE R Bank borrowings

6.1%

3.78%

2,096,676 - - 2,096,676 2,096,676
425 - - 425 425
503,084 - - 503,084 503,084

3,107,598 3,166,505 1,808,529 8,082,632 7,197,272

415,808 549,455 8,930,911 9,896,174 8,236,676

6,123,591 3,715,960 10,739,440 20,578,991 18,034,133
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43. EE T B (%) 43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) HHEAKRETEBEZ (4) (b)  Financial risk management objectives (continued)
15 B & &5 72 (#%) Liquidity risk management (continued)
REBALERAF AL () Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued)
—EREXH
+=A
T3 =+—8
Sl sk ABARE RGO
Weighted 1218 A RERE Carrying
average RAT Total amount
effective 12 months 12245 2%5% undiscounted at
interest rate or less 1-2 years 2-5 years cash flows 31.12.2006
% BRETAL BE¥TAL B¥ETAL B¥FTL BETA
% HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
M_
FS Non-interest bearing
JEAT BRF A H b Trade and other payables
e A+ TR 1,738,495 - - 1738495 1,738,495
JEAT ] % T B 2] Amounts due to fellow
ES subsidiaries 85,506 - - 85,506 85,506
JEAT B 42 BN 3) Amount due to immediate
A holding company 1,228,300 - - 1,228,300 1,228,300
ZE&ETE Fixed interest rate
instruments
AT R Bank borrowings 5.6% 3,624,286 1,433,605 323,693 5,381,584 5,106,569
FELE Variable interest rate
instruments
BATAER Bank borrowings 4.38% 201,687 201,687 4915544 5318918 4,485,000

6,878,274 1,635,292 5,239,237 13,752,803 12,643,870

(c) AIAIATHE (c) Fair value of financial instruments
FeP R AT IR A A ER AR A The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
ZANTFETEABARALERETN»N &t amortised cost are determined in accordance with generally accepted
B NDBTEBEXEL pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis.
FELL ABRATERLBRAGIER The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets
A di W 4K PR A 45 A T B AR R A 8 and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
P15 7] Bk o financial statements approximate their fair values.

—EREFESR
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44.

45.

I E &

AR B R AL AR B R K
AR R KB R AN LA AALE
B A58 2 30 R AL 1 256,965,000 (=&
RAF B 1188,833,000T) B [45E R A E
BN THIA | o Bt Z B E X F R AT
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44.

45.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

In prior year, the land appreciation tax was included in the Group’s cost of
sales. In the current year, the Group considered it is more appropriate to
include the land appreciation tax in taxation and therefore, land appreciation
tax of HK$256,965,000 (2006: HK$188,833,000) was reclassified from “Cost of
sales” to “Taxation”. Accordingly, unpaid land appreciation tax of
HK$165,917,000 in 2006 was reclassified from “Trade and other payables” to
“Taxation payable”. The comparative amounts have been restated to conform

to the current year presentation.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements set out on pages 77 to 160 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2008.
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Five Year Financial Summary

GROUP’S RESULTS

BT BT T BT BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
¥ Turnover 5,681,095 3,936,730 2,706,886 1,889,680 591,372
PRABLAT A (548) Profit (loss) before taxation 2,771,434 1,332,486 485,260 79,622 (7,428)
HLIA Taxation (1,296,192) (480,611) (46,937) (108,676) (18,187)
K EHA (FR) Profit (loss) for the year 1,475,242 851,875 438,323 (29,054) (25,615)
JEAL Attributable to:
AN HEABFHA Equity holders of
the Company 1,431,082 858,675 384,512 21,361 15,753
b B R A Minority interests 44,160 (6,800) 53,811 (50,415) (41,368)
1,475,242 851,875 438,323 (29,054) (25,615)
AEEAER A K :
B E B 1" GROUP’S ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AT BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
G Goodwill 50,423 - . - _
My R B R AR Property, plant and equipment 3,161,640 817,831 541,035 388,574 406,911
FaA+ AL 4 Prepaid lease payments 401,735 40,362 42,208 43,131 44,054
HAEME Investment properties 8,967,812 7,619,400 6,967,634 440,800 =
I IEHEIE A E Deferred taxation assets 374,174 369,403 248,863 242,869 200,922
Ry Long-term investments 789,820 686,699 817,930 772,534 760,780
JEN — R B 43 #3A  Amount due from an associate 237,464 245,070 230,708 236,149 227,840
R AE Current assets 33,501,741 16,960,550 8,926,325 8,250,651 7,783,224
A E AR Total assets 47,484,809 26,739,315 17,774,703 10,374,708 9,423,731
iKY Current liabilities 9,874,272 8,182,314 4,977,380 4,074,570 2,693,243
& &t Long-term liabilities 12,721,736 6,157,538 3,959,538 1,813,019 2,181,163
I 2EHEIE B Deferred taxation liabilities 1,276,939 666,289 507,942 4,072 =
At s Total liabilities 23,872,947 15,006,141 9,444,860 5,891,661 4,874,406
23,611,862 11,733,174 8,329,843 4,483,047 4,549,325
ANE B FAHA Equity attributable to
JE AL HE equity holders
of the Company 22,129,461 11,513,357 8,106,286 3,728,074 3,743,937
b B RS Minority interests 1,482,401 219,817 223,557 754,973 805,388
23,611,862 11,733,174 8,329,843 4,483,047 4,549,325

—REF LR
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